
 

 

Petitions Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
26 November 2013  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Steve George 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8421 
Petition@wales.gov.uk  

Kayleigh Driscoll  
Deputy Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8421 
Petition@wales.gov.uk 

 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1    Introduction, apologies and substitutions   

2    Discussion of evidence session on 11 November 2013   

The following two items will be discussed together (09.00 - 09.05) 

2.1 
  

P-04-466 Medical Emergency - Preventing the introduction of a poorer Health 
Service for North Wales  (Page 1) 

2.2 
  

P-04-479 Tywyn Memorial Hospital X-ray & Minor Injuries Unit Petition Unit 
Petition  (Pages 2 - 22) 

 

2.3 
  

P-04-343 Prevent the destruction of amenities on common land - Anglesey 
(09.05 - 09.10) (Pages 23 - 29) 

2.4 
  

P-04-496 Through Schools (09.10 - 09.15) (Pages 30 - 34) 

2.5 
  

P-04-432 Stop the Army Recruiting in Schools (09.15 - 09.20) (Pages 35 - 41) 

3    New petitions (09.20 - 09.35)  

3.1 
  

P-04-514 A Welsh clean coal and/or renewable energy power station instead of 
the proposed Wylfa B nuclear plant at Anglesey  (Page 42) 

3.2 
  

P-04-515 Increase Funding for Welsh Bus Services  (Page 43) 

3.3 
  

P-04-516 Make political science compulsory in education  (Page 44) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

3.4 
  

P-04-517 Stop the Welsh Assembly Government from bringing in the 
monitoring of electively home educated children under the guise of 
safeguarding  (Page 45) 

3.5 
  

P-04-518 Universal Free School Lunches  (Page 46) 

4    Updates to previous petitions (09.35 - 11.00)  

4.1 
  

P-04-483 A plain English /Cymraeg clir policy for all Welsh Assembly and 
Government communications  (Pages 47 - 52) 

Economy, Science and Transport 

4.2 
  

P-03-315 New Dyfi River Crossing Petition  (Pages 53 - 54) 

4.3 
  

P-04-319 Newtown traffic petition  (Pages 55 - 56) 

4.4 
  

P-04-393  Llanymynech and Pant Bypass Action Group  (Pages 57 - 59) 

4.5 
  

P-04-446 Business Rate Relief for Welsh Charity Shops  (Pages 60 - 64) 

4.6 
  

P-04-468 Road Safety Concerns A48 Chepstow  (Pages 65 - 66) 

4.7 
  

P-04-475 Wanted - Buses for Meirionnydd  (Pages 67 - 102) 

4.8 
  

P-04-508 Restore the Glandyfi view  (Pages 103 - 104) 

Health 

4.9 
  

P-04-362 Ambulance Services in Monmouth  (Pages 105 - 106) 

4.10 
  

P-04-448 Improve Sexual health services for Western Vale  (Page 107) 

4.11 
  

P-04-452 Equal Rights for Tube-fed Youngsters  (Pages 108 - 111) 

The following two items will be considered together 

4.12 
  

P-04-457 The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign  (Page 112) 

4.13 
  

P-04-474 Support for NHS chaplaincy services  (Pages 113 - 127) 

 

4.14 
  

P-04-463 Reduction of Salt Levels in Food  (Pages 128 - 129) 

4.15 
  

P-04-490 Antiretroviral Medication in Cardiff  (Pages 130 - 133) 

4.16 
  

P-04-501 Day Centres for the elderly in Wales to be made statutory  (Pages 134 
- 137) 

4.17 
  

P-04-505 Eating Disorder Unit in Wales  (Pages 138 - 141) 



 

 

Housing and Regeneration 

4.18 
  

P-04-363 Town Centre Improvement Scheme for Fishguard  (Pages 142 - 143) 

4.19 
  

P-04-419 Wind Farm Moratorium  (Pages 144 - 152) 

4.20 
  

P-04-423 Brooklands Nursing Home  (Pages 153 - 154) 

4.21 
  

P-04-469 Remove the Right-To-Buy Regional Price Cap  (Pages 155 - 158) 

4.22 
  

P-04-473 Wind Farm Public Inquiry Financial Support  (Pages 159 - 161) 

4.23 
  

P-04-497 National Graduate Housing Scheme  (Pages 162 - 165) 

4.24 
  

P-04-503 Regeneration of Ton and Pentre  (Pages 166 - 168) 

Local Government and Government Business 

4.25 
  

P-04-397 Living Wage  (Pages 169 - 170) 

4.26 
  

P-04-454 Call to end Councillor and Assembly Member Dual Role  (Pages 171 - 
175) 

4.27 
  

P-04-495 Stop People Trafficking & Slavery in Wales  (Pages 176 - 178) 

Natural Resources and Food 

4.28 
  

P-04-445 Save our Welsh cats & dogs from death on the roads  (Pages 179 - 
192) 

4.29 
  

P-04-422 Fracking  (Pages 193 - 196) 

4.30 
  

P-04-444 Dig for Victory  (Page 197) 

Finance 

4.31 
  

P-04-436 Government Expenditure and Revenue Wales  (Pages 198 - 201) 

Education 

4.32 
  

P-04-441 Gwaith i Gymru - Work for Wales  (Pages 202 - 206) 

4.33 
  

P-04-484 EMA for all!  (Pages 207 - 208) 



P-04-466 Medical Emergency - Preventing the introduction 
of a poorer Health Service for North Wales 

Petition wording: 

 
We the undersigned call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the 
Welsh Government to ensure that the proposals contained within the Betsi 
Cadwalader University Health Board consultation-  Health Care in North 

 Wales is Changing  does not result in poorer health provision and 
unnecessary deaths and suffering.  
 
The proposals will have a detrimental effect on most areas of health 
provision and emergency services and in no way can the proposals be an 
improvement as is intimated. Already experiencing meltdown, the Health 
Service in Wales will head towards collapse, if these proposals are 
implemented in their present form 
 
The current BCUHB consultation proposals in relation to Health Care in North 
Wales appear to be detrimental to general health provision and the safety of 
our communities. Accessibility, X-ray provision, Minor Injuries ,Mental 
Health, the Ambulance Services, the Out of Hours service and the ability of 

 GP s to deliver an integrated service are going to be particularly hard hit by 
the proposals - as they are diametrically at odds with the Welsh Govt’s vision 

    in relation to the documents Together for Health , Setting the Direction , 
  and Delivering Emergency Care Services  - it appears also to be at odds 

  with the Compact  announced by the Health Minister on the 25th of 
September 2012. 

Petition raised by: Mike Parry 
 
Petition first considered by Committee:  19 March 2013 

Number of signatures: 306 

 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 1



P-04-479 Tywyn Memorial Hospital X-ray & Minor Injuries 
Unit Petition 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to stop the withdrawal of X-ray facilities & the reduction in provision of 

services by the Minor Injuries Unit as a matter of urgency. 

 

Petition raised by:  Tywyn & District Health Care Action Group 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 14 May 2013 
 
Number of signatures: 4486 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 2



P-04-466 Argyfwng Meddygol—Atal Cyflwyno Gwasanaeth Iechyd o Safon Is 

yng Ngogledd Cymru, a P-04-479 Deiseb Adran Pelydr-X ac Uned Mân 

Anafiadau Ysbyty Tywyn 

P-04-466 Medical Emergency—Preventing the Introduction of a Poorer Health 

Service for North Wales, and P-04-479 Tywyn Memorial Hospital X-ray and 

Minor Injuries Unit Petition 
 

[1] William Powell: I ask the petitioners to take their seats, please. I extend a warm 

welcome to Jennie Windsor, Brian Mintoft, Mike Parry and Dr Delyth Davies. We are very 

grateful to you for joining us this morning. I ask you to introduce yourself briefly and the 

organisation that you represent for the sound levels and for our record, and to then make a 

brief introductory statement about your position on your respective petitions. We will then get 

the session under way. As I said, I have an eye on the clock, but we will take those couple of 

minutes out in the course of proceedings. Over to you, Jennie. 

 

[2] Ms Windsor: I am Jennie Windsor, minute secretary for Tywyn and district 

healthcare action group. This is following a petition that we sent in to protect the minor 

injuries unit at Tywyn hospital and to keep the x-ray unit open. 

 

[3] Mr Mintoft: Excuse me if I cough; I am Brian Mintoft and I am chair-come-

secretary of the aforementioned group, because nobody else wanted to do it. 

 

[4] William Powell: A volunteer is better than several pressed people. 

 

[5] Mr Mintoft: I am retired. I have nothing to do with the medical profession, but I am 

very appreciative of the medical profession, because I have had umpteen operations, and I had 

a transient ischaemic attack—a mini-stroke—about two years ago. So, I really appreciate 

what it does, and that is why I am very interested that other people should get the service that 

they deserve. 

 

[6] Mr Parry: Good morning, Chair. My name is Councillor Mike Parry. I am the 

immediate past mayor of Pwllheli. I am chairman of the Pwllheli partnership and a former 

chair of the district council. I think that the wording in our petition sums up what I am doing 

here today in relation to health services. 

 

[7] Dr Davies: I am Delyth Davies, a retired GP, and I am here to support my friend 

Mike. I have over 25 years’ experience of general practice in Pwllheli, so I remember the 

good days in the past, and now is definitely not good. 

 

[8] William Powell: Okay. You will have heard in our consideration of some of the 

earlier petitions some of the difficulties that we as a committee and our colleagues have had 

in engaging with another health board, which is not your own, and you may have had cause to 

reflect that there are some wider issues here in play. I will kick off with a question around 

transport. Do you feel that the Welsh Government’s commitment to examining the local 

transport access issues that have been a considerable concern to many campaigners here in 

north Wales and elsewhere in any way alleviates the concerns that have been expressed with 

regard to having access to services? If not, what would you like to see coming from the 

Government to address those concerns? I do not know who is the most appropriate person to 

lead off on that. 

 

[9] Mr Mintoft: In our area, there are certainly some short-term attempts. For example, 

there is a bus route being preserved between where we live and Dolgellau, which is along the 

coast road. However, that is a short-term thing—it is less than six months. You mentioned, 

actually, in relation to another petition, the X94 bus service, which is relevant to us. For 

Page 3



example, my wife had treatment in Wrexham and she used that bus service on occasions. 

Most of the time, I used to drive her to Wrexham for attention. There were attempts to 

preserve that, or to keep it going, but I do not know how long it will last. Some attempts are 

being made but, overall, I cannot see how any long-term measures can retain that, because it 

is so rural. Whatever bus service is there is not ever going to be busy. So, I do not know what 

the solution is, but it needs a different solution and a new way of thinking to enable transport 

in the area. 

 

[10] Mr Parry: Similarly, Chair, on the Llŷn peninsula, we are literally out on a limb, so 

physically, for instance, for appointments in the acute hospital, it is impossible for people 

down the Llŷn to access services at the acute hospital and be back on the same day. Public 

services do not exist to that extent. 
 

[11] William Powell: So, there need to be customised modes of transport. 

 

[12] Mr Parry: Yes, there are small transport initiatives that have sprouted up that are 

helping, but they are not always available.  

 

[13] William Powell: No, indeed. 

 

[14] Mr Mintoft: On transport, if I could wave this map—you can have copies of it if you 

wish—it is actually a health service-produced map. You can see that the red areas mark where 

the general hospitals are and the accident and emergency units. That is the area that we live 

in, and that is the area where you live. The red actually represents public transport that will 

get you there in 30 minutes. That happens to be between 10 a.m. and 12 p.m. on a Tuesday; 

do not ask me why, but that is what the survey was. You can see that the colours thin out to 

different ones. The white, in effect, means it is more than 90 minutes. 

 

[15] William Powell: That covers the whole of Gwynedd, and the whole of Powys. 

 

[16] Mr Mintoft: Yes. 

 

[17] William Powell: Large chunks of Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire are in the same 

position. 

 

[18] Mr Mintoft: Our concern is around this area. It is separate from our main petition. 

You can see that our main general hospital here is Aberystwyth. 

 

[19] William Powell: Yes, Bronglais. 

 

[20] Mr Mintoft: It still takes an hour to drive to there. We currently have a concern, 

which we did not have before, about the facilities there being moved to Carmarthen, and you 

can see where Carmarthen is by comparison. 

 

[21] William Powell: Absolutely. 

 

[22] Mr Mintoft: Yet, the distances to the north Wales hospitals are equally large. I have 

some quotes on the times. 

 

[23] William Powell: I was impressed by the turnout of people from your community and 

the Tywyn area, and Russell George and I were present at a meeting in Machynlleth in, I 

think, the spring of last year, when there was a really strong turnout from your community, 

from concerned patients, user groups and local councillors. 

 

[24] Mr Mintoft: There is a lot of strong feeling in the area. 

Page 4



 

[25] Mr Parry: In relation to that, Chair, looking at the map—and I will not go into it in 

any depth today—I have an example of a 999 call down in Aberdaron on the Llŷn, where the 

ambulance came from Glan Clwyd. Now, you are talking two hours, and that is one way. You 

then have to get back to Bangor, which is the nearest acute hospital. That is not an isolated 

incident. I have made a request under the Freedom of Information Act—quite an extensive 

one—and that is due to be delivered to me today or tomorrow, so I will forward that to the 

committee. 

 

[26] William Powell: That would be really helpful, to have clarity on that.  

 

[27] Mr Parry: With the various tranches, you know—eight minutes, up to an hour and a 

half, or two hours. Another example is an ambulance that came from Dolgellau to the Llŷn, 

picked the guy up who, you know, had some kind of heart complaint—it is 999 again—and it 

got lost. So, he had to get up and show them the way. Now, I do not blame the ambulance 

service, because that is another issue. It is composite within the whole scenario. They are 

under tremendous pressure, as, indeed—[Interruption.] 

 

[28] William Powell: Yes, indeed, and with the best will in the world, the more remote 

the source of the ambulance is—and sat-navs are notorious, particularly in the kind of parts of 

Wales that some of us live in, for taking you up one-way tracks and leading you into a bad 

place as well. 

 

[29] Mr Parry: Yes, we are on very good terms with a lot of Polish lorry drivers. 

[Laughter.] 

 

[30] William Powell: I can imagine that you probably are. 

 

[31] Bethan Jenkins: Did the health board undertake a transport impact assessment when 

it was proposing the changes? In my area, Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Universtiy Local Health 

Board did not talk to First Cymru, which is the biggest transport provider, when it was 

making the changes to the south Wales programme. So, if it did, were you satisfied, and if it 

did not, why not? 

 

[32] Mr Parry: Certainly, in our area, there was a PR exercise, for want of a better word, 

and I was involved on what they call a locality basis—I was invited to these rather intense 

meetings, and I refer to this in my submission. The questions there were fairly loaded and, 

while we had questions, there was no actual evaluation of what the results would be, if they 

should go a certain way. Unfortunately, we are now finding out what is happening with 

transport, closing minor injuries units and what have you. The golden hour is ticking, and we 

are not able to access it, and the results of that are horrendous for the patient and in terms of 

cost. 

 

[33] Mr Mintoft: In our area, it is impossible to make the golden hour. It takes an hour by 

road, and pretty much an hour for an ambulance with flashing lights. The only way it can be 

made is by this red vehicle that comes down out of the sky—locally, it is called the Tywyn 

taxi, and that is not even run by the NHS. 

 

[34] William Powell: Yes, the air ambulance, which is obviously subject to significant 

restrictions on its hours of operation and as a result of weather-related issues. Dr Davies, it is 

clear that you have some specific things to contribute here from your own background as 

well. 

 

[35] Dr Davies: Well, times have changed. As regards the golden hour, it is much more 

important now for the golden hour to be accessed by an ambulance with paramedics than a 

Page 5



doctor, actually. If you have an ambulance with paramedics able to get to you in less than an 

hour, then you are actually safer than being treated by a doctor, really, and I think that the 

ambulance service is becoming very thinly spread and being criticised unfairly for not being 

able to reach places in a reasonable time. 

 

[36] Mr Mintoft: I would agree with that; it is spread very thinly. The other day, within 

the last two weeks, there was a lady who needed to be moved. It was only about half a mile 

within Tywyn, and she needed a wheelchair for that to be done. They had to call an 

ambulance from Bala. There are supposed to be ambulances in Tywyn, but there were none to 

cover that area, so it took four hours to actually get that ambulance. It was not an emergency, 

but, it took four hours to get that in. Again, when the ambulance people got there, they did not 

know the place, as they had not been before. 

 

[37] I am not blaming the ambulance service, as I think that it tries to do a very good job. 

However, about two months ago, within a one-week period, I saw three incidents where there 

were two ambulances together. The reason was that they had staffed an ambulance with one 

person. If somebody needs to be lifted and moved, they have to get another ambulance, so 

you end up with two ambulances in the same place doing just one job. I think that that is not 

good.  

 

[38] William Powell: It is certainly not the best use of resources in any way. 

 

[39] Mr Mintoft: Having one person can be useful if they can get there quickly and can 

deal with it, but in these specific incidences, which involve moving people, one person cannot 

do it.  

 

[40] Russell George: Why were there two ambulances there? 

 

[41] Mr Mintoft: Sorry? 

 

[42] Russell George: Why were there two ambulances there? 

 

[43] Mr Mintoft: The staff in the original ambulance could not move the person; they 

were not allowed to move the person. They had to get somebody else to help— 

 

[44] William Powell: There was a manual handling restriction. 

 

[45] Mr Mintoft: Yes, that is right; manual handling. 

 

[46] Russell George: Did they need more than two people in that situation? Is that why 

there were two ambulances? 

 

[47] Mr Parry: It depends. If they have to transport somebody who is having a heart 

attack to hospital, say— 

 

[48] Dr Davies: There was only one person in the ambulance. 

 

[49] Mr Mintoft: There was only one person in the first ambulance. That is the problem. 

They cannot move the person. 

 

[50] Russell George: So, the second person who came in the second ambulance was not 

coming because the ambulance was needed, but because the second person was needed.  

 

[51] Mr Mintoft: Yes, that is correct. They were needed to lift the person.  

 

Page 6



[52] Russell George: The issue is not really the ambulance, then; the issue is about the 

two members of staff required.  

 

[53] Mr Parry: If they need to be given treatment on the way to hospital, they have to 

have the second person. They cannot go until they have the second person. 

 

[54] Russell George: Clearly, while someone is driving, there needs to be someone in the 

ambulance to provide treatment. The ambulance is acting like a second vehicle to get the 

second person there; is that right? 

 

[55] Mr Mintoft: Yes, although they are qualified staff. If there had been two of them in 

that ambulance, they could have dealt with it on their own, but they had to be called in 

because the first one could not deal with it. With the distances involved, it is silly, because the 

ambulance can sometimes take hours to get there. It is a waste of time.  

 

[56] William Powell: In the brief moment that we have before 11 a.m., I ask you to give 

us your current view on the opening hours for MIU, which I know was a particular concern in 

the context of Tywyn. What are your views on that? 

 

[57] Mr Mintoft: Our concern is enhanced because of the environment in which we live. 

The accident and emergency unit is a long way away, and the minor injuries units—I have 

changed the name slightly; they are local unscheduled care services—are very important to 

us. That is the first line, as it were, for patients. The fact that the hours have now been 

reduced—they were reduced from 1 October—is already starting to have an impact, and I 

have some examples of that.  

 

[58] William Powell: We will return to that in a moment. As the library clock is telling us 

that it is 10.59 a.m., I think that we should prepare to stand and show our respects.  

 

11:00 

 

Safodd y pwyllgor am funud o dawelwch. 

The committee stood for a minute’s silence. 

 

[59] William Powell: Thank you very much. 

 

[60] Mr Mintoft: As I said, I have some examples where delay has been caused because 

the minor injuries unit has not been open, since 1 October. It is open between 10 a.m. and 6 

p.m.; obviously, accidents and other incidents do not stop at 6 p.m. It is not open at weekends. 

There was a man with a dog bite, which could potentially be extremely serious, who decided 

that he did not want to go a long way; the place was closed, but he did not know that it was 

closed and had to check. He waited 15 hours for treatment. That could have been a major 

problem as he needed to be seen, checked over and stabilised. Before that, with the minor 

injuries unit—in fact, I put this example in my last correspondence to you—a friend of mine 

put his head through a glass door at 9 p.m. He tried to get minor injuries treatment, but could 

not, either in Tywyn or Dolgellau. He rang the out-of-hours service, which referred him to 

Bangor accident and emergency unit. That is a 140-mile round trip. He had no car—his wife 

did not drive anyway—and he had a 12-hour overnight wait for treatment, so I guess that he 

had a sleepless night. I have plenty of examples here, all since the MIU has gone to shorter 

hours. A lady with asthma who had difficulty breathing over the weekend was told by the out-

of-hours service to ring Dolgellau, which referred her to Ysbyty Alltwen, which is nearer to 

Porthmadog. That is 43 miles away, therefore an 86-mile round trip. She decided to wait for 

Tywyn on Monday, and was treated for a chest infection. A 12-year-old boy with asthma had 

pneumonia some months ago, therefore his mother was very concerned. He recently had 

breathing difficulties on a Saturday. Tywyn was closed. The doctor was not available in 

Page 7



Dolgellau, although he was supposed to be. He went to Alltwen in Tremadog—an 86-mile 

round trip—to be treated for a chest infection.  

 

[61] Those are the ones that we know about. Most of the time, as I said in my previous 

correspondence to you, we have no way of telling how many people are missing treatment 

and not being treated, or are travelling a long distance elsewhere to be treated. We are trying 

to put something in place, such as a Facebook page, for people to report those experiences. 

There will be some inertia in that, and we will not necessarily know, but the NHS will not 

measure those things—it measures the people treated once they come within its remit.  

 

[62] William Powell: What is your perspective on the community health council and any 

engagement that you have had with it as far as this is concerned?  

 

[63] Mr Mintoft: The CHC in north Wales was very helpful to us. I have something here 

to read out. As you know, the x-ray unit is still working.  

 

[64] William Powell: Absolutely, and that is something that we are pleased about, in that 

it was reprieved.  

 

[65] Mr Mintoft: It has two sessions. The morning session is fully utilised. The afternoon 

session is very well utilised—it is not totally full, but it is well used. That is great. In the case 

of the minor injuries unit, I am not sure whether the CHC agrees with the shortened hours, but 

it had to in the end, I think; I have talked to some of the people there. However, the CHC has 

been very helpful in trying to fight our case, and it took it a long time to get the solution that 

we have, which is that the x-ray unit is still open and the minor injuries unit is still working 

on shorter hours.  

 

[66] William Powell: I believe that my colleague Russell wanted to raise issue around the 

out-of-hours service.  

 

[67] Russell George: You mentioned the out-of-hours service. What improvements could 

be made to the out-of-hours service?  

 

[68] Mr Parry: Abolish it.  

 

[69] Mr Mintoft: I have forgotten his name, but we talked to the man who organises it for 

north Wales—I think that he sits in Caernarfon; it might be Bangor; sorry, it is Bangor. He 

said that less than 20% of doctors in north Wales are willing to participate in the out-of-hours 

service. I have talked to other people, and although I cannot say how often, it happens often 

that there is one doctor to cover from Bangor right down to our area for the out-of-hours 

service. That is not good enough. What happens—I have already referred to it—when 

someone rings up is that they are probably referred to A&E. Laughingly, I say ‘local’ A&E, 

because they are all a long, long way— 

 

[70] William Powell: An hour and a half or two hours away in some cases.  

 

[71] Mr Mintoft: Exactly. In a sense, I cannot blame the doctors. If they are sitting there, 

they know that they have to spend x amount of hours to get out to us and back.  

 

[72] William Powell: That is dead time in the car with their driver, presumably.  

 

[73] Mr Mintoft: That is right. They have a driver.  

 

[74] Russell George: I was going to ask Dr Davies if the out-of-hours service in the past 

was a much better service. Is that your view?  

Page 8



 

[75] Dr Davies: It was certainly very different, and it was better.  

 

[76] Russell George: How was it different in the past?  

 

[77] Dr Davies: Each practice looked after its own patients, 24 hours a day. In the practice 

where I worked, there were six doctors, so it was a rota where you did one night in six. We 

had some difficulty in recruiting replacements. We had a husband and wife who left, and we 

wanted to recruit, but people were not applying for the job because they were going to have to 

work one night in six. They were not willing to come to Pwllheli, which is a very nice place 

to live, because they could get a job in Bangor or Wrexham where they did not have to do any 

nights.  

 

[78] The other helpful thing, especially with evenings and nights on-call, was that if, for 

example, you were called to see an elderly patient whose spouse was frail and unwell, you 

also saw the spouse. Let us take the example of an elderly lady with pneumonia or bronchitis, 

who did not really need to go to Ysbyty Gwynedd, she could go into a GP bed in the 

community hospital, and if the husband was too frail to look after himself, but they managed 

together, you could ring social services and they would put the husband in a respite bed in 

Plas y Don. They would both come home from the respective places—where they had been 

looked after—in better shape than before the wife became ill.  

 

[79] Russell George: Is it your view that the out-of-hours service should be improved or 

abolished? Mr Parry was saying that it should be abolished. 

 

[80] Dr Davies: It is almost abolished already, is it not? I do not know. I think that the 

British Medical Association made a bad decision, really. I will add that I left before the big 

money came in. 

 

[81] Russell George: Okay. 

 

[82] Dr Davies: So now, it is big money and no nights.  

 

[83] Russell George: Yes, I see. 

 

[84] William Powell: Bethan has the final group of questions. I am conscious that time is 

pressing us a little. 

 

[85] Bethan Jenkins: I just wanted to ask where you wanted to go from here. Obviously, 

we are concerned about the out-of-hours service, about the downgrading of the MIU and 

about transport. You have said that the CHC has been satisfactory, in terms of your 

negotiations with it, but where do you see movement now, in terms of holding the health 

board and the Minister to account on the changes and how they will affect people’s daily 

lives? I appreciate the work that you are doing with regard to Facebook and people putting 

their stories there, but that will not be conclusive for the health board—it could just dismiss 

that and say, ‘We dispute that that has happened; we think that our service is acceptable’. We 

need a qualitative analysis of what is happening. How do you see the whole process moving 

on, so that we can be secure in the knowledge that people are getting the treatment that they 

deserve, that the ambulance service is effective and that people are not suffering 

unnecessarily because of these changes?  

 

[86] Mr Parry: I think that our submissions, Chair, will expand on and set the scene 

properly as to the problems; certainly, my submission does so. 

 

[87] William Powell: Yes. The broader picture, and also issues around the consultation— 

Page 9



 

[88] Bethan Jenkins: Is there one thing, or a few things, that you would specifically home 

in on today? 

 

[89] Mr Mintoft: At the top of my list—I thought that I was going to give a presentation 

today—there are two words: availability and accessibility. Those are the two problems. If you 

shorten the hours of whatever is available, there will be people who are ill or who have a 

problem outside of those hours. It is wonderful to have very skilled people in great places, 

who can offer wonderful treatment—I do not decry that at all—but it is no good if it is not 

available for people. That is what we are talking about: availability and accessibility. 

 

[90] William Powell: That is fair enough. 

 

[91] Mr Parry: Could I launch into this, Chair? At the outset, I need you to consider that 

in no way am I an expert witness, but I represent—  

 

[92] William Powell: You speak from experience and on behalf of the people that you 

represent. 

 

[93] Mr Parry: Yes, precisely. In the 30 years that I have been involved with local social 

matters, this matter has caused me the most concern, in terms of potential harm to our 

communities and to individuals.  

 

[94] I worded the petition in a generic way because I was very aware that what Betsi was 

proposing was harmful to the majority of rural communities. I avoided being parochial. The 

main thrust of our petition fits comfortably with Tywyn’s expressions of concern, articulated 

in that petition. If we look at the status quo, all of the symptoms of collapse are there: 

extremely low morale among staff; huge ambulance queues outside A&E; patients 

inappropriately placed in wards and homes because of bedblocking and non-availability of 

ambulances; a crisis in GP recruitment; the out-of-hours service not being user friendly or 

even responsive within acceptable parameters; and stories of near misses—which I can 

provide, of course. All in all, it is a complete lottery, which will, sooner or later, arrive at 

what will be, or have been, plainly avoidable tragedies.  

 

[95] Where we live, the theory of the benefits and outcomes of the golden hour—which 

we referred to earlier—is a complete joke. It is a given today, sadly, that the Betsi board has 

been in a shambolic state. It has admitted to being dysfunctional, and is presently in a state of 

reconstruction. It is a scandal that the Auditor General for Wales had to get involved to 

highlight the problems with the board. The recent timely resignations and retirements within 

the board and the CHC locally and nationally tell their own story, in my view. Betsi now has 

a new chair, Dr Peter Higson, and I look forward to our meeting with him next week and wish 

him well. I shall not be taking any baggage with me to that meeting; I am quite open-minded 

about it. There is also, in our area certainly, contrary to Brian’s, no public confidence in the 

function of the CHC, considered widely to be the lapdog of the Betsi board, as evidenced by 

mass resignations of CHC members—Councillor Peter Read from the executive board, 

Councillor Selwyn Griffiths, and Councillor Huw Edwards, the chairman of Gwynedd 

Council. Some of these members have 20 years plus standing on the CHC, which must, I 

suggest, signal something of significance. Gwynedd Council also passed a motion of no 

confidence in the Betsi board and in the CHC, to reflect what its communities were telling it. 

The effectiveness of CHCs depends, in part, on the public’s perception of their reputation and 

standing. As far as I am concerned, they have no standing and their reputation is not to be 

envied. In my view, and that of many others, they need root and branch reform or even 

abolishing.  

 

[96] With regard to the consultation process that Betsi Cadwaladr undertook, I attended a 

Page 10



series of what were called locality meetings, which were designed, in my personal view, to 

give some kind of endorsement and validity to the supposed research that they conducted 

within those meetings, under the guise of public consultation. It included a lot of leading 

questions and scenarios. On reflection, I was probably mugged. The limited public meetings 

also convened were also stage-managed and demand was not satisfied; Dr Delyth Davies 

would attest to that. Whilst I appreciate that the Betsi Cadwaladr board has a serious fiscal 

situation to deal with, the reconfiguration of services that has led to a poorer service and a 

threat to patient safety is totally unacceptable. Ironically, the whole new package that it put 

together was sold as offering a better and a safer service.  

 

11:15 

 

[97] At this juncture, it would be remiss of me if I did not pay tribute to the trust staff who 

are doing their best and operating under very frustrating and difficult circumstances. I am as 

frustrated as they are. If I achieve nothing else here today, I will be happy to have made you 

aware of some of the real problems troubling our health service in the rural regions. I can 

provide you with real life scenarios and examples that have been subjected to this systemic 

casino that we now have. I do not want the Assembly to be like the German nation after the 

war, being in denial of the atrocities that were taking place within their boundaries; I am 

telling you candidly today that people are, and will, suffer and die as a result of these changes. 

The priority has to be not particularly apportioning blame, but finding solutions. However, I 

find the complacency and denial by some politicians—not all, I must say—asserting that our 

health service is not in crisis, to be offensive and beyond belief. The individuals, including the 

First Minister, need a reality check.  

 

[98] I have nearly finished now, Mr Chair. Any change, even a change for the better, is 

always accompanied by drawbacks and discomforts, and whilst one is not resistant to change, 

one is resistant to the outright dereliction of duty, or what is plainly a series of historical poor 

decisions, some of which clearly need to be reconsidered. Our healthcare system is in 

meltdown and on the pathway to becoming neither healthy, caring or a system. The onset of 

winter is likely to exacerbate problems and move our systemic difficulties from the general 

ward into intensive care, with the end result of unnecessary suffering. Let us face it: we do not 

have a healthcare system; we have a system of care that is ill. Seriously, our lives begin to end 

the day we become silent about things that matter. To conclude, Chair, do not take life too 

seriously; you will never get out of it alive.  

 

[99] William Powell: Councillor Parry, thank you very much for that concluding 

statement, which addressed the couple of remaining questions that I had. One request that I 

would make to you on behalf of the committee is that you please send us an update when you 

have the meeting with the new chief executive, to which you have just referred. You said that 

you would leave your guns at the door and that you were hoping for a fresh start. It would be 

really helpful to us to have your perspective on that forthcoming meeting. Also, because of 

time constraints, we are not going to consider your evidence today, but we will do so at a 

future meeting and, hopefully, we will have that update from you by then as well. So, I would 

like to thank you very much for taking the time out to join us here at Prestatyn High School, 

and we shall come back to consider this evidence session at an early future meeting and we 

will hopefully hear more from yourself. If you have any other additional submissions in the 

meantime, please send them to us as a committee and we will take them forward. 

 

[100] Mr Mintoft: I have four points that I would like to mention, which are single 

sentences. At the last meeting, you talked about the Tywyn hospital development. Sure 

enough, there is a development, but it is nothing to do with the MIU or the x-ray services that 

you were talking about. It is simply moving the health centre into a different building and 

providing some beds for dying people and people who are recovering. It does not affect what 

we have said. I agree about staff morale. On the reduction of the hours of staff, with fewer 

Page 11



people using the facility we can eventually see it dying. We have seen it elsewhere. They will 

say, ‘There are not many people using this, so we don’t need it’. That is the staff. There are 

also some skills there. Some of the nurses have been able to diagnose for years; they have 

done it well for people. They have the skills and the training, but they are now not allowed to 

do it. The new nurses being recruited are being recruited on only six-month contracts and they 

do not have any training to do that sort of thing, so the thing is deliberately being run down. 

Thank you very much. 

 

[101] Bethan Jenkins: We do not have time now, but would you write to us saying what 

you think that we, as a committee, could suggest? You could include some ideas—perhaps 

you will know more once you have met with the new members of the community health 

council—so that we will have an idea of how we could satisfy the demands in your petition 

when we discuss it at the next meeting. 

 

[102] William Powell: Diolch yn fawr am 

ddod heddiw, ac am y sesiwn y bore yma. 

 

William Powell: Thank you very much for 

coming today, and for the session this 

morning. 

 

 

Page 12



P-04-479 Tywyn Memorial Hospital X-ray & Minor Injuries Unit Petition 

Unit Petition – Correspondence from the petitioner to the Committee, 

20.11.2013 
 

To: The Petitions Committee. 

Re:  

At the meeting in Prestatyn you asked us what we want you to do. In response I have compiled the following. 

 

As per the original petition request 

1. Ensure fair treatment for patients in Tywyn & District. 

2. Ensure that the Minor Injuries Unit in Tywyn Hospital is able to operate for longer hours (e.g. 8am to 8pm) to 

serve the local rural population and to cover outside the normal Doctor’s surgery hours. 

3. Ensure that the skilled staff are treated fairly & are offered reasonable contracts of a reasonable length (they are 

currently only for 6 months), including appropriate training to make good decisions about assessment, 

appropriate treatment or referral needed by their patients. (Morale has been severely affected). 

 

As acknowledged at the meeting on the 11
th

 November 2013  

The MIU situation in Tywyn & District needs to be seen as part of a larger problem in the region involving General 

Hospitals, A&E departments, Out of Hours Service, Ambulance Service and transport generally. Therefore the 

following are suggestions- 

 

4. Create a mid-Wales health area centred on Aberystwyth to act as a hub for rural services. Urban solutions do not 

fit rural areas. Bronglais Hospital, as part of a Health Board based in the South but serving an area West, South & 

North of Aberystwyth cannot compete against demands from more populated areas in the South of the Hywel 

Dda area, especially when Hywel Dda does not consider South Meirionnydd to be in their area. Clearly define the 

mid-Wales area & population to be covered including North Powys, Ceredigion & South Meirionnydd. A mid-

Wales coordination group was promised but does not seem to be happening. 

 

5. In rural areas - ensure satellite local facilities and trained staff nearer to patients and origin of need for 

Unscheduled Care Services to check, assess, treat or refer as necessary. (At present nurses with the required 

training & experience are being stopped from doing this). These satellite local facilities, in our opinion, are key to 

a satisfactory service in rural areas. They can be seen as outriggers to the A&E departments filtering out the 

minor problems which do not need A&E specialist skills or equipment. The vast majority of Minor Injuries do not 

need to go beyond this level. Cases where the assessment is that A&E specialist skills or equipment are needed 

should be referred and transported quickly.  

Doctors’ practices do not normally provide this service. Ideally they should, but no doubt it would be difficult 

and take a long time to renegotiate contracts.  

Community nursing is essential for “closer to home” treatment but does not provide this unscheduled 

service. 

 

Result:  

· reduced A&E workload 

Page 13



· reduced “Out of Hours” service requirement. 

· increased patient satisfaction & early availability of treatment. 

· minimum transport required 

· patients transferred to A&E or specialist sites only when required 

· avoidance of patients delaying treatment because of perceived or real difficulty of access to medical opinion 

& consequently the condition becoming much more serious. 

· ambulances (including Air Ambulance) called less frequently; only when required to transport patients to 

A&E or other medical services. (Because there is limited early assessment & check available now, patients 

are being transported (sometimes by helicopter) to General Hospitals & being discharged the same day. 

(Source: local nurse). 

· reduced carbon emissions by patients, relatives & friends 

· reduced cost to the Health Service and the patient. (Patients taken to A&E have to pay for the journey home. 

Bronglais to Tywyn taxi in late evening / night costs £70. (Actual example: elderly patient (80+) with heart 

problem discharged late at night after receiving treatment. Fortunately he had a credit card!) 

· reduced inconvenience & cost to relatives & friends. 

 

6. Improve or change the Out of Hours Service. Insufficient doctors are available (only 20% of doctors in  North 

Wales are willing to do out of hours work) and at such distances from the patient that assessment & treatment is 

not quickly available. (We have several examples following implementation of reduced MIU availability on 1
st

 

October 2013). Public transport is not available to patients. Ideally doctors, or groups of doctors, should be on 

call to deal with their own local areas & patients. However I’m sure there will be considerable resistance to 

changing their contracts to include this. 

7. Improve transport to medical facilities of all kinds if possible. It not feasible in a rural area to ensure that 

sufficient ad hoc usage of public transport for medical reasons is economical. It may be possible for special mini- 

buses or cars to be used in some circumstances (some have been provided in the past) to transport patients who 

need regular checks or treatment but would need much coordination. Public transport improvement for 

unscheduled care is probably not realistic. 

8. Improve the Ambulance Service. Ensure that the ambulance service is not understaffed and aim for those 

providing emergency care to be staffed by two people in rural areas. Often two people are needed to lift or care 

for a patient being transported, and, in that circumstance, if an ambulance attends with only a driver, another 

ambulance has to be called. With long distances being involved there is potentially much wasted staff time & 

vehicle time. In urban areas this may not be such a problem since backup ambulances do not have so far to 

travel and take so much time doing it. 

 

 

Brian Mintoft 

Secretary, Tywyn & District Health Care Action Group. 

 

 

Attachments: 

1. Map showing travel times to Unscheduled Care Services in North Wales as shown at the Petitions Committee 

Meeting 11/11/13. 

Source: 

National Public Health Service for Wales Rapid Review of Hospital Element of Unscheduled Care Services in North Wales 

Author: Margaret Webber Date: 29/4/09 Status: Final 

Version: 1 Page 13 of 13 Intended Audience: Expert & Stakeholder Groups 

 Page 14



2. The text of a 5 minute presentation we had expected to use at the Prestatyn meeting to be followed by 

questions. “Downgrading of local unscheduled care services (MIU) in Tywyn & District”. 

 

3. A letter to the Petitions Committee from Jennie Windsor, Petitioner, who was present at the meeting on the 

11
th

 November 2013, regarding some of the issues raised by the Committee at that meeting. 

 
4. A document outlining the weakening of services offered at our nearest General Hospital, Bronglais, 

Aberystwyth, which is managed by the Hywel Dda Health Authority, and the shift South to Carmarthen of 

some of the services. “Some facts about Bronglais Hospital.” 8/11/13. Any downgrading of services 

available to us in this area is of great concern. 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 

 Page 16



Downgrading of local unscheduled care services (MIU) in Tywyn & District. 

 

Thanks to Petition Committee for interest & being willing to allow us to talk to them. (11/11/2013) 

 

Two words I want to emphasis right from the beginning are – 

Availability  Accessability 

In general, the focus in Health Care at the moment is on reduction of cost, improved quality of service & 

outcomes, which we all want. However, excellent facilities without availability & accessibility to the 

patient are no good. 

 

1. The petition. 

In Tywyn Hospital X-ray facilities have been saved from closure & I can report that the morning 

session is fully utilised & the afternoon session well utilised. 

The minor injuries unit reduced the hours of availability from 1
st

 October & we are already seeing 

problems for patients. Opening times for 6 months of the year have been reduced to 10am to 6pm with no 

availability at weekends. 

 

2. The Context: 

I think I need to briefly outline the context of our area to understand the importance to us of local 

unscheduled care services.  

Prestatyn is 75 miles from Tywyn; Over 2 hours travelling by car to get there! Technically our area is 

part of Gwynedd & considered as North Wales.  

In logistical terms we are better considered as being in Mid-Wales as can be seen from the map. Our 

nearest General Hospital is Bronglais at Aberystwyth which is 35 miles (one hour) away. It can be reached 

by public transport but needs careful scheduling to get there and back. Other General Hospitals are at  

· Wrexham 130 miles round trip (over 3 hours),  

· Bangor 140 miles round trip (just under 4 hours) 

· Carmarthen 160 miles round trip (4hrs 40 mins) 

(I include Carmarthen because it is obvious to us that Bronglais Hospital facilities are largely being moved 

to Carmarthen and without surgical backing the A&E will probably be downgraded). 

 

Excluding Bronglais,These are the nearest A&E facilities. (Except Shrewsbury hospital is nearer).  

We have no dual carriageways within 60 miles. 

For comparison Cardiff to Carmarthen round trip is 132 miles (less than 2.5 hours), Cardiff to Hereford is 

less than 120 miles round trip (2.5 hours). Imagine A & E depts. being that far away! Page 17



 

In our area the Golden Hour target is largely not attainable. It can be achieved occasionally using the 

Air Ambulance (known by local nurses & doctors as the Tywyn taxi) which is not even an NHS provided 

means of transport. 

 

3. In this context the Minor Injuries Service (unscheduled care) in South Gwynedd (South Meirionnydd) 

is vitally important. 

 

i. We note the aims of BCUHB from their Equality Impact Assessment published in January 2013 (P18) “The 

proposals aim to provide equality of access and service provision across the region”. We believe this not to 

be achieved in the case of Tywyn & District.  

Actual achievement: Worse services provision to the community. 

 

ii. NB. Tywyn hospital investment is intended only for re-homing of the existing Tywyn Health Centre & 

provision of care for the dying & rehabilitation beds in a new ward. No change for X-ray or minor injuries 

treatment (unscheduled care) is planned. It is a capital project – unlikely to lead to staff & services 

increase). 

 

iii. We wish to acknowledge the dedication, skill & willingness of doctors & nurses to provide necessary 

treatment wherever & whenever they can. One exception is the “Out of Hours Service”. 

 
iv. We do not have the same confidence in managers within the Health Board who often seem to go for short-

term cost cutting & as a result do not demonstrate joined up thinking & benefits for the patients & their 

relatives.  

 

v. Font line staff is not valued, morale is undermined, training & skills are wasted. Only 6 month contracts are 

being offered to nurses in Tywyn. Shorter hours have already been implemented and the future is uncertain. 

Recruitment therefore becomes a problem. 

 

vi. The model of health care being implemented may suit urban environments but it does not suit rural ones. 

The NHS aims to provide higher quality in fewer places with poorer accessibility & availability. Care in the 

Community is the aim but for minor injuries we have to travel further to get unscheduled care outside 

“normal” hours during the week and any time at weekends for 6 months of the year. 

 

vii. There is no dispute about specialist services being concentrated in fewer locations to improve experience & 

skills of surgeons & nursing staff & outcomes for the patients.  

 

viii. We do dispute over withdrawal of local minor injury examination, assessment, diagnosis, possible treatment 

& speedy referral when required. Nurses with training & years of experience in diagnosis are now being 

stopped from doing that. New, 6 month contracts being offered do not include any such training. The result 

is more pressure on A&E Depts. 

 

ix. Joined up thinking should look for local speedy contact, examination & diagnosis using appropriate 

equipment, using telemedicine if necessary, to deal with the maximum number of patients close to home & 

the place of the accident/incident. More serious or difficult cases can be referred quickly to specialist Page 18



centres. The benefits are a reduced need to deal with patients in more expensive specialist centres as well as 

speedier appropriate treatment. 

 

x. The Health Minister statement of July 2013 about reduced MIU hours states “ ….. so that people can be 

confident that they will get the minor injuries service they need from GP surgeries, the out of hours service 

and their community hospitals”. GP surgeries do not provide for unscheduled minor injuries care, are 

available only 4.5 days per week and close for treatment at 5pm. They do not open at weekends. The “out of 

hours” service, because of lack of personnel (sometimes only one doctor between Bangor and our area) & 

distances involved will frequently refer people to A&E services or Alltwen (80 miles round trip). There are 

only 20% of North Wales doctors willing to work “out of hours”. 

 

xi. Patients who receive no treatment, have to travel long distances or have to wait many hours to obtain 

treatment, are not monitored by the NHS. We aim to set up some systems to let patients report these 

instances using social media. Reduced footfall will eventually lead to more reduction & even closure of the 

facility. 

 
xii. What differences would we see if there were targets for door to door treatment? Waiting times door to 

door would be very revealing!  

 

xiii. Can we learn from the Australian Health Service which has enormous rural areas to cover & various methods 

to cope with this? 

 

 Instead of providing equality of access and service provision across the region, we 

believe the situation has been made much worse. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 19



To:  National Assembly for Wales  Petitions Committee 16
th

 November, 2013 

 

Evidence Sessions P-04-479 Tywyn Memorial Hospital X-Ray & Minor Injuries Unit Petition (page 152) 

Brian Mintoft, Lead Petitioner Jennie Windsor Petitioner 

Thank you for your kind attention to details of this petition which we were given the opportunity to convey 

to you at the meeting to which we were invited to attend on the 11
th

 of November at Prestatyn High School, 

North Wales. As we were asked to confirm the points which we felt required further consideration I am now 

writing in this respect; 

The Chairman asked whether we were satisfied that the Government had made adequate attempts to 

provide transport services in relation to accessing unscheduled services.  

A pilot scheme has been put in place for six months from the 21
st
 of October 2013 for an increased 

bus service to Dolgellau departing from Tywyn at 18.50 hrs and 21.00 hrs respectively. Although the 

advertisement of this route suggests that we can access hospitals through the use of the service, general 

hospitals cannot be accessed without considerable planning of connections to other transport services. More 

importantly the fact that the minor injuries unit at Dolgellau closes at 8pm limits the use of the service, in 

order to access the nearest available minor injuries to Tywyn (20 miles away), to the one bus which departs 

from Tywyn at 18.50. This is the only attempt to provide improved transport services to other areas which 

the group is aware of. 

The Chairman asked what contribution we felt that the Community Health Council had made 

towards the provision of Services in this area.  
The group would like to refer the Petitions Committee to a letter written on the 4

th
 March 2013 to 

Lesley Griffiths, Minister for Health and Social Services from Christine Evans, Chair of the Community 

Health Council which states that 'the CHC cannot support the health boards proposal's for minor injury 

services as they are not in the interest of the people who use the service because they limit people's access to 

the services to an unacceptable degree and do not take into account the needs of people living in rural areas 

which represent a significant reduction in the level of service provided to the people living in Gwynedd'  

This is further explained in a letter to Mark Drakeford A.M. written on the 22
nd

 of May 2013 by 

Gordon Donaldson, Chair of North Wales Community Health Council, which states that what is meant by 

the previous statement is 'that the cornerstone of a good quality service is that people can get to it when they 

need it-this is the definition of 'access'. People living in South Gwynedd now have to travel significantly 

greater distances to get to routine services. This is not just a matter of convenience limited access to service 

means that people may delay asking for investigations or treatment and this can lead to less effective and 

more expensive care in the longer term which is more likely for people living in rural communities' 

Appendix 1, the Summary of information and evidence from the Community Health Council to the 

Minister states that 'Getting to the right sort of care, quickly is very important. We are not persuaded that 

GP's provide a service during most of the day and the 'out of hours service' covers the night. We are 

concerned that people, living particularly in South Gwynedd, will not have access to the same level of 

service as people living elsewhere in North Wales' A written Statement of the 17
th

 of July 2013 by The 

Welsh Government in which The Minister refers to the CHC agreement that revised hours of the Minor 

Injuries Service should continue and that any amendments to the Service should be discussed through the 

Service Planning Committee contains a recommendation from the Community Health Council that 'the 

Health Board will need to have plans for implementing and communicating its proposals so that people can 

be confident they will get the Minor Injuries Services they need from G P's surgeries, out of hours services 

and community hospitals'  

The group are not aware, as yet, of the communication or implementation of any of the proposals 

relating to this recommendation. The current situation is that the reduction of the Minor Injuries Service 

exactly coincides with the closure, at the weekend of G P surgeries, so that rather than having access to 

either one or the other we are left with no service at all and the alternative of an 'out of hours' emergency 

service which is under considerable pressure with no more than two G P's on call at any time who are 

expected to cover the huge and not easily accessible areas of North Wales.  

Frequently there is no allocated Ambulance Service on call in this area and consequently Emergency 

Services are despatched from outlying districts distances of 40+ miles away. Earlier in the year we were 

informed that there would be the formation of a Mid-Wales Planning Board in which a committee of Page 20



representatives from Powys teaching Health Board, Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board and Hywel Dda Health 

Board would direct issues in which services may be found to overlap the boundaries of different areas. The 

group have not been informed of any further development of a Mid-Wales Planning Board.  

The Chairman asked what could improve the 'out of hours' service in this area.  
In answer to this the group would like to suggest that the Health Board would inform us what action 

it has taken to bring the 'out of hours service' in line with its proposals and provide equal access to Minor 

Injuries Services in this area particularly during the time in which both the Minor Injuries Service and the G 

P's surgeries are closed. It has been suggested that perhaps both of these services could provide minor injury 

cover for each other when one or the other is unavailable rather than expecting people to travel with such 

difficulty in order to access services from other areas when all the equipment needed and a long standing 

expert team of highly trained staff are already available in this location.  

One of the main concerns of the Staff at the Minor Injuries Unit is that the monitoring of the service 

cannot be undertaken effectively while, at times, the service is unavailable and that the unavailability of the 

service may eventually become its downfall.  

 

Jennie Windsor 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 21



Some facts about Bronglais Hospital.         8/11/13 

Five years ago in Bronglais Hospital there was a ward called Owain Glyndwr which had 32 surgical beds. A couple of 

years later it was to be refitted, half the ward was closed at a time. Reassurances were given that it would reopen fully 

once the refit was completed, but Llewellyn ward (orthopaedics) moved onto one half “while they were refitted.” They 

never did return to their ward, 16 surgical beds were lost and the ward was renamed Ceredig. 

Due Mr Jackson and Mr Edwards retiring there were rumours that colorectal and urology surgery would move down 

south rather than employ more surgeons. Due to pressure by various groups wanting to maintain health care provision 

in Bronglais and mid wales, more surgeons were employed and surgery continued. However, despite new surgeons 

being employed urology and colorectal surgery has been forced down south – it was all part of ‘the plan’ to downgrade 

Bronglais by Hywel Dda. In their ‘consultation’ time they inferred that they wanted to provide only day case surgery in 

BGH, downgrade A&E to level 2, maternity to become midwifery led and close ITU; orthopaedics, colorectal and 

urology were to move south. Pressure from staff was so great that they back tracked almost immediately and said 

‘nothing had been decided, it was only ‘consultation’. It was then agreed to continue colorectal surgery as new 

surgeons were now in place, although reduced numbers of urology patients would have surgery there.  

In the mean time, nursing staff had left from Ceredig ward (both qualified and support staff) but not replaced over a 

period of 3 years or so, leaving staffing levels depleted, not helped by the staff/patient ratio that had been concocted 

that has turned out to be woefully inadequate and does not consistently even meet minimal staffing requirements set 

by NHS. 

Money has only just been released to employ more qualified nurses, by which time they needed 7 full time qualified 

nurses and 9 support staff. Unfortunately not all these posts have been filled and half the ward has now closed, losing 

16 more general and orthopaedic surgical beds. Hywel Dda got what they wanted – no planned major surgery in BGH, 

colorectal and urology surgery have been moved to Camarthen and Haverfordwest and planned orthopaedics has 

been cancelled or moved elsewhere. Initially staff were told it would be for a month, now it is to be closed for 3 

months. Only emergency surgery will take place, this means the surgeons will soon lose their registration as they have 

to perform so many ‘sessions’ to maintain their skills and so be licensed to operate by The Royal College of Surgeons, 

skilled doctors and nurses will be de-skilled further wasting valuable NHS resources. 

The impact of this could mean that A&E at level 3 is under question if there are not any surgeons available to operate. 

A&E could therefore be downgraded (despite millions of £ being spent on the new facilities)  and be used as a 

stabilisation area before patients would be transferred south, ITU and general surgical beds would not be required 

either, so reducing the quality of care provided in mid Wales, so much for “Right care, right place, right time, every 

time.”   

(http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/862/page/50337) 

 

Page 22



P-04-343 Prevent the destruction of amenities on common land - 
Anglesey 

Petition wording 

 

We call upon the Welsh Government to examine ways to prevent the 

destruction of amenities on common land, including for example the Marian 

Common in Llangoed, Ynys Môn. 

Petition raised by: JE Futter 

Petition first considered by Committee: 15 November 2011 

Number of signatures: 156 

 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 23



P-04-343: Atal dinistrio amwynderau ar dir comin—Ynys Môn 

P-04-343: Prevent the destruction of amenities on common land—Anglesey 

 
[1] William Powell: I ask Mr Tom Pollock, lead petitioner on petition P-04-343, to step 

up in a moment, together with Lewis Davies and Dr Karen Pollock. 

 

[2] Croeso cynnes iawn i bawb. 

 

A warm welcome to everyone. 

[3] I ask you, when you have drawn breath, just to introduce yourselves for the record 

and to ensure that the levels are right. I ask Dr Karen Pollock to kick off. 

 

[4] Dr Pollock: I am Karen Pollock. I am here because my father and I were two of the 

petitioners. My father, sadly, died last year. My father’s house abutted Marian common. I am 

also here because I work in the heritage industry and I have an interest in how the beauty and 

archaeology of Wales are promoted, thus preserving the natural environment. 

 

[5] William Powell: We are grateful to you. Mr Pollock? 

 

[6] Mr Pollock: I am Tom Pollock. I am here to support the petition, and to lead the 

petition on behalf of everyone who has signed and supported it in the past. Of course, I am 

also here to support my wife, Karen. 

 

[7] William Powell: Mr Davies? 

 

[8] Mr Davies: Rwy’n gynghorydd sir 

dros ward Seiriol lle mae tir comin y Marian. 

Hefyd, rwyf wedi bod yn athro 

daearyddiaeth, ac wedi byw yn yr ardal ers 

blynyddoedd. Rwy’n nabod yr ardal fel cefn 

fy llaw, a fi yw’r person sydd wedi cael y 

mwyaf o broblemau gyda difrodi’r tir comin 

hwn. 

Mr Davies: I am a county councillor for the 

Seiriol ward where the Marian common land 

is located. I have also been a geography 

teacher, and have lived in the area for years. I 

know the area like the back of my hand, and I 

feel that I am the person who has had the 

most problems with the damage to this 

common land. 

 

[9] William Powell: I will kick off just by asking you, as a group of petitioners, to give a 

little bit more clarity to the committee and colleagues about the level of legal protection that 

is currently afforded under the Commons Act 2006, and in what respects you would like to 

see that protection enhanced through the action of the Assembly. 

 

[10] Mr Pollock: I have a prepared statement, if you would like me to read it. 

 

[11] William Powell: I would be very happy for you to kick off in that way. 

 

[12] Mr Pollock: Just bear with me a moment: I just need to put my other eyes on. 

[Laughter.] 

 

[13] First, we would like to thank the Petitions Committee for this opportunity to put 

forward oral evidence in support of this petition. The online petition contained 156 signatures, 

and followed a paper petition with 320 signatures, which sought to prevent the destruction of 

a specific common, Marian common in Llangoed, Anglesey. This common land is under the 

stewardship of Llangoed and Penmon Community Council and is registered common land, 

with registered rights of common for grazing, estovers and the collection of stone. There is 

registered public right of way for open recreation under the Countryside and Rights of Way 

Act 2000. A length of the Anglesey coastal footpath crosses the common. To recap, in June 

2011, during the nesting season, large swathes of vegetation were destroyed, and earthmovers 

Page 24



changed the topography of the land to create two 7m-wide dirt roads. Photographic evidence 

has been submitted to the committee.   

 

[14] This is an area with a wealth of flora and fauna. Detailed lists compiled by 

environmental experts have been submitted to the committee. The local community, which 

enjoys this beautiful area for recreation, was shocked and saddened by this act, but felt 

powerless to protect the common against further destruction in the light of inadequate laws. 

While section 38 of the Commons Act 2006 should, in theory, prevent the resurfacing of the 

land, it does not prevent the destruction of vegetation and the modification of the landscape 

for vehicular use. Basically, anyone can cut and drive large dirt tracks across any common 

land with impunity. In the worst-case scenarios, little of the natural heritage would be left for 

the enjoyment of local communities.  

 

[15] In the case of Marian common, under the Prescription Act 1832, if no greater 

protection is provided for common land, it is likely that rights of access will be applied for 

after 20 years, and then, of course, vehicular trespass will be legitimised. We feel that the 

law—section 38 of the Commons Act—is inadequate. It makes no provision for the 

protection of the natural environment or protected species. Any individual can plough up or 

denude the plant life and wildlife on common land without fear of prosecution. The example 

above, of Marian common in Llangoed, specifically shows that one way to alter the use of 

common land from common to private is to carry out an unannounced, pre-emptive, legally 

unrestricted change to the land, and then to sit back and wait for any civil legal action to 

restore the land to common determination. All agencies in our case have refused to help the 

Marian community as, being subject to civil law, no-one, including the local county council, 

has the funds to run a civil case against an experienced perpetrator. 

 

[16] We would like to make the following points in support of this petition. Using the 

example of Marian common as a precedent, the petitioners feel that the committee has an 

opportunity to provide all common land in Wales with greater protected legal status. In terms 

of securing and protecting a better environment for the people of Wales, any change in 

legislation would be strongly supported by many. Greater legal protection for common land 

would strengthen the intention behind many areas of natural beauty. Greater legal power 

would devolve power to local communities. Local councils are currently helpless to enforce 

the overwhelming local consensus for the preservation of common land. The economy of 

north Wales is supported by tourism. The beauty of the local heritage draws visitors from 

across the globe. As well as local signatures, the paper petition to protect Marian common 

also contains signatures from visitors enjoying the coastal path. The relaxation of planning 

laws, which comes into effect this autumn in Wales and will allow local people to improve 

their homes, should run hand in hand with new laws that protect common land, and thus the 

local environment, for local communities.  

 

[17] Finally, recently, local people have been extremely frightened by official letters sent 

by the Land Registry on behalf of a certain Lord Treffos in Cheshire, who is reinstating 

claims to exercise archaic, manorial rights to collect tithes and dues from local people. 

Tightening up the laws related to common land would give greater security to those who feel 

under threat from external forces hoping to acquire land for individual gain. 

 

[18] William Powell: I believe that that point was raised by Rhun ap Iorweth with the 

First Minister last Tuesday in Plenary session.  

 

[19] Mr Pollock: Indeed, yes. 

 

[20] William Powell: It would be useful, possibly, for us to engage with him, as the new 

Member for Ynys Môn, on these matters. 

 

Page 25



[21] Mr Davies: Fel cynghorydd sir, rwyf 

wedi cael trafferthion mawr ynghylch 

hawliau tir—hawliau maenorol Treffos ar dir. 

Mae dros 4,500 o hawliau ac maent yn dal i 

ddod i mewn. Mae rhai o hen bobl fregus yn 

dychryn pan maent yn derbyn y llythyron, 

heb wybod yr hanes na dim byd arall am yr 

hawliau. Rwyf wedi bod yn helpu llawer 

ohonynt, a dweud y gwir. 

 

Mr Davies: As a county councillor, I have 

had great difficulty around the land rights—

Treffos manorial rights on land. There are 

over 4,500 rights, and they are still coming 

in. Some older, vulnerable people are scared 

when they receive these letters, without 

knowing the history or anything else about 

these rights. I have been helping a lot of these 

people, to be honest. 

 

[22] William Powell: Potentially, this is coming at a favourable time, with the imminent 

emergence of the environment Bill. This is exactly the background to that, and two of the 

three Members that you have here today are actually involved directly with the Environment 

and Sustainability Committee. Russell George and I serve on that committee, and this is 

something that we could take some of the lead on within the committee, now that we have 

heard testimony at first hand. Russell, do you wish to add anything? 

 

[23] Russell George: No, I am okay for the moment. 

 

11:30 

 

[24] William Powell: To be honest, your statement has been pretty comprehensive in 

addressing a number of the questions that I wanted to bring forward. Dr Pollock, do you have 

anything to add at this stage? 

 

[25] Dr Pollock: I would like to see stronger regulations, but I would also like to see an 

independent arbitrator in places like Marian common, which would be somewhere for people 

to go and put forward their case. There would then be a balanced response, so that commons 

are not just taken out of the community’s usage, really. 

 

[26] William Powell: Could I ask you briefly what engagement there has been with the 

North Wales Police on any issues around criminal activity? I know that in the part of Wales 

that I come from, issues around off-road use have not seen a very active response from 

Dyfed-Powys Police, but that is often because of resource issues and other complexities. I do 

not know whether the council would like to add something in this regard. 

 

[27] Mr Davies: Cefais fy ngalw i’r safle 

hon pan oedd y dinistrio yn digwydd, yng 

nghanol mis Mehefin, yn ystod amser nythu 

bywyd gwyllt. Gofynnais i fab y datblygwr a 

oedd wedi cael caniatâd, ac nid oedd wedi 

cael caniatâd. Bûm mewn cysylltiad â 

swyddog yr heddlu a oedd yn cydweithio 

gyda Chyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru o ran byd 

natur, a dywedodd yntau fod y dystiolaeth i 

gyd wedi mynd, wedi’i dinistrio, ac 

oherwydd hynny, ni allai wneud dim byd. Ni 

allwn ddeall hynny. Roedd cynefin arbennig 

yno, gydag adar yn nythu a phopeth, ac yng 

nghanol mis Mehefin, canol y mis nythu, 

daeth y peiriannau mawr i mewn. Roedd ef 

yn dweud na allai wneud dim byd, am nad 

oedd unrhyw dystiolaeth. Nid oeddwn yn 

hoff iawn o’r ateb hwnnw, a dweud y gwir. 

 

Mr Davies: I was called to this site when the 

destruction was taking place, during the 

middle of June, during the nesting time for 

wildlife. I asked the son of the developer 

whether he had had permission, and he had 

not. I was in contact with the police officer 

who was collaborating with the Countryside 

Council for Wales in relation to wildlife, and 

he said that the evidence had all been 

destroyed, and because of that, he could not 

do anything about it. I did not understand 

that. You had a special habitat there, with 

birds nesting and everything, and in the 

middle of June, in the middle of the nesting 

period, these big machines arrived, and he 

said that he could not do anything about it, 

because there was no evidence. I was not 

very happy with that response, if truth be 

told. 

Page 26



 

[28] William Powell: It sounds to me clearly like an environmental crime that should 

have been taken more seriously. 

 

[29] Mr Pollock: I also wrote, along with several other people, to North Wales Police 

complaining that nothing had been done, especially at the time a four-wheel drive was driven 

up Snowdon, and the gentleman was prosecuted. I thought that would have been a fair case to 

answer on the Marian, because of the lorries and tractors being driven across it. However, a 

so-called investigation was carried out and it was said that there were no grounds for any 

prosecution at all. 

 

[30] Dr Pollock: I do not think that any of us want to stop farmers from carrying out the 

things that they have to do. If you have an off-road vehicle it can go on common land, but I 

think our point was that the whole habitat was destroyed. The whole topography was 

changed. The earth was moved to make these tracks.  

 

[31] Mr Pollock: Yes, they actually constructed a road where there had not been a road. 

 

[32] William Powell: Have you yet engaged with the police and crime commissioner, Mr 

Winston Roddick, on this matter, or is that something that you would welcome us taking 

forward as a committee, potentially? 

 

[33] Dr Pollock: I do not know what Lewis would think as a county councillor. Would 

that be— 

 

[34] Mr Davies: Rwy’n meddwl ei fod yn 

syniad da. Mae’n debygol, fel mae pethau’n 

mynd, y bydd hyn yn digwydd ar dir comin 

mewn lleoedd eraill yng ngogledd Cymru neu 

drwy Gymru hefyd. Dyna beth roeddem ni yn 

dymuno heddiw yn y fan hon oedd sicrhau 

deddfwriaeth gryfach i wneud yn siŵr bod tir 

comin yn cael ei edrych ar ei ôl i’r dyfodol. 

Mae hynny’n bwysig iawn. 

 

Mr Davies I think that that is a good idea. It 

is likely, the way that things are going, that 

this is going to happen on common land in 

other places in north Wales or throughout 

Wales as well. What we wanted to do here 

today was to ensure stronger legislation to 

make sure that common land is looked after 

for the future. That is very important. 

[35] William Powell: I call on Russell George and then the last word will go to Bethan. 

 

[36] Russell George: What conversations have you had with the farming unions, the 

National Farmers Union or the Farmers Union of Wales? 

 

[37] Mr Pollock: We did not have any conversations at all with farming unions, or I did 

not, anyway, because it was deemed that common land was what we were looking at and the 

protection of it. We contacted all the bodies such as, at the time, the Countryside Council for 

Wales, which is now Natural Resources Wales, and the community council that, supposedly, 

was the custodian of the land. Wherever we turned, it was all directed back at us with nobody 

being willing to take a lead on it. In terms of the farming unions, I must admit that it had not 

occurred to me— 

 

[38] Russell George: Perhaps we can write as a committee to seek the views of the 

farming unions on this matter. 

 

[39] William Powell: Yes, we can write to the farming unions on the island, initially. 

 

[40] Russell George: Yes, if they have not yet been engaged with on this, they will have 

views on this. 

Page 27



 

[41] William Powell: We will write to both of them and to Winston Roddick, as that was 

previously welcomed by Councillor Davies. 

 

[42] Mr Pollock: I think that the Winston Roddick idea is quite good; it is just that no-one 

seemed to have any teeth. There are laws in place, but it is like saying that burglary is against 

the law, but if nobody is prosecuted for burglary— 

 

[43] William Powell: Absolutely. There is no credibility, is there? 

 

[44] Mr Pollock: Yes. The law is in disrepute. 

 

[45] Dr Pollock: I think that it is a case of looking forward, rather than looking back at 

what happened, because we cannot really change that now. The shrubs are growing back— 

 

[46] William Powell: It is about trying to learn from the episode. 

 

[47] Dr Pollock: Yes, that is right. We do not want this to happen to us or to other people 

in the future. I think that that is the point. We are not trying to persecute anyone; we would 

just like the law to be that this cannot happen to the natural habitat. 

 

[48] William Powell: Daw’r cwestiwn 

olaf wrth Bethan Jenkins. 

 

William Powell: The final question comes 

from Bethan Jenkins. 

[49] Bethan Jenkins: Roeddwn yn trio 

deall peth o’r cefndir, ac rydych chi wedi 

dweud, Lewis, eich bod wedi cwyno wrth y 

bobl oedd yn gwneud hyn, ac iddynt hwy 

ddweud nad oeddent wedi cael caniatâd. O 

dan adran 41 o’r Ddeddf, mae’n dweud os 

nad yw’r Gweinidogion wedi rhoi hawl 

iddynt fynd ar y tir neu i wneud y gwaith 

penodedig hwnnw, mae’r Gweinidogion yn 

gallu gweithredu yn eu herbyn. A oedd yr 

adran honno wedi cael ei defnyddio mewn 

unrhyw ffordd? Rwy’n trio deall beth sydd 

yn anghywir neu ddim yn digwydd nawr i ni 

fel pwyllgor allu cynnig sut mae gwella’r 

ddeddfwriaeth. A ydym ni’n gallu edrych ar 

dargedu elfennau eraill? I mi, sut mae 

gwneud i hyn weithio yw’r peth pwysicaf. Os 

nad yw’r ddeddfwriaeth yn gweithio, sut 

ydym ni’n gallu sicrhau ei fod yn gweithio? 

 

Bethan Jenkins: I was trying to understand 

some of the background, and you have said, 

Lewis, that you had complained to the people 

who did this, and that they had said that they 

had not received permission. Under section 

41 of the Act, it says that if the Ministers 

have not given them the right to go on the 

land or to do that appointed work, the 

Ministers can take action against them. Was 

that section used in any way? I am trying to 

understand what is wrong or what is not 

happening now so that we as a committee can 

put forward ways of improving the 

legislation. Can we look that targeting other 

elements? To me, making this work is the 

most important thing. If the legislation does 

not work, how can we ensure that it does? 

[50] Mr Davies: Diolch am yr wybodaeth 

honno. Rwyf wedi bod yn aelod o Gyngor 

Cymuned Llangoed a Phenmon ac mae tir 

comin y Marian yn yr ardal hon; rwyf hefyd 

yn gynghorydd sir ers ychydig o 

flynyddoedd. Ar ôl i mi gael fy ngalw yno yn 

ystod y difrodi, cysylltais â phob adran yn y 

cyngor sir roeddwn i’n teimlo y byddai’n 

medru bod o gymorth. Nid oedd un ohonynt 

yn medru rhoi cymorth i mi. Nid oedd y 

cyngor cymuned oedd â hawliau’r tir comin 

Mr Davies: Thank you for that information. I 

have been a member of Llangoed and 

Penmon Community Council, and Marian 

common is in this area; I have also been a 

county councillor for a few years. After I was 

called there when the destruction happened, I 

got into contact with every single department 

in the county council that I thought could be 

of assistance. Not one of them could give me 

any assistance. The community council, 

which had the rights for the common land, 

Page 28



yn medru gwneud dim byd yn erbyn hyn. 

Byddai wedi bod yn braf pe byddwn wedi 

medru codi’r ffôn, ffonio’r cyngor sir a gofyn 

i’r adran orfodaeth yn yr adran gynllunio i 

fynd yno’n syth i hel tystiolaeth ac i wneud 

rhywbeth yn ei gylch. Roeddwn yn bwrw wal 

bob tro roeddwn yn trio gofyn am gymorth 

gan y cyngor sir—dim ond esgusodion a 

gefais, neu roeddent yn dweud wrthyf nad 

oedd ganddynt hawl i wneud hynny. Felly, 

byddwn yn hoffi cryfhau’r rheolau rhwng y 

Cynulliad, y cyngor sir a hefyd y 

cymunedau—bydd rhywbeth fel hyn yn 

digwydd eto i gyngor cymunedau, ac nid oes 

ganddynt y pwerau. Yn y cynghorau sir, mae 

adrannau cyfreithiol a ddylai fedru bod yn 

gymorth i gyngor cymunedol pan fydd pethau 

fel hyn yn digwydd, ond ni ddigwyddodd 

hynny yn yr achos hwn. 

could not do anything against this. It would 

have been good if I could have picked up the 

phone, phoned the county council and asked 

the enforcement department in the planning 

department to go there straight away to 

collect evidence and to do something about it. 

I was hitting a brick wall every time that I 

asked for assistance from the county 

council—there were just excuses or they 

would say that they did not have the right to 

do that. So, I would like to strengthen the 

regulations between the Assembly, the 

county council and community councils—

something like this will happen again to 

community councils, and they do not have 

the powers. In county councils, there are 

legal departments that should be able to 

provide assistance to community councils 

when things like this happen, but it did not 

happen in this instance. 

 

[51] Bethan Jenkins: Felly, fe fyddech 

yn anghytuno â’r hyn y mae’r Gweinidog yn 

ei ddweud yn ei lythyr bod y pwerau yn 

ddigon cryf fel y maent?  

 

Bethan Jenkins: So, you would disagree 

with what the Minister says in his letter that 

the powers are sufficiently strong at present? 

[52] Mr Davies: Nid ydynt yn hanner 

digon cryf 

Mr Davies: They are not half as strong as 

they should be. 

 

[53] William Powell: Diolch o galon am 

ddod y bore yma.  

 

William Powell: Thank you very much for 

coming along today. 

[54] It has been really helpful for us to gain an understanding at first hand from your 

testimony of what the specific concerns are, and how, in a number of different ways, we can 

take this forward. Given the time constraints this morning and the programme that we need to 

fit into, we need to defer consideration of your evidence, but we have a number of actions 

coming out of this morning anyway. We will be considering the evidence in the round at our 

meeting on 26 November. Thank you very much indeed for what you have contributed today 

to our consideration of this petition.  

 

 

Page 29



P-04-496 Through Schools 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to introduce guidance for local education authorities on school mergers and 

closures involving all-through schools (ie schools which provide primary, 

secondary and post 16 education on the same site). 

We ask such guidance to: 

 prevent the creation of dual/multi site schools, involving all-through 

schools, where school sites are more that 10miles travelling distance 

apart; 

 prevent the creation of dual/multi site schools, involving all-through 

schools, as a precursor to relocation to a new single site school, unless 

the new single site schools is able to provide an all-through education; 

 recognise parental and learner preference for all-through schools and 

require local authorities to meet demand for such schools where 

demand is sufficient; 

 promote the establishment and continuation of all-through schools in 

Wales; 

 ensure that no learners, as result of a school closure or merger 

involving an all-through school, should be forced to travel for more 

than 45 minutes to access suitable alternative faith education 

provision.  

Petition raised by: Dawn Dox 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 24 September 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 10 

 

Agenda Item 2.4

Page 30



P-04-496 Ysgolion Pob Oed 

P-04-496 Through Schools 
 

[1] William Powell: I ask Dawn Docx and Anna Gresty of the St Brigid’s Action Group 

to stand-by: we will just organise the nameplates and then we will get under way. 

 

[2] Croeso cynnes. It is great to see you again, Dawn, and to meet you, Anna. I wonder 

whether you would introduce yourselves briefly just to check the sound levels and also give 

us a brief update on developments, which I know have been broadly positive and widely 

covered in the last couple of weeks with regard to the specific issues in your campaign. 

 

[3] Ms Docx: Thank you very much. Diolch yn fawr for the opportunity to be able to 

give some background to our concerns, as well as an update. My name is Dawn Docx, I am 

the lead petitioner. I am also the parent of a pupil at St Brigid’s School.  

 

[4] Ms Gresty: I am Anna Gresty, and I am the parent of a pupil at St Brigid’s and a 

member of the action group.  

 

[5] William Powell: Thank you. 

 

[6] Ms Docx: Since the consultation closed on the proposed merger of the two schools—

obviously, we will talk about that in more detail later—the results of that consultation have 

been considered by Denbighshire County Council, and it has decided not to go ahead with 

phase 1, which was the closure of two schools, which are over 10 miles apart, and combining 

them to be, in effect, one school, but on two sites. Its intention is to go forward with the 

phase 2 of the consultation, which is to close both schools once they have built the new 

school on a different site. Thank you very much.  

 

[7] William Powell: Excellent. Please refresh your glasses with the water. So, clearly, in 

that case, there has been significant progress in terms of the local issue at this stage, in terms 

of getting that further involvement. 

 

[8] Ms Docx: Yes, I think that what we are asking for is Welsh Government guidance 

around school mergers and closures—not just for St Brigid’s, but for other schools as well. 

 

[9] William Powell: Absolutely. I was just going to ask you to clarify the points that 

you think are of wider application across Wales, particularly, for example, in situations 

where there is not such a concerted, articulate group as has assembled around the St Brigid’s 

case to protect school communities and wider communities against something inappropriate 

happening as the result of a particular bureaucratic decision.  

 

[10] Ms Docx: Thank you. We particularly wanted to focus on through schools, which, as 

you are aware, are primary, secondary and sixth form, because, obviously, having pupils 

aged from three to 19 brings additional complexities to any of these changes. 

 

[11] William Powell: Like pastoral things and all sorts of other matters. 

 

[12] Ms Docx: We believe that this guidance could be necessary for other schools, and not 

just through schools, but schools throughout Wales that may be facing closures and mergers. 

We do understand that there has to be development and improvement in the infrastructure of 

our education establishments, and we do know about the guidance that surrounds the twenty-

first century schools funding, but we believe that it is not strong enough, because—dare I say 

it?—in their dash for cash, local authorities may well be tempted to produce a plan with an 

eye to the future, or the vision of the new school that they wish to build, with very little 

Page 31



consideration for the impact that it has on the current pupils or, indeed, on pupils moving into 

the schools. The whole process takes years, and these are years that we do not get back for 

our children’s education. 

 

[13] We are using St Brigid’s as a case study, as you know, and it is a very popular and 

oversubscribed school, very much like Prestatyn High. Unlike Prestatyn High School, 

however, we have not been able to have the capital to expand and to meet that demand. As 

parents, we found ourselves with this plan that Denbighshire County Council had created, 

where the idea was that it would close both schools and then reopen on the same two sites, 

over 10 miles apart, and with very little consideration of the practicalities of this arrangement. 

So, when we ask how it would work, whether the children would be bussed from one site to 

another, and whether the teachers would be driving up and down in their cars, the answer that 

we received was that it would be up to the new headteacher and the governors to work out 

how that would work in practice. We do not think that that was good enough, really. 

 

11:45 

 

[14] We also believe that there was very little consideration of children with special 

educational needs or medical needs. Although an equality impact assessment needs to be 

undertaken, it certainly was not developed to the extent that it should be—and this is why 

Anna is with me. Anna has a son, Jake, who is seven— 

 

[15] Ms Gresty: Do you want me to— 

 

[16] Ms Docx: Yes; thanks. 

 

[17] Ms Gresty: Go on, then; I will. 

 

[18] Jake is seven and has a life-limiting illness. So, obviously, his medical needs are quite 

great, and the equality impact statement had no provision for how things would change or 

how his needs would be met. When I asked the question at the consultation meeting of how 

they would meet his additional needs, they just said, ‘Well, this is why we’re here’. So, I said, 

‘Well, I’m asking this question now’, and there was no attempt to engage with children with 

medical needs or special educational needs, and there was no consideration given to those 

children. I think that they needed to look at how they were going to meet those needs, because 

I know that St Brigid’s meets the needs of children quite well in a through-school setup. It 

needs to be considered. 

 

[19] William Powell: In any management of change of that sort, children with specific 

conditions are the most vulnerable to suffer, are they not? 

 

[20] Ms Gresty: Yes, and they will suffer. They just did not seem to understand that. 

 

[21] Bethan Jenkins: Did they say that they did not have guidance from Government? 

What was the reason given for why they did not come up with that initially, so that you had to 

prompt them for an answer? 

 

[22] Ms Gresty: They did not give any sort of reason. I asked quite a long, convoluted 

question about how they were going to meet all these different needs, and when it was 

minuted, it was, ‘A parent asked how they were going to interact with parents’. I did not ask 

that; I asked how they were going to meet specific needs, and there was no understanding of 

the requirement by the Welsh Government to meet the needs of children with additional 

needs. 

 

[23] Bethan Jenkins: Where has that gone now? Where does that sit now in the scheme 

Page 32



of things for the development and progression of the discussions? 

 

[24] Ms Docx: The intention now is to move to phase 2 of the consultation, in which they 

will consult on the idea of building a new, combined school on a different site. What we 

would want to see is much more careful consideration of some of these issues that we have 

raised and have put in writing during the first phase of the consultation, so that we can see 

that the issue is being addressed, rather than it being left to petitioners to try to prompt the 

local council regarding the need to think about these things.  

 

[25] We note the response from the Minister, and he obviously thinks that the code is 

sufficient. However, our experience is that it is not really sufficient and that more needs to be 

available for local authorities, which have the ultimate responsibility. However, it needs to be 

able to show that they have considered these things, not simply at the end of a consultation 

process when we have explained it all to it.  

 

[26] We also are very pleased to see that the Minister recognises that through-school 

education is very valuable. Although, maybe, it is not the place of the Welsh Government to 

actively promote it, given that a number of through schools are being built or exist in west 

Wales, we think that it is right that we promote the benefits of through schools and the fact 

that it makes a real difference to pupils moving into year 7. They do not have a dip in 

educational attainment.  

 

[27] William Powell: The issues of transition do not exist in the same way, do they? 

 

[28] We have the opportunity to represent the views that you have expressed today and, 

when we have a transcript of today’s session, we will feed that back to the Minister. It would 

also be helpful for us if you could, together with colleagues, reflect on your response to the 

Minister. You have given an oral response today, but if you could give a considered view, 

taking into account the views of other campaigners and others involved in the petition, it 

would help things considerably.  

 

[29] Bethan Jenkins: What has the Welsh Local Government Association said on this? 

Have you talked to the WLGA? Obviously, to play devil’s advocate for a minute, the Welsh 

Government would say that, if it was to micromanage and be so prescriptive, where would it 

start and end on these things, because education budgets are given to local government to 

administer. So, have you spoken to the WLGA to see what is done in other parts of Wales, so 

that best practice can be shared? 

 

[30] Ms Docx: No, we have not, but that is a useful suggestion; thank you.  

 

[31] William Powell: That is something that we as a committee can also consider doing in 

the next phase, after 26 November. Russell, you have been very patient.  

 

[32] Russell George: My question was very similar to the one that Bethan asked. 

Ultimately, these are decisions for the local authority and, once again, playing devil’s 

advocate, what can happen or what some people argue is that too much guidance from Welsh 

Government can be restrictive for the local authority, particularly because the geography in 

different areas across Wales is so different. What are your views on that? 

 

[33] Ms Docx: The difficulty is that there are certain directions, such as the need to 

remove surplus school places, and the letter states that the focus has to be on educational 

achievement. We would say that we have a school here that is achieving really excellent 

results and yet, because of the surplus school places issue at the other school involved in the 

merger, they are being overridden by the need to get the money and therefore address surplus 

places, and it has not been thought out with regard to the way in which this will work out here 

Page 33



and now for the pupils involved at both schools. When we took the wider petition out, we got 

3,300 signatures. 

 

[34] William Powell: Clearly, this is an issue of concern, not just in your own community, 

but potentially, as you said, across Wales.  

 

[35] Ms Docx: Yes, it could be. 

 

[36] William Powell: If there is a final message that you would like to leave us with today 

for us to take away and to inform our consideration of the evidence on 26 November, which is 

when we shall do that, we would be very grateful for you to share it with us now.  

 

[37] Ms Docx: It is really about having a broader consideration than is in the guidance 

now. There is also the matter of the complexities of through schools, and the fact that we do 

not want to do away with through schools, because we see the advantages of them. It is a 

question of whether that is taken into account when closures and mergers are considered.  

 

[38] William Powell: Do you have any view on the weight given to the views of diocesan 

authorities in the case of faith schools, and whether any additional guidance or support might 

be helpful there, because I realise that that is factor in your particular case?  

 

[39] Ms Docx: We would not know the answer to that. With our case, we get the 

impression that the opinion of the two diocese is very important, and they are pushing for the 

concept of the faith school, which does not seem to have the same general enthusiasm from 

parents.  

 

[40] William Powell: That is useful.  

 

[41] Diolch yn fawr am ddod heddiw ac 

am y sesiwn y bore yma.  

Thank you for coming today and for the 

session this morning.  

 

[42] We are extremely grateful to you for having come here to Prestatyn High School to 

speak to us in person. We will take that forward, because of time constraints, at our next 

meeting on 26 November. We look forward very much to receiving your correspondence in 

the meantime, in terms of a fuller response to the letter that we received from Huw Lewis. 

Diolch yn fawr iawn.  

 

 

Page 34



P-04-432 : Stop the Army Recruiting in Schools 

Petition wording:  

We call on the National Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to 

recommend that the armed forces should not go into schools to recruit. 

Britain is the only country in the European Union that allows a military 

presence in its schools.  Britain is the only country of the 27 European Union 

countries to recruit 16-year-old children to the armed forces.  The armed 

forces target their recruitment in schools in the most deprived areas of 

Wales. 

Petition raised by:  The Fellowship of Reconciliation 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  6 November 2012 

Number of signatures:  374  Associated petition collected approximately 
700 signatures 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 2.5

Page 35



Trafod y Broses o Gasglu Tystiolaeth 

Discussion of Evidence Gathering 
 

[1] William Powell: The petition under discussion is P-04-432, Stop the Army 

Recruiting in Schools. We have the opportunity to discuss evidence that was previously 

gathered from Cymdeithas y Cymod and its colleagues. We also had a really useful informal 

session this morning with a group of year 10 and year 11 pupils here at Prestatyn High 

School. It would be useful if any of those of you who were present or, indeed, those of you 

who were not present but would like to contribute, feel able to do so. Do we have a roving 

microphone? I see not. However, there is an opportunity for folk to step up if they would like 

to make a contribution. I will ask Bethan to kick off on this issue. There was a particularly 

strong response this morning to the issue, and it was really useful to hear from pupils in years 

10 and 11 about their experience of the public service qualification that you are pursuing. It 

would also be useful to hear about the Kinmel camp and some of the experiences that you 

have had there, and some of the benefits that we heard about this morning.  

 

[2] Bethan Jenkins: There are a few people here from this morning. It was good to have 

the debate, and it would be really good if we could talk to lots of different schools, but we do 

not have the time. I thank the pupils. It was interesting that some people thought that they had 

been influenced by the army coming in to schools, but others thought differently, and just said 

‘As long as I’m aware of what the army is saying, I’m able to make my own decision’. Some 

people thought that they were too young to make a career choice at 16, but others thought that 

they were able to, so we had varying opinion. It was interesting that, when the army comes 

into the school, it was more glossy, telling people how great it is, but when questioning the 

soldiers who were talking to them, they were able to ask more probing questions about 

conflict and how it would affect morale. What students would potentially benefit from is more 

of a balanced approach at the start, from when the army comes in, so that they know exactly 

what they are doing. We also found that pupils might want to talk to other professions within 

the public sector, such as firemen, policemen or other professions, so that they could 

understand what other job prospects they had, instead of just the army. I am not sure that they 

all enjoyed the gruelling sporting exercises.  

 

[3] William Powell: No, I think that there was a touch of the boot camp about some of 

the things that they had to do.  

 

[4] Bethan Jenkins: That is what they have to do. I have my own views on this, but what 

is most important is that the young people feel that they are not being told something that is 

not a reflection of reality. We need to look at that within the whole educational structure, so 

that if one profession is given precedent over another, how the school and the school 

management team would cope with that and how they would make sure that all students are 

given a balanced approach, because when we go in as politicians we cannot be party political 

in schools. So, you would expect the army to take a more pragmatic approach in saying, ‘Yes, 

conflict happens and mental health problems happen when people go into the army.’ Children 

do not want to be patronised and be told that it is all perfect when it is not. I think it was a 

really useful session to have.  

 

[5] William Powell: It was very useful indeed. I think the message we heard was that 

there was a clear sort of aura of glamour around some of the people going in, dressed in their 

fatigues, talking about some of the travel opportunities that they had and the world that it had 

opened up. However, there was a sense that if there had been input from either the British 

Legion or Combat Stress or a more rounded picture given, it would have been more valid. 

Having said that, when there was a vote taken—I think there were about eight or nine people 

in the room this morning—we had just one expressing concern about the army coming in. 

Otherwise, it was pretty much unanimous that that focus group of young people that we were 

Page 36



speaking to this morning was strongly in favour of the army having the opportunity to come 

to set out its stall. However, as Bethan said, there was a feeling that it would be great to have 

a wider slice of people across public services and, indeed, as you pointed out or maybe you 

want to open up now, Russell, opportunities to meet people with an entrepreneurial 

background to look at other career paths and opportunities.  

 

12:00 

 

[6] Russell George: I want to thank the students who were in the meeting this morning. I 

was very grateful for your time as well. However, from my perspective, what I picked up is 

that all the students we met this morning wanted to take part in the exercise. They wanted to 

take part, but, for me, it was a bit of an eye-opener, in terms of where the other professions 

are. Why are they not coming into schools? To my mind, perhaps, I would be more persuaded 

to say that rather than it being a negative campaign highlighting that the army should not go 

to schools, there should be more of a positive look at this and at where the other professions 

are. Perhaps there is a role for us as a committee to contact the Minister on those grounds and 

ask him to state that there should be a balanced approach in getting all professions in to give 

their views, really.  

 

[7] Bethan Jenkins: I think that is where the word ‘recruit’ comes in. I know that there 

has been a dispute around it, but if one profession gets more access to children it surely then 

will lead to them considering that prospect, because we were talking to the children about 

careers options and some people had not accessed the careers service in the school. So, if they 

are not, perhaps, yet thinking about alternatives, such as looking into the science professions 

or other things that might interest them, then there may be a skew in the statistics showing 

that more young people join the army, if that is the main option for them in the school 

structure. That would be the concern, because it is not something to take lightly. At the end of 

the day, it is a very serious profession in terms of the fact that you go into combat. It is not to 

be shunned. I think, as a committee, we need to look at all the implications of when these 

professions come into school and how that impacts on different children, because some young 

people have formulated opinions and they know what they want to do when they are older, 

while others do not have a clue and want to be guided and to have that advice. It is a really 

important time for them. It is something that we have to take really seriously, I think.  

 

[8] Russell George: What came out of it was that nobody felt that they were being 

recruited, which is very much the wording of the petition, although I take the points that 

Bethan has raised now about what recruiting means if no other professions are coming in. I 

think it would be good, Chair, if we offered that invitation again to any students, young 

people or teachers here who want to give their views on this. We would very much welcome, 

would we not, Chair, their views? 

 

[9] William Powell: Absolutely, I wonder whether you could help us at this point, as you 

facilitated the session this morning.  

 

[10] Mr Barons: I am Alex Barons, an associate senior leader in the school. I completely 

agree with a lot of the points that you have raised about getting other groups in to promote 

their professions. The school has a lot of freedom in terms of how much it gets people in to do 

things. The army is very willing and keen to come in; therefore, there is a lot of opportunity to 

come in because it is willing to do so. 

 

[11] William Powell: It also has a budget appropriate for that. 

 

[12] Mr Barons: Absolutely, whereas getting other services in—especially other public 

services—can be trickier. If businesspeople have to give up their time, it costs them money 

and that can be difficult. In this school, particularly, we have good relationships with a lot of 

Page 37



local entrepreneurs who come in and provide entrepreneurial workshops for the pupils before 

they go out to work experience and things like that. Those are often very successful. So, they 

have some opportunities. However, it would be very helpful for people who work as careers 

advisers and those who co-ordinate ‘Careers and the world of work’ in schools to have 

guidance or framework from the Government to say which people should be coming into 

schools. 

 

[13] Russell George: What other professions did you have in—for example, the police 

and so on? 

 

[14] Mr Barons: All pupils have regular contact with our police liaison officer. She 

comes into the school regularly. It is the difference between someone coming in to recruit or 

coming in to give information. Even when the army is in doing its army day, it is not so 

much, ‘Here we are, come and join us’, but it is more that it provides information. 

 

[15] William Powell: It is an informational, promotional role. 

 

[16] Mr Barons: Mainly, we have local entrepreneurs and businesspeople coming in as 

part of the Dynamo project. Have you come across that? 

 

[17] Russell George: I was a Dynamo role model in my previous life. 

 

[18] Mr Barons: So, we have the Dynamo project, which brings people into our school to 

talk to pupils about life in business and how they have got to where they are. They are usually 

successful people talking about how they have achieved that success. It tries to build that 

entrepreneurial spirit among pupils. It can, otherwise, be tricky to get people to come in to 

promote their professions. 

 

[19] William Powell: Do you sometimes have a careers-focused day, every year or second 

year, where you try to get a wide range of people from different walks of life in, or is there no 

space for that within the curriculum? 

 

[20] Mr Barons: It is certainly not something that we do in this school at this time. Maybe 

it is something that we could look into. It can be difficult in terms of fitting everything in—in 

terms of time in the curriculum—to get a specific careers day in, but it is certainly something 

that we can look into. 

 

[21] William Powell: It is certainly something that I saw working well in other schools 

when I was in the profession, so it is worth taking that on board.  

 

[22] Excellent, we have another contributor. Could you introduce yourself? 

 

[23] Ms Major: I am Daisy and I am a year 11 pupil. I have not taken the public services 

diploma so I have not done the army day, but before we went on work experience last year, 

we had a day when we had people from different career backgrounds coming in. As part of 

that, we had somebody from the ambulance service coming in. I think that it was in year 7 or 

8 when we had a day with the Crucial Crew, when police officers and firemen came in and we 

spoke to them. So, we have had access to other communities, apart from the army.  

 

[24] William Powell: That is good, because in the group that we met this morning, there 

were potentially two or three recruits to the police service, or people who would be keen to go 

that way. 

 

[25] I ask those of you who have just joined us to take a seat and to introduce yourselves 

so that we can hear your views. 

Page 38



 

[26] Mr Collings: I am Sebastian Collings. I am a pupil at this school and I am on the 

school  council. 

 

[27] Ms Hinson: I am Holly Hinson and I am one of the head girls at the school. I am in 

the sixth form and I am on the school council. 

 

[28] Mr Collings: While we are on the issue of stopping army recruitment in school— 

 

[29] William Powell: That was the wording drawn from the petition. 

 

[30] Mr Collings: Personally, I think that it is a good thing, because it would not be as 

strong as it is today if it did not recruit. It has to go somewhere to find people to go in the 

army. I agree with what you are saying in that it should not be forced upon students, but it 

should be providing a realistic view of what the army will be like. I have done it myself as I 

used to take part in the combined cadet force in Ruthin and we went to train with the 

territorial army and things like that. I think that they should do more realistic forms of army 

recruitment, giving people the choices in schools to go to experience it themselves, as I did. 

We camped with the proper TA, which opened my eyes to see that it was not for me, but if 

other people had the opportunity to do that, they could decide for themselves whether it 

would be for them, instead of just doing a day on the field that does not really show you what 

the army is really about. 

 

[31] William Powell: I believe that the CCF can lead to away days and opportunities of 

field trips over two or three days, and can involve a meaningful range of activities. 

 

[32] Mr Collings: Yes, there are promotions and real-life sorts of scenarios and so on, 

which are really helpful. 

 

[33] Ms Hinson: I think that it is really good because not everyone learns in a classroom. I 

do not know what it is, but I now see people getting on the bus wearing army clothes. 

 

[34] Mr Barons: It is the Kinmel camp. 

 

[35] William Powell: Perhaps they are the Kinmel camp cadet contingent. 

 

[36] Ms Hinson: Yes, they do that. They get GCSEs and qualifications out of it, which 

they would not normally get in school, so it is really quite helpful. Also, in our sixth form, we 

are taken on days. For example, I did a Pure Potential course. You had to sign up for if you 

thought that you could meet the target grade. That had different workplaces. People can go to 

the sixth form to get A-levels, but they still do not have to go to university. We realise that 

you can use them to start school-leaver programmes and so on. I want to study accounting at 

university, but people on the course told me that if I met their grade, I could leave school 

straight away and go with them and get the qualifications and stuff. So, it does help. School 

does take us on a lot of things. I do not think that the army should stop recruiting because it is 

really handy. 

 

[37] Mr Barons: It is important to actually have a range. I think that having the army in 

can be quite helpful, but I think that the main point that seems to come out a lot in this 

discussion is that there has to be a realistic view; it cannot be glamorised. It has to be a kind 

of open and honest thing. I think that that is very true, but I think that that is also very true of 

all professions. Anyone who comes into a school tries to promote their profession. I tell them 

all how wonderful teaching is, and how it is the best career in the world and that they should 

do it. I love my job, but it is not going to be for everyone. We all have a tendency to 

glamorise what we do, and that will be difficult to rule out completely. However, there has to 

Page 39



be guidance on who should come in to promote their career choices in school. 

 

[38] Russell George: To what extent are teachers present on the course, because they 

should do the check and balance? Were you a part of the careers lesson when the army came 

in, or were you on the course? There is no doubt that you must have a responsibility and feel 

that the young people must also have a balanced view. 

 

[39] Mr Barons: Absolutely. I do not teach the public services course and I have not been 

on the army day to see this, but obviously I think that there is a responsibility on us as 

teachers to provide a balanced view. I agree with that. 

 

[40] Russell George: So, you have to tease that out. So, if you feel that they are not being 

balanced, it is your duty to tease that out. Is that how you would feel that the teaching 

profession should police it? 

 

[41] Mr Barons: When you are dealing with teenagers, you will know that they are quite 

savvy at teasing it out for themselves. That has to be said. They are quite good at it. Given 

that we are in an era of such mass media, people and teenagers can either see the glamorous 

side of the army or they can make a judgment for themselves from things that they can see on 

the internet or television about the not-so-glamorous side of the army. 

 

[42] William Powell: On the news also. 

 

[43] Mr Barons: Therefore, the pupils are very aware of the non-glamorous side of it. If 

they want to ask about it, if they have a concern over it, and if they are seriously considering a 

career in the army and are thinking, ‘This is a concern’, teenagers are savvy enough to ask. 

 

[44] Russell George: The reason I ask is because I was a Dynamo role model, and I 

noticed that there would be differences between schools and teachers. If they felt that the 

young people were not taking a balanced view, or if they felt that I was not giving a balanced 

view, some teachers would help to tease that out of me. However, in some schools a teacher 

would sit at the back and not seek to be involved. I felt that that was wrong on their part, 

because they did not know who I was. They could have been there to do the checks and 

balances— 

 

[45] William Powell: To kind of moderate the session, really, in a sense. 

 

[46] Mr Barons: If it was me, as a teacher, I would be interrogating, trying to push you to 

kind of tease these things out. That is what we would call an effective model of how to do it 

in terms of careers. It would be effective of the teacher to push these points. 

 

[47] Russell George: That is good to hear. 

 

[48] Bethan Jenkins: I suppose that the issue on guidance is what I agree with because 

we know from research that we have done before that the army will go into certain areas of 

Wales, or certain schools. We know from freedom of information requests that we have done 

before that it would go into more deprived areas. Whether you think that is a political decision 

or not is something for another day, I suppose, but it is about cautious approaches. We want 

to make sure that people from all schools and children from all backgrounds get the same 

treatment and the same access to information as everyone else, and that the army is not 

ringing you up, saying, ‘We want to come to your school’, because it knows that there is a 

facility nearby that will make it easier to recruit people afterwards, potentially. That is my 

concern as a politician. 

 

[49] Mr Barons: That is, I think, why it is really good that this petition has come before 

Page 40



this committee, because, hopefully, as a result of that, there may be some guidelines as to 

what schools should do in terms of the army, but maybe also other public services in terms of 

them coming in. That would be something that, as schools, we would appreciate. 

 

[50] Bethan Jenkins: Did you want to say something on that? 

 

[51] Mr Collings: I was just going to say that the army, as far as careers go, is the only 

one actually pushing it, actually going for it—the police, the ambulance and fire services do 

not seem to be pushing it to try to recruit people into their professions. However, the army 

seems to be doing it a lot more than— 

 

[52] William Powell: That is going to be guided partly by its need for new recruits. 

 

[53] Mr Collings: It is clearly doing it a lot more than any other profession out there, 

which is good in some respects, but I think that the other professions should be enlightening 

students like us as to what the roles are, because I do not know of half of them, and we should 

really know of them, should we not? 

 

[54] William Powell: Daisy, do you have any reflections? You were kind enough to open 

the battle from the student point of view. 

 

[55] Ms Major: I just think that we do have access to other things, like I said, with the 

ambulance service coming in for work experience day and crucial careers and stuff. However, 

I think that there is an aspect where the army is glorifying it and making it look like it is better 

than it is. If it brought along people who could explain the risks of entering the army and the 

things that could happen, that would make it more balanced. 

 

[56] William Powell: It would be a truer picture, effectively. Maybe we should leave the 

last word to Holly, as one of the head girls here and part of the leadership team. 

 

[57] Ms Hinson: I just do not think that they should stop, really, because the more that I 

go on trips and stuff and find out what more is going on, the more that I want to do stuff, so I 

think that it is a good thing that it is coming to school. It is good for most children. It is true 

that it does not show the bad side, because I remember doing Army Day on our back field and 

it was loads of fun— 

 

12:15 

 

[58] Mr Collings: There was a bouncy castle. 

 

[59] Ms Hinson: There was a bouncy castle, was there not? It was like an assault course. 

We were all in teams, and we all won prizes and stuff. It was not like a real army. 

 

[60] William Powell: Diolch yn fawr 

iawn. Diolch yn fawr iawn i Ysgol Uwchradd 

Prestatyn. 

 

William Powell: Thank you very much. 

Thank you very much to Prestatyn High 

School. 

[61] Thank you to Prestatyn High School for all its hospitality this morning and for 

allowing us to come to invade the library. I saw a notice on the door saying that one or two 

activities had been postponed or relocated— 

 

 

Page 41



P-04-514 A Welsh clean coal and/or renewable energy power 
station instead of the proposed Wylfa B nuclear plant at 
Anglesey 

Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 

work with the new owners of Wylfa B, Hitachi, to encourage the use of clean 

Welsh coal or our other plentiful supplies of viable technologies/resources 

instead of a dangerous nuclear power plant.  

 

In a report on clean coal technology from the 2010 XXI World Energy 

Congress in Montreal Canada, Hitachi state that they are developing a full 

portfolio of new clean coal technologies aimed at further efficiency 

improvement, 90% CO2 reduction, and near-zero emissions of other 

pollutants. As world leaders in clean coal technology, why don’t Hitachi work 

alongside the Welsh Government to implement this technology at Wylfa B 

instead of an archaic and poisonous nuclear plant station like the failed 

Fukushima plants they helped to build? 

 

Additional information: 

Nuclear plants are a dangerous and uneconomical method of producing 
electricity, with a short unviable operational time span which costs tax 
payers tens of billions in development, subsidies and decommissioning 
costs. As well as being vulnerable to attack and natural disasters as seen in 
Fukushima, nuclear power has known health risks. A major German 
government report showed increased rates of childhood cancers and 
leukaemia around nuclear sites. With no known method of disposing of the 
nuclear waste, it will also contaminate the planet for thousands of years. 
 
Welsh clean coal, gas, hydrogen, solar, wave, tidal, hydro, Maglev wind, geo 

thermal, refuse incineration, anaerobic digestion, biomass or a combination 

of all of these could be implemented at Anglesey and elsewhere instead of 

nuclear power. Ynys Mon’s PAWB manifesto states that, whilst the current 

Wylfa only has up to 600 workers, up to 3650 new jobs could be found by 

developing local renewable energy projects alone. 

 

Petition raised by: Sovereign Wales 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 26 November 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 104 

 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 42



P-04-515 Increase Funding for Welsh Bus Services 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to provide increased funding to bus services so that it adheres to its own 

policy aims of reducing poverty and exclusion, ensuring that people across 

Wales are not socially or economically disadvantaged by their location. 

 

Additional information: This petition aims to increase the level of funding 

given to hard to reach, and disadvantaged areas of Wales. A number of local 

authority areas have had to reduce the frequency and range of bus routes 

since the Regional Transport Services Grant was introduced. This has left 

some residents isolated, especially on weekends and bank holidays. 

 

Petition raised by: Daniel Thomas 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 26 November 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 246 

 

 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 43



P-04-516 Make political science compulsory in education 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to make political science a compulsory part of the school curriculum. 

 

Petition raised by: Mark Griffiths 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 26 November 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 12 

 

 

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 44



P-04-517 Stop the Welsh Assembly Government from 
bringing in the monitoring of electively home educated 
children under the guise of safeguarding 

Petition wording: 

Serious case reviews have shown that the authorities not elective home 
education have let children down. The government signed up to the rights of 
the child in 2004 which states that they will consult with children before 
changing things that effect them. They are not consulting our children who 
have already shown last year that they are against monitoring in a different 
consultation. We, therefore, call upon the National Assembly for Wales to 
urge the Welsh Government to stop bringing in the monitoring of electively 
home educated children under the guise of safeguarding. 
 

Petition raised by: New Foundation Home Education 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 26 November 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 864 

 

 

Agenda Item 3.4

Page 45



P-04-518 Universal Free School Lunches 

Petition wording: 

We the undersigned call on the Welsh Government to introduce a free hot 
lunch scheme for all children in reception, year 1 and year 2. 
 
Additional Information: 
A number of studies have shown that hunger affects concentration, and that 
children who are well nourished perform better at school. Extending free 
school meals will also help families meet the cost of living as it has been 
estimated that the average school meal costs parents £437 per year for each 
child.The UK Government has announced that all five-to-seven year-old 
pupils in English state schools will receive free school meals. We believe the 
Welsh Government should do likewise. 
 

Petition raised by: Jane Dodds 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 26 November 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 14 

 

 

Agenda Item 3.5

Page 46



P-04-483 A plain English /Cymraeg clir policy for all Welsh 
Assembly and Government communications 

Petition wording: 
We call on the National Assembly for Wales to develop a plain 
English/Cymraeg Clir policy for all their communications, and separately call 
on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 
develop such a policy so that the language used is clear and understandable 
at all times. 
 
Double speak, unnecessary lawyer speak and the use of acronyms and 
unintelligible jargon, both in written form and verbally in the Senedd 
chamber, discourages politics in Wales from being as inclusive and 
accessible as it should be. A plain language policy would help to encourage 
more interest and participation in the politics of Wales by all. The policy 
should also apply to legal documents/bills/acts as long as they remain 
legally sound. As a good example of clear understandable communication, 
Canolfan Bedwyr’s Cymraeg clir template could be used as the Welsh 
language equivalent to the plain English template, so that the use of Welsh, 
whether in original reports or as translated material, is relevant, modern and 
understandable, and not merely a literal unintelligible slavish dictionary 
translation of the English version. There is a duty on the Assembly and 
Government of Wales to make sure all governing decisions affecting Wales 
are understood by all, whatever language is used. 
 
Petition raised by:  Sovereign Wales 
  
Date petition first considered by Committee: 14 May 2013 
  
Number of signatures: 11 
 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 47



THIS IS A TRANSLATION – THE ORIGINAL LETTER WAS SUBMITTED IN WELSH 

 

Canolfan Bedwyr 

 

Bangor University 

 

13 August 2013 

Dear William Powell AM 

  

Petition P-04-483 Plain English /Cymraeg Clir policy 

 

Thank you very much for your letter dated 23 July 2013 regarding the above petition. I would 

also like to thank you for the copies of Welsh Government and National Assembly for Wales 

correspondence in relation to the same petition. We are very pleased that the need to 

communicate with the public in clear and easy to understand Welsh the subject of public 

debate. We are also pleased that the Assembly’s style guide gives clear encouragement to 

internal and external translators who translate public documents to maintain a clear style, using 

plain language. In terms of our experience, as a centre, of dealing with various Assembly 

departments, we are happy to attest to the clear efforts made by officials to keep to these 

guidelines.  

 

Your letter asks specifically for our opinion about the appropriateness of adopting a formal 

policy for communicating in Plain English/Cymraeg Clir. Given that the letters presented by the 

First Minister and the Chief Executive and Clerk of the Assembly emphasise the fact that the 

principle of communicating using clear and natural language has already been accepted, 

perhaps there would be no harm in producing a short document to summarise those points. In 

adopting such a policy, perhaps consideration could also be given to using the Crystal Mark in 

English and the Cymraeg Clir
1

 seal in Welsh to highlight this in public documents. In this context, 

it is worth emphasising the importance of aiming for clarity in both languages. There is no better 

way of facilitating a translator’s work than a document that has been written clearly and 

coherently in the first place.  

 

Of course, the challenge in moving from guidelines to policy is to ensure that there are 

procedures in place that are sufficiently robust to uphold the principles that are being adopted. 

In an organisation that produces so many bilingual materials, we know that implementing a 

consistent house style it is not an easy task, despite all encouragement and guidance. In that 

regard, it would be worth considering an internal editing procedure to ensure that all Assembly 

public documents are clear and easy to understand.    

  

                                                           
1
 Information about the Cymraeg Clir seal is available here: 

http://www.bangor.ac.uk/canolfanbedwyr/marc_cc.php.en   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



I hope that these comments will assist the committee in responding to the petition. If we can 

make any further contribution to the discussion, or if you would like us to respond to any steps 

emanating from the discussion, we would be very happy to try to do so.   

 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Dr Llion Jones  

 

Director of Canolfan Bedwyr  

(on behalf of the centre’s Cymraeg Clir unit) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

CANOLFAN BEDWYR NORMAL SITE BANGOR UNIVERSITY BANGOR, GWYNEDD, LL57 2PX TEL: (01248) 388054 FAX: (01248) 383243  

DR. LLION JONES Cyfarwyddwr / Director E-BOST/EMAIL: llion.jones@bangor.ac.uk www.bangor.ac.uk/canolfanbedwyr 

Page 50



P-04-483 A plain English /Cymraeg clir policy for all Welsh Assembly and 
Government communications – Correspondence from the petitioner to the 
Committee, 01.09.2013 

A response to William Powell and all at the petitions committee regarding 

petition P-04-483 ‘A plain English /Cymraeg clir policy for all Welsh 

Assembly and Government communications’ 

Many thanks for your active interest in this petition and subject. Here is an additional response 

which I hope you will find constructive: 

 

 

I believe that having an official policy of fully implementing Cymraeg Clir/Plain English for all 

Welsh Government and Assembly communications would be hugely beneficial to politics in 

Wales. Although I have been in touch with both groups, I can’t speak for them personally on this 

matter but agree that this would be a great place to focus attention. Their work has been crucial 

in helping to make sure language is clear and understandable where possible and necessary. I 

would hope that this is something they would be able to help to implement and manage, and 

believe that local authorities and public bodies should also consider implementing this policy.  

 

 

Although I think it’s fair to say that most AM’s themselves do use clear, non elusive or overly 

jargonised language for the most part, (refreshingly less jargonised/elusive than many 

Westminster members) and no one should be told how they should or shouldn’t speak, I believe 

the use of abbreviations and acronyms that’s mostly only known to Senedd and Government 

members could be cut down or limited when speaking in public. This especially includes media 

appearances and, for example, the Senedd debates which are filmed and televised to Wales by 

S4C’s ‘Y dydd yn y Cynulliad’  

 

 

Where possible I also believe it would be better for Welsh and English material to be written as 

separate original versions rather than what often seems to be the case that Welsh material is 

merely translated from English. I realise that this may not always be possible but I believe it 

would help strengthen a bilingual policy that isn’t solely based on systematic literal translations 

and would ensure that information can be expressed in an original, idiosyncratic and uniquely 

expressive manner in both respective languages. 

 

 

In my view it is often not only about the style/quality of language used but often as much about 

how language and information is used by public bodies, local authorities and Government to 

avoid answering questions in a simple direct way. From experience, simple questions or 

Page 51



enquiries are often answered in such a jargonised and bamboozlingly unclear way, and by 

numerous referrals to other sources, that it puts people off engaging and asking straightforward 

questions and therefore not being helped with their query and not being able to fully understand 

the process under which they are being governed. 

  

Members of the committee made very good points at the 16
th

 of July meeting about people’s lack 

of general understanding of the political process as well, which also has relevance to the way it’s 

communicated. A clear language policy could work hand in hand with a clear politics policy 

which would mean that the Welsh public could be more engaged in the political process as well. 

The complex process of initial consultations, open consultations and the forming of bills is 

something that most of the public have no knowledge of yet are able to play a vital part if they so 

wish. Perhaps there is a need for the Welsh Government to also publicise/advertise consultations 

more in traditional newspapers and online and invite more public interaction in open 

consultations as well as clearly explain what these are about, how they will affect our lives and 

what we can do contribute to them.  

 

 

A well branded one stop information house for Wales, filled with knowledgeable, helpful and 

enthusiastic staff to help anyone with all matters relating to Wales, including current open 

consultations and all other governmental and civic matters could be developed, with a single 

memorable phone number help line  (branded and marketed like the 118 118 campaign for 

example), a single email address and a simple informative website especially concentrating on 

current open public consultations perhaps. Anyone would be able to call or contact the centre for 

any information on the Government and Senedd, such as government policies, consultations (as 

mentioned), who their representative are and what they do, local authorities , the cost of a bus 

pass or the price of bread. All done under a clear/plain language policy.  

 

 

I hope this is of some constructive interest and I thank you for taking the time to read and 

consider these important subjects, 

 

 

Diolch yn fawr 

 

Page 52



P-04-483 A plain English /Cymraeg clir policy for all Welsh 
Assembly and Government communications – Correspondence 
from the Plain English Campaign to the Clerking team, 
26.09.2013 
 

Dear Kayleigh 

 

Thank you for your email. 

 

We think there is a real need for the Assembly to communicate in plain English and plain Welsh.  

 

It will certainly help people understand what you have to say and they are far more likely to actually 

read your documents (rather than consigning them to the bin). 

 

Whether you need a formal plain English and plain Welsh policy is a matter for the committee to debate. 

 

We wholeheartedly agree with the use of plain language but are worried that a formal plain language 

policy would prove expensive to police and maintain. 

 

Most organisations train their staff to write in plain language and get key documents accredited to show 

their support to the general public. This works out to be far cheaper than editing and checking every 

document. 

 

It will also help if any campaign to use plain language has the total support of senior staff. 

 

I hope this helps. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Chrissie Maher OBE 

Founder Director 

Plain English Campaign 

 

Page 53



P-03-315 New Dyfi River Crossing  

Petition wording 

We, the undersigned, are in favour of and support, any proposition to create a new 
crossing of the Dyfi River (or the re-routing of the A487) linking South Meirionnydd 
with Powys, Dyfed and Ceredigion, to accommodate and suite the demands of 
modern day traffic and urge prioritisation of funding and action. We call on the 
National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to create this crossing as 
a matter of priority. 

Petition raised by: South Meirionnydd Older People’s Forum 

Petition first considered by Committee: February 2011 

Number of signatures: 3204 

 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 54



Page 55



P-04-319 Newtown Traffic Petition 

Petition wording 

 
We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to: 

1. Install a roundabout at the Kerry road junction and, if flow improves, 
reinstate a permanent roundabout. 

2. Issue an early start date for construction of a Newtown Bypass and for 
works to be fast-tracked through to completion. 

 

Petition raised by: Paul Pavia 

Petition first considered by Committee: June 2011 

 

Number of signatures: 10 (an additional petition collected approximately 

5,000 signatures) 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 56



Page 57



P-04-393  Llanymynech and Pant Bypass Action Group 

Petition wording: 
 

We call upon the Welsh Government to reinstate plans for the bypass of the 
villages of Pant and Llanymynech which straddle the English/Welsh border. 
15,000 cars and lorries a day pass through these two villages, and it will only 
increase once the plans for the wind farms get the go-ahead. We call upon 
the government now to proceed with their plans, or at least open up talks on 
the bypass and have a full debate, listening to our needs and the voices from 
our community on how this road is affecting us and our quality of life. We 
hope, by doing this, that the English government will then take note and 
proceed with plans on their side. We would like a full and open debate on the 
need for a bypass for the villages of Pant and Llanymynech, which then, will 
develop into the actual construction of the bypass once funds are available. 

We are fed up of the noise, the pollution, the fact that we cannot walk our 
children to school, walk to the shops, or walk our dogs along the road. Road 
improvements such as widening, will not work here. The road was initially 
designed as a single track lane for horses and carts. The houses on both 
sides of the road often touch the edge of the road, and there are many lanes 
which feed onto the A483, which will again make it unsuitable for 
improvements. A bypass is the only option we feel, taking the road from 
Llynclys (which is absolutely deadly) around the villages of Pant and 
Llanymynech and joining the new bypass by the edge of Llandysilio. This is 
the main trunk road between Manchester and Swansea, and it is not fit for 
purpose. We have many MPs and AMs on our side and we are determined to 
get this done, and have a full debate in the Assembly on the subject. 

 

Petition raised by:  Duncan Borthwick 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  29 May 2012 

Number of signatures  84 

 

Agenda Item 4.4

Page 58



Page 59



Edwina Hart MBE OStJ AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth
Minister for Economy, Science and Transport

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-393
Ein cyf/Our ref EH/03534/13

William Powell AM
Chair
Petitions Committee
committeebusiness@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Dear William

Further to my letter of 4 November I am now updating you regarding proposed 
improvements to the A438 between Pant and Llanymynech.

My officials have now completed their investigation of potential improvement 
options on the A483 through Llanymynech. It is accepted that a bypass of 
Pant and Llanymynech would provide benefits to the local community and 
trunk road traffic. However, the major section of any such scheme would lie in 
England. It would be difficult for the Welsh Government to progress proposals 
for a bypass of Llanymynech without negatively impacting the future of any 
potential joint scheme. Without implementing a bypass, opportunities to 
improve capacity along the existing route are limited. 

My officials will continue to liaise with the Highways Agency regarding cross-
border issues between Pant and Llanymynech to ensure a joined up approach. 
Traffic levels and congestion will be monitored over the next twelve months 
and any further potential opportunities for action identified.

  19 November 2013

Page 60



P-04-446 : Business Rate Relief for Welsh Charity Shops 

Petition wording:  

Charity shops make a vital contribution to raising income for a huge range of 
good causes in Wales. 100 per cent of their profits go to charity, raising over 
£12 million every year in Wales.  
 
Proposals which reduce business rate relief for charity shops in Wales will 
reduce this income, and will cause charity shops to close, leaving more 
empty shops on Welsh high streets and threatening 700 full time jobs and 
9,000 volunteering opportunities offered by charity shops in Wales. It will 
significantly reduce the services that charities are able to provide in Welsh 
communities. 
 
We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to reject proposals which will restrict the vital business rate relief for Welsh 
charity shops. 
 
Petition raised by: Charity Retail Association 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  15 January 2013 

Number of signatures: +22,600 

 

Agenda Item 4.5

Page 61



Edwina Hart MBE CStJ AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth
Minister for Economy, Science and Transport

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-446
Ein cyf/Our ref EH/03108/13

William Powell AM
AM for Mid & West Wales
Chair 
Petitions committee

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Dear William, 

I am writing to update you on the Welsh Government response to the review of 
Business Rates Reliefs for Charities and Social Enterprises. This is further to 
previous correspondence from the Petitions Committee and my oral statement 
on 1 October 2013.

Following the Task and Finish Group’s Report on Business Rates Reliefs for 
Charities and Social Enterprises, I consulted on its findings. I published the 
responses as well as a summary of these online and encouraged Members to 
see the views that had been expressed. In addition, I consulted with Cabinet 
Colleagues on the recommendations and obtained legal advice. 

The response that I set out to Members is a measured and considered one. 

The key recommendations from the Review that were of interest to the 
Committee, concerned the proposals to alter business rates relief for charities. 
These recommendations attracted the most interest and debate throughout the 
consultation. I have considered these in detail. 

These recommendations would need primary legislation and I have written to 
the UK and Devolved Governments to ascertain their position and assess 
whether there is consensus in this area. As a result, I will be keeping all of 
these recommendations under review. 

I will, however, be acting immediately on a number of the recommendations 
from the Review. One of the key issues for the Task and Finish Group was the 

09 October 2013

Page 62



need for diversity in our town centres. As a result, I have launched the Open 
for Business Scheme. This scheme will offer 50% business rates relief to 
occupiers who take on a property that has been empty for a year or more and 
will run for an initial 18-month period.

I was very pleased to see broad support across most responses to the 
consultation for the recommendation to more effectively monitor the selling of 
new goods in charity shops. I have been discussing with the Minister for Local 
Government how to best ensure that this is being enforced. We will be taking 
action to make sure that this is properly and consistently acted upon.

I have also written to the Minister for Housing and Regeneration and asked 
him to ensure that the concept of a separate planning use class is kept in mind 
for future consideration. In addition, the joint fund that we announced to 
provide start-up funding for Business Improvement Districts in Wales will 
actively encourage charities to participate in these. 

I will ensure that the Petitions Committee are kept informed of any important 
updates against the recommendations. 

Page 63



P-04-446 Business Rate Relief for Welsh Charity Shops – 

Correspondence from the petitioner to the clerking team, 

08.11.2013 

 
8th November 2013 

  
Dear Ms Giddins, 
  
I am writing to submit comments prior to the Petition Committee’s consideration of our petition 
on Business Rate Relief for Welsh Charity Shops (P-04-446) on 26th November 2013.  
  
The Minister for Economy, Science & Transport has now given the Government’s response to 
the Task & Finish Group’s report into Business Rate Relief for Charities, Social Enterprises & 
Credit Unions.  
  
The Charity Retail Association welcomes the fact that no immediate changes will be made to 
charity shop rate relief.  
  
We remain concerned about the uncertain position for charities in Wales with regard to their 
fundraising, which is already having an impact on the investment strategy of our members. It 
was widely reported in September that the Welsh cancer charity Tenovus had abandoned its 
plans to open several new shops over the next two years. This will undoubtedly have an impact 
on the charity’s income; and when the vacancy rate in Welsh town centres is estimated to be 18 
per cent, it is unfortunate that retailers may be disincentivised from taking up empty units.  
  
Over 22,600 members of the public in Wales signed our petition, in just a few short weeks, to 
request that the Welsh Government did not place restrictions on charity shop rate relief. This is 
one of the largest petitions the Welsh Assembly has ever received, and indicates that the Welsh 
Government would not have the support of the general public should it continue to pursue the 
proposals in the report.  
  
We have consistently argued that no evidence has been presented to support the Task & Finish 
Group’s recommendations. In addition, the majority of consultation responses did not support 
the recommendations on restricting charity shop rate relief. If charity shops were a real source 
of concern for other retailers we also believe it would be reasonable to expect more responses 
from commercial high street traders. 
  
The Charity Retail Association is happy to support its members to be more involved in Business 
Improvement Districts and we have written to the Minister offering our assistance. In addition, 
we have offered support in monitoring the sales of new goods in charity shops, though it should 
be noted that the Task & Finish Group’s report recognised that the percentage of income from 
new goods sales in charity shops is only 4.4 per cent.  
  
We now hope that the Welsh Government will provide charities with the certainty to continue to 
invest in the Welsh high street and support their fundraising efforts, which make a vital 
contribution to services in Welsh communities. We reiterate our willingness to meet with the 
Minister in order to discuss this and outline the evidence base for our position.  
  
I would like to thank the Committee for considering our petition.   

Page 64



  
Yours sincerely, 
  
  
Warren Alexander 

Chief Executive 

 

Page 65



P-04-468 Road Safety Concerns A48 Chepstow 

 Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to reduce the speed limit on the A48 Bridge at Chepstow from 50mph to 
30mph. 
 
Petition raised by:  Chepstow Town Council 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 19 March 2013 
 
Number of signatures : An associated petition collected 1,000 signatures 
 

Agenda Item 4.6

Page 66



Edwina Hart MBE CStJ AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth
Minister for Economy, Science and Transport

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-402
Ein cyf/Our ref EH/03535/13

William Powell AM
Chair Petitions committee

stephen.george@wales.gov.uk

Dear William,

Thank you for your letter of 23 October about road safety concerns A48, 
Chepstow.

The 50mph speed limit on the bridge was implemented in 2011, in conjunction 
with Gloucestershire County Council. As the highway authority for the eastern 
half of the bridge, the Council made the permanent order for their network. 
Gloucestershire and Gwent Police were consulted as part of the review 
process and confirmed that the existing 50mph speed limit should remain. 

I have asked my officials to investigate measures that could help highlight the 
use of the bridge by school children and assist pedestrians. This will include 
pedestrian guard railing and traffic signs. The feasibility study will be carried 
out in the next financial year (2014 -15) and I will update you with the findings 
once I have had an opportunity to consider them. 

1November 2013

Page 67



P-04-475 Wanted - Buses for Meirionnydd  

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to:  

• Review the funding for rural bus services to ensure adequate levels of 

service for the whole of Gwynedd but particularly south Meirionnydd. 

• Consider funding to be ensured for additional services to improve access 
to health services, education, and employment, and thus support the 
economy and tourism of the area.  

Petition raised by:  Barbara Snowball  

Date petition first considered by Committee: 30 April 2013 
 
Number of signatures : 174 
 

Agenda Item 4.7

Page 68



1

�

�

�

�

��������	
����

��������������
	�
���

�������������������
��������������	
����

��������������
	�
���

�������������������
��������������	
����

��������������
	�
���

�������������������
��������������	
����

��������������
	�
���

�������������������
������
��
���

��������������������������������������������
��������
���

��������������������������������������������
��������
���

��������������������������������������������
��������
���

��������������������������������������������
����������
�

���������	�
����������
�	��	�����������
��
����
��
�������	�
���	�������
�������
�

�������������
������������������
�	����	�
����������������������	���
���	��������

	�������
�������	���������	�
��
�
�
����	����
��������
���
� ������������
�	��������!��

	���	��������"
�����#���
���
!�
��
�
�����$������������������%"#�$�&��
�
����

�������
�	���	������!�	�������	������������!�!������	��������#���
���'������(�

�	��������
���	�������(�������������	�
���	�������
�������	������(���(�������)��

	��	���
����
��������#���
���'������(��	�������������
(������	��������
������

	�������
�������	���������	�
��
�������
*
�

�

����"#�$������
��
��	
���
�������
�	�������	���(�������������������������	�
��
��(�
��

������������+��
���
��	���������������������(�	���������
��	
���
�������
�	������

�
��	���
���
�������!��������	�
��
��(�
���������������	�
�������!�� ��������� �

��
��� ��������
�������	���	������������,�����-�	������������
!�
��
��	�����������

���������
����
����. �����������'������(�/!�	
��
�������������"#�$���������

��������������������(���)�
���	������	�
 ��
���
������������/!�	
��
�������������

$�������������	�
��
��0�
��-�	�
��%�����&�1����	���

����������������������������������������������������

'�������	�
����������
�	��	���������������	��������	�
��	������
����	��
���������

�	������	�
��
��(�
���������2!���
����	��
���	����
�������
���
���	3�����
�

�������������	�
��	��������	���(����
������	����(�(����
���	)���
���(�

	��
�����
���	)�
������������	�
��
��(�
����������������������
����)����

�
�������������������
���!���
�����������
�	�����������1����	����

����!��������	�����������������	)��������	�������		�
��!������
������	��
������

(�
���������
�	�����
�����������������	�
��	��
�����	�������(���	�������	�������
��

�
�������
�����	����	����������	���!����4�����	���
�����������(�
�������������#	���

������-	����2!�
���
�5�
�	 ����	��(�
����������	������
��
���������!��������	���
��

����6/5������
��(��4�����	������!�������7��
����	��0����7	����
�����������8,�!������

7����(�������	��(����������	���(�
������	���

                                                
�
��,����
�9�'���	��,��
��	���'��������

�
�$�������
���������	�
����������
�	��	�������$�������
�������

*
�,����
�9:'�%�&���	��,��
��	���'��������

Page 69



2

1(���������
��
����	����
(��������������
�����
������������������	�����

	���	�
��������������������
���
��������
������
;��
��<�����

��	����

����!���
��������
��(�	���
���������������������������	������ �����
���	���	��
��

�
���	���
��
����������
��
��

!���!�����	�������
���������!�	(����������

�	�
��	����

��������������������������������������������������������

��������	�������������������
����	������	!���
�����������	�
��	���	����	������

��������	������!���7	������
�	������������	������!� �����	���
�
������	�
��	����
�

��������
���
����
��	��������
��������
��	
���
����!�
�
����2�
��� �,������
��

�����	���$�������
� ���	������	�(��
�	�����
���������
��	������������+ ��	������

��	������!��������"
�����#���
���
!�
��
�
�����$������������������%"#�$�&����

�

1(���������
�����������
������	�������������	�
��
��(�
���������
��������
������

��(���
���������������	�
��	����
������	������	�
��
��(�
������� ��
����	�

�	�
��	������
��
����	��
�	������
��	�������
�������������� �����������!��(��
����	����
��

�������
��� ������
��	�
��	��������!�������������!��
�	������
���������
!�	���( ��
�

�
�������!���	�
��	���(�������
���	������������
�����
����		��	��������	�
 �(�
��

�������
������	�����������
�	�����
�������	�
����� ���	!������
���
�	������
������	�

	�������0�
���������	����	������	�(����	�������(��	�
��	���������������)
�������
�����

�(������	����)��(�������	�	��
����(����������
�(�
��������
�����!��(�������(��	��

�������)��(�	��!�
��
���������������	�!�����	�
��	����

�

�������������������������������������)�������	���
�
��
�(��������	�����������

��������	�
��	�������
���	���� �������������	���
��������	�
��	����
�����	������

����!�	(�����
���	��������������	!����������)�(��	�!�	��
�����	��������
���������

/!�	
��
���������������(�����	���
����

�

=�����
��	���	��
������(��
����
��
���������
���������������(���������������
��	�

���������������	��<�����(����(��
�������!����<�����(����������������
����
�������
�

������
������������$�������������	�
��
��0�
��-�	�
��%�����&�1����	���������

�

7	��1�(�������������
����'�	������. �������1�
����	���������!��8����	���	�����

"#�$����	�����
���������
����	��������
���)�
���
(�������
������������������
�

��������
��%*&�������1����	����

�

'�������
������
���������
��%*&������������
�������
(������������
�>��

• �	!���
��	�����������
��������
��
��
�����
�?��

• �	������
�����
�������(?�

• ��	�!������	����
������
�������
������(��

Page 70



3

�

�

����������	��	������������������(�������
���
����3	���
��
��������
������������

�����
����������������1����	����

�

=�	�
�����������	������@ �����#���
���'������(��	�������������	�
��
��0�
��

-�����������������������9��������	�
��
��(�
�����������������������
��	
���

�������	�
��	�������
��������������������������
��	����!���9��A�������!�����

�

����"B�/!�	
��
��������	���(����	�����	���
�����	���������������	
�������	

����������	������	��	��������	����������	�������
.
������������	�����������������
�������

�(�����"B�/!�	
��
�����8����	����	���	����������	 ��	���������	��	�������	

�������!	�������	��	���""����	��	���"���#�	������	��	���������	�"������	��	���������	

$����	��	�"������	��	�������������	� 	"���"	������������
:
�

�

���������������
�������
��
������	��(����	����������
���������
�����	�
���		���

��	����(��������������
���� ���������������
!�(����(������	�
��
��(�
��������

	���	��
���	�
��	���	���
�����
����	�������"B ��������!�������	�
��	���
���������

��		��	������
�������	�
��
��(�
���������
��������
��������
�������
����	!������	�

��������������������
��
��������(�����	��
��(�
��������

�

������/!�	
��
�����
�#���
����	�
��	��,�	����(�������>�8%��	������&#�	�&����	���	

�	����"	��"�	��	�"�&	��	��������	���	���������&	��	��������	� 	�'
��
	������&	(�"��)	*�	��	���	

��	��	��	����" 	+��	��	����"	��	�������	���&	� 	���	�+$�������	 ��	���"�&����!	������&!	

���"��	��	���	�����������#�
C
����������
��	�����������	������	����	���
���������

�
��	��������	�
���
����	�
��	���(���������������
��������!�	(
� ��
�����
��

�����	�
��
��(�
����������

�

���� �����������������!�"�����������������������
����������������� �����������������!�"�����������������������
����������������� �����������������!�"�����������������������
����������������� �����������������!�"�����������������������
�������������#$�%�#$�%�#$�%�#$�%���������
�

��������	
�	��������

�	�
��	��������)�(�	��������(��
��
����
����	�
������������<�����(��������	���
��

��	����������
��
������!���������������	!�
���)���� ������	��
�	�����
�����	�
��
��	�

���	!�
������(��
����	��
�����������������!��������
�
����������/!�	
��
��

������
�������)����������!�	�(���

�

'�)�(�����
������
�������	�
��
�������
��������#���
���,�	!����7	����	)��	�

�����	�
 �0�
��-������
��1���	
��(�,�	!������
���������>�8,�����	��������	��"������	 ��	

                                                
.
������>DD�����������
��!��)D���������
�D�4	��	�
�=�
���D=�,7;�	�
��	�E/����
�������

:
������>DD�����������
��!��)D���������
�D���
��	�D���������
=�����D-����D-"��.�

C
�����>DD�������!��)D�����D�	�
��	�D���������
�D
��DF��
�G�
�

Page 71



4

+�������	��	�������������!	�����	��&	���"��	���������!	������	��	����"�+�"��&	� 	

���"����?�
9
  

�

$����	���������
���������	�
����������	�
���������������������
���
����%,2#&��	��

��	������	�(���)��(���	��	����������������
��		�
��
���	�
��	�����
���	���������	��

�����
���
+
�'�������	�	��������
�	���������������������	���	������������������������

�����	�
���
��������������������������
�����	�������	�
��	�������)�(������
���
�

����	�
�������� ��
���	������	����	�������������!���
�	�	����	����
@
��'
��!������
�����3	�

,�������5���6���	(��	�	��������
�	�������	��
�������	�<�����(��������	������

��
��������	�
��	�����
���	��!�
��� ��
�������)�������������	�
��	��	�����	�

�	!���
��(����������	�������������������3	���		��	��	������	3�����
��

��

�

�����
������ ��
��
����	������-��"������	� 	���	,"&���	�����	����������	+���"���	

�����&	� 	 ���"���	.	�������	����	��	���������	���"&	�� "�����	�����	 ���"���	����	

+�+���	���	�����	��	�����&	������
''

	���
����������
�(���������������(���	�
������

�������)���	������	����'�����	���
��
��������
�������	)������	�
��	���	��������

�

������	�����
	�����	�
������
����
�����������	���	����

�

0�
��������
���
��������
 �����(��
���
���	��
�
�������������
����
�����
�����
��

��		��	��������	���	�����������������
�	�����
����	�
��	� ���	������	�(��
�	�	����	������

�������	������������������
���	!������
����	��	�
��	���
����	���
�����
���!����
��

����	��	!���
���

�

�����������	�
��	��,�	����( ��

����
������#���
�8H�����	��	�������	������	��	

��������	��	��������	����	���	���������	���������������
��

�������	����(���������������

�
��3����!�>��

�

/����"�	� 	�""	����	���	�+"�	��	������	��������	��	��������	��	��������	�����	���""�	+���!	

�����+&	������+�����	��	�����	��������	���������&	��	�����"	�0�"�����	��	��"����	

�����	�������������	��	���	"�+���	������!	�������"��"&	 ��	���	����	����������	������)	

�

*��������		������	��	��&	��������!	��������	��	"� �"���	"�������	��������)	1������	+&	

�������+�"��&	�������	 ��	��+"��	��	�������	������	��	 ������	��������	��������#)
'2

	

�

                                                

+
�B�,��
��(�������%���C&�2<����'�����F�'��	�	������
�����	�������������	���	��!�	(������� ��
���������	�-������-���(�

$����	���
@
�=���	���
���	�2������
 �%���@&�=�������������	�
���'���������������	��%=�'��I&����������!��(�;��
�	����
��	�

���������	����� �$����	���$��	��=72;$$�C+�
��

�5���6���	(�7�
��$����	���������:: �%���@&�3��	�������������	 ��	4��"��&	���"�����	���"������	������&	
��

�����>DD�������!��)D����D����	����	��D�����D������	����	��D2!��7�(,��	�9;��DF��
�G�
�
��

�����>DD�������!��)D�����D�	�
��	�D���������
�D�	�
��	���	����(DF��
�G�
�
�*

������

Page 72



5

���������	�
��
��0�
��-���������������
<��	(��
���������
����
�������6��	
�
��

�
��,)�����%�����&�1����	�����@
�.

�	�������
��	
������������������	�!����
���	�
��	��

�����������	����� ������ ��
���	��
��!���������	
�	� ���	������	�(��
�	�	����	�����

'�������������������	�
��	��������	������	�	���!�
����	����	
�	������	��!�	�����

������	(��������������
���

�

����1�
����	��	�6����/!�	
��
���
������
�����������������	�!���������������
�

��	�
������;�* �	��	��
�����)��(������
����1�	������*������1�
����	�������������8���	

������	��""	�"��	���	��	�������	���	�������������	 ��	�������	��""�+�������	+������	

"���"	�����������	��	�����	����������
�:

�
�������������������	�
��	���	!���	����������


���������)�(���	�
�	�����
��	�����������������������
�������	���������������	
�	��

�
�������������
��C;�+�(��	���������
����	������	���

�

��������	����
� �/�(
�����������	�
��
��0�
��-��������	���	���		����
�����	��

����

	��	������;����������!���
����	!������(���'��	��	
�����
������7�	���$��	��

�����������������������������	�
��	�����������	��������	������������������	��

��	��������
���
���	���	��������
������	��	��������������8��������	����
�����	�����)�
��

��(�����
��	���
�����
�(��	������C;�+�(��	���������(��������	��
��������
����	���
�

��������
�������/�(
�������
���	������	�
��	��=���	���
���������	)���(������

�
��	��������������������	����

�

������	����	���������������
�����	
�������
��
�����	���
���
�	��

�

�����
��<��
���������)�����������	�
��	����������������
�����
���!����	����

	���	�����
���	������	�
��
��(�
����������

�

�����������	�
��	��,�	����(
�C

���������������������
�	�����
������	!�
�����������

��������	��������
��
�����	���8������	��	��&	���"��	��������	��	 ���"��������
������������

��������	�����	����������������(������
����

�

�
�<��������������	��
����������
���������
���	���������	�����!�	�(��
��������

�������
�������������	��
������	�������
���������	�����
���������
!�	
��
� �

����
� ��������
 �����(��
���
���	������(��	�
��	���������
��	���
��
�����	��

��	��
�������	��!�	
��
��������	!����������
��	�������
�<����������(��
!����
���
�

����	�����	����
���������
����������	��
�9

�

�

                                                
�.

�����>DD�����������(������	�D���;���D���;����
���;��	��;�������(;����;���D�	;��++@:�

�����F��
����
G*J���G�$;6=++@:A�����

A��$��	�A���(A�����A�������	�
A���
�A��0�
�A��-����A����������A*'A���
<��	(A���
�A�������

��
����
A���A�����A��6��	
�
�A���
�A��,)����A��A�+�����A�@A��1����	�A�����@�
�:

����>DD������
�����������(������	�D�����
��D�@+�+DA��A��A��$���
��A���	�A�����A��1�
����	A���

	A��2������
A���
�A��,)����A��
A�����A���������
����
A���A�����A��6��	
�
�A���
������
�C

�����>DD�������!��)D�����D�	�
��	�D���������
�D�	�
��	���	����(DF��
�G�
�
�9

�����>DD���������	�
�	�����������	���)D"��	7����D	���	���D�9�C;

�-I�/������!�	�(��!���(�����
�A:5�A:=����

Page 73



6

�����	�����(�
������	���������
��������������	����������������(��(��������
�

1�����	�����	����(�
������������������������������
������
����������������	��

�����
�����)��������
���
���������	����������!������������)(���������(���	���������

����
��
�������	��
���	)�����������������
��	�!�����	�
��	������������	�

�����	�
��������������
���
�������	����
�����������������������	�������������
��

��!��������������������	����

�

'�����������������	!����������!����������
�������������	!�����
��
��	�
�������	�
���!��� �

�	��������( ��
3(�����������
���
����!������	�
�����������������������	!������(�
��

����
��������
������	�����	���
�����(���������	��������������)���������������
��

���	�������	�
��	���
����������������������
�����������(�����	�
�������������	�

�����	�
������������	!������

�

����#���
���,�	!����7	����	)�%#,7&��	������	�
��
��0�
��-������
������	
��(�

��	!����������������
��3����!� ��
��	�8���	!�
���<���(����������������>��

�

8,���"���	���	����	���"���	��	�������"!	��	���	����	��	�����	���5�������	

������������!	���	������	����	�� ��������	�+���	�"���+�"��&	��	������������	 ��	

�"������	�����""���	��+��������#6	%,��
��	��9���&	

�

�
�����
��	��*�9�	���	���>��

�

8*� ��������	��	�������	��	�����	����������	��	 ���"���	��	���	��	������	

 ���	 ��	�����"	��	��	 ���	������"���	��������
�+

�����������
�����)�����������	��������������(�������	���������!�	�������
�������

�
��	�����������������	�����	�����������	���������	�������	�<��	���
�����������
�

�		��	����
������	������	�(������������	�����������
���
�
�������	�����������
����!������

��
��������������	
��������
�����
�����������	�����	����
���7�	���	�	� ��
�����

���	���	�����	�	������	�!������
���!�������������������������������
����(����

	�
��	���	���
��
����

1�����!�	��(�����������	����������������	
������
����	����������(�������	�<��	���

�	�<��
���
;�����
���������
���
�D	�!���������������
���
�����	�����	���
��
�@

���

�	�
��	���������������
���	��������	�������(�����������	�
��	��������������

�	�<��
�(�����	!�����%���������&���������������
�����

�

����'�������
��	����������	��������	�
��
�I�������%'��I&�
�����������	�������������

������	(��������
����
������������!�����
�������	�
��
�����������������������

�
	����( ���!�
��������	����(��������������	�
��	���
�������
��	�3�	
�(��

                                                
�+

������
�@

�����>DD��������������	���)D
���	7�����������

Page 74



7


�������������(���������(����	�
���		�
�������	�
�����
�	������������
�����������(����

��
�	���������������(
��

�������������
����������
�����	������
����������������	��

��	���(������
����������	����(�������
��
����	������
������

�

'��I�����	���	���������������������������=��������(�6�!�
��'����
���%=6'&�����������

����	�+.���(���
����������
�������<��
��(�������	�
������	�	���'����
�����������
��� �

���������������	����������������(����
�����	�����������
��������
��

���

�

$����	��
��

�������������������(�
���������
�	�	����	���������������
�����������������
�

�������
�����������	!���� ��	��
���
���������������� ��	����
����������	!��������������

����������	�
��	����
�����
!���������
��
����
��(�
�������������������(��
���������

�
��
�����	����
��������������	����
������	��
�������	���	���

�

�

����#���
���'������(��	��������%#'��&������	�
��
��0�
��-����������������%�0-&�

	��	��
�����	��
<��	(��
���������������	� 	�� �	�"����	��	�"�&	��	7���	%��������	����

�
��	�����!��(�	���
����	������
�	����
��!�������������������������

�

=�	�
�������
<��	( �����=����(�1�
����	��	������	�
�������>���

K�����	��	�	���������"	���+"��	��	���	(�"��	���������	���	��+"��	���������	�&����)	1&	

�������"	����	��	����	���"�	��	��������	����	���	�������	����"����&	�����!	�������"��"&	��	

��"�����	��	+����!	��	��""	�����	+�	�+"�	��	�	��&�����	�����	����	���"������	����	

���+"��8
�2

	

	

����=����(�1�
����	����
���
��
�����(���������
����� ���	����	�����	!���
���

��(����������� ��	��
���
�����	���������	!���
�������
��(��	�
��	� ��
�	��	���

���	��������
������������	�
��
��(�
����������

�

�����������	���	�
�����������	�
��
��0�
��-����������������������	���
�����������

��������	�������
�����
����	����		����������!��������������������	�
��	����
����
��

�!�������������������!��(��
�������
�.

�

�

��������������	��
�����
��	���!�������!���
�����(������������
���������(�����(�
��

�������(������	�����������	�����������	������
��	��)�
����
�	�������	���
����

8��	����	��	����������	*	����	��	��"&	��	�������	�����	����

�

                                                
��

������
��

������
��

����>DD���������	�
�
������	���)D�	�����	)D������!�	�(D�
�������!�	�(
���)D�
���������
23 ����>DD�����������(������	�D���;���D���;���	�;�������(D���;�����;������D���;����
���;�����
��D���;

����
���;�����
��;��;����D�	;��+*������F��
����
G*J���G�$;6=+*��A���

�������	�
A���
�A��0�
�A��-����A����������A*'A��-	!���
A���A��,���A��-�����A���A��-��(A�

��
�A��I�
�A��4���
�.

�����

Page 75



8

/9�����	����	5	��#�	���	��	���	��	�"����	��"���	&��	������

�

LM������	������(�
���������������
��
�1��N�

�

8*�#�	���	 ���	���	��	�����	��	�����	&��	"���	.	� 	&��	���	���	��	�"����	��	������

�

8*	���	���	+��	��	���	��	��""���6	��#�	+��&	+��	��)	:��	��	�������!	*	����	���	��	����	

������	+������	� 	����	���	+����	�������

�

L0�
���������������
	���������1�	���/	��N�

�

-��;�	�������	����	����
��	��)�
��
��������
������������
�����,�	����������������

������	������������	��
������	�!������
�������	��������
��������������������(�	���	����

��	������	�������
�����	��	��	�	����	�����
��������	�������!�
����������
��������

�

5��������!���������(��
�����	�������(����	�
��	���	������	������������
�������>��

�

‘���	����"	"���"��&	� 	���	�����"	����"&	�0�"����	��&	����	����"�	������	��	"����5����	

��	 ���	����	�  ���"�&	� ���	�����";���	�������"	���""�����	����	��	���������	 ���	

��	1����	:���	����	����"��	��	 ������	��	����"	�����	��	3����&!	����"��	��	�����	

�7���&	��	�")!	�����	��	�"��	���"��	���	"�����	� 	����	��	�����"	��	���	�������	

����<������	�"�+	��	�	"���	� 	������	��	�.’ 

‘���	���"�	���"�����&	+����	-2	��	��	������	+�������	��	�������������)	����	� 	���	

+������	+�������	 ��	���	�������	���	����	� 	����������	��	���������;(�	������	�����	��	

���	��	� 	���	�����"	�&	 ���	�)=>5	�)=>��	����	 ���	���������!	�	���"��&	���"	������	

����"�+"�!	��	��	������	 ��	���	����������’
25

�

�����0-����������	�����
��������>�

�(�"��	
���������	������	�������	��	"���"	�����������	��	������	����	����"�	���	���	

�0�"��	 ���	�0���	�������"��	����������	+������	� 	�  ���"����	��	��������	��������������	

����	��	���	��	� 	���	�������&#)
�?

		

�

����6�����#��0����7	���
�0
(��1

�9

��
��	�)�	����	���	���	��
������	������������

�������������
�����
����	���(��	��9 �+��
��@�������������
������������
�������	������	�

����	�������������
�I�(����������������	������	���������

�

                                                
�:

�����>DD������	�������	���)D�����D@*9�9+D��!�C������������*�����
�C

�����>DD�����������(������	�D���;���D���;���	�;�������(D���;�����;������D���;����
���;�����
��D���;

����
���;�����
��;��;����D�	;��+*������F��
����
G*J���G�$;6=+*��A���

�������	�
A���
�A��0�
�A��-����A����������A*'A��-	!���
A���A��,���A��-�����A���A��-��(A�

��
�A��I�
��
�9

����>DD������(
���
��	���)D��(
���
�D���CD�
E��E�CE����
����F���GC*�:J��G�:@C*J�G�J�G�J6�
����

�G��

Page 76



9

"
�������	�
�����!������������	�!�����	�
��	� �����������(��������	�
��
��(�
��������

�������������	����������!�����������!�	��(���
��	���������������������(��	�����	�	���������

���
�����
�����2
��������-!�	�(�#���	)�%2�-#&�	��	��8@��"	������&	��	�����"	

-0�"�����	��	A���"	(�"���
�+

���

�

2�-#�
��������
�������
���������������
��������	��
������������ ���������

�����������������
��
��
������!���������(����	�
��	����	�
���������	����

�

-���(���)�	���
�������	���
�������	������
�
����	!���������	�(�
�������
����	�

�����������������������	������<���(���������������	��
���
������!�����������
����(��
�

���	��
����	���
�������������
���������
���������	�
��
��(�
�������������	���	��


���	������
���
�	�����
������	�������
������������	�
��	����������=���
��

$���
��!���	�
��	���
������
��(��	�
��	�����������!��������������(���)�	���

'�����
���( ����	����(������	��
���������
�������	����(�������	�
��	���	!���	���

4
��������������������	���������������
��
��������0-���������>��

�

8���	@��������	���	�"����	��	����	����	B���"	����&	��	7��"���	��	�����	�	

���������	��"�	��	��������	���	����"�	����	�+"�	��	������	��+"��	���������	��	�����+"�	�����	

��	�""��	����	��	�����"	��	��	 ���	�����"	+&	�����)	7�����	�������	���	���+"���	 ���	

+&	����"�	����	������	������	(�"��!	���	�����"	���	�$��������	��	���	������	� 	���	

�����"	�&	��	������	������	(�"��	���	�$��������	��	���	������+"�)	�����	�������!	

�����	������!	�����	����	������	����	����"�+"�	+���	+� ���	��	� ���	�����"!	��	� ���	

�0���	�������"��	����������)	@��"���	���	���	�+"�	��	������	�������	�����"5���	����������	

���	� 	�����#)
�C

	�

�

������������
���
����	������������

�

-�������	�
��	���������(���
����	��
��	����
�������!����������	�
��
��(�
�����������

�����
�������)��
���������������
��
��������
��
���
����	�
���	;������

��	��
��������

�

O�	(����
�������������������	�
��	������	������!���
���������)��	�<��
�(�	�

��������(���	�������)����������������	������	�
��
��(�
�������������
���
�������

��
)������������������������������
�
���	����
���
�
�������
�������������

�

'����������
������!���	��������/!�	
��
��������������!�	(����	���������
��������

���������������	�
��
��(�
�������������������!������(��
��	!�
��
�����
��	��
���

�
����
��	����(����)�����������	�
��	�����
���	���
(�(�
����������

�

�

�

                                                
�+

����>DD���������	�
�
������	���)D�	�����	)D������!�	�(D�
�������!�	�(
���)D�
���������
�@

������

Page 77



10

��
	����	������	�
���	���
��	�����
��
������	��
�����	�	�����������

�

�����	�
��
��(�
������������	��������
��
��������

�
���
������!�	(�����	!���������

��!������������
�����(��
�������!�	�	���
��(��	�����������������
������
���

�������
�������
����������	�
��
��7��������%�����&�1����	����������
��	�����������

��	��������
����
�����������������
�������

�

�
��!������
����		�
���	!���
��
���
������
�
�����
��	���	��
�����

�
���
��

�	�
��	� �������/!�	
��
���
���������)�����	���������
���������������	�
��
��

(�
�����������
��	�����������!������������	�
��
��(�
���������	����!�
�

���	�	������
����	���
���

�

��������	�����������-�������	�
��	��"��	�����������%-�"�&��	��������
��	�)���

�
�������!�����	���������������	�
��
��(�
���������
���	�(�������
�����(��	�������

����
�����	��������

�

��������������
������>��

�

') *�	���	�����	����	 ������	�����&�	����	���	���	+���	��&	� 	��������	����	&����	

����"�	��	���	����"��	��	����	4������������	�	���	�����	����&	"���"	��������&	����	

��	����	�  ���"�	��	���"&��	����	��	�		�������"	"���"	��	��	���	���+��	� 	

���������	�������)	���	@��������	�����	����	��	 �����	���&	���"	������	����	

&����	����"�	�������	��+5����������)		����	���"	������	��	����������&	��	

����	����	�����"&	 ���	&����	����"�	�����	�����	��	���	������	���	@��������	

���	����������)			

	

�) ����	�&��	� 	����������	��""	�""��	@��������	���+���	��	����	�	��+��������	

����"���	� 	���	������	��	�������	� 	&����	����"�	����������	(�"��	���&
2�

)					

�

����������	��������������������������������	����	������
����������	
���
��
��	�
������

!�����������	�
��
��(�
���������	�����	�������
��	�
��	����������
���
�����)�

�	��	������	���	���!�����
���
��������������

�

���
��	���
����������	���	�������	��������-�"�������!����)��
��
��	�����
�	�����
�

��(�
������������������
���	����!�������	�����	�
���� ����!�	 ������(���������

�	�����������������
����	�
����!�
����(�
����	�
���	��	���
����!������������

���������(���$���
����	�
��	��-��
�����������D�5�	���������������
���(���(��

���
����
������!��(����������������	�
��
��(�
������������	��������
��	���

�

����-�"����(��!�
���������
����	����	��
�����	!�	������������������	��	���
��

��	������	��
��	���� ��	��
���
�������4���	�-��������������
�	 �����2I$���
������

�����	�
����������
�	��	���������

                                                
*�

�����>DD�������!��)D�����D�	�
��	�D������D����D	��	��DF��
�G�
�

Page 78



11

�

�	)��
��	��)�
��
�/�(
�������	���
���������������	������������
��������

����	��(�!�������80�������	����	3�����8����	�
������	�����	����	����������(�
��

�������
�/�(
������!�����
����������������������������������������	����!��

�
��
��	������
����
����������	�
��	���

�

/�(
������
�(���
�������
���	������	�
��	��"
����
������	���
����������	�
 ���

�	���	�
��(�5�	
�������!���	�������
����
���(���	������������!���������(�	�<������	�

��������������������
��������������	��(���

�

������	������������
��������������
���
�	����
�
��������������(�	�<��	�������8���
����

�	�������������
��
��������������8�-����������)�����	�(��
���������)
�����
��(�

����������5����	�!�	���	�����
����������	����������	� ��
���
��
������������������
�

	����(�!�������(�(�
������� �
��(�
����	�
���(�
��/��	���	��"�!	��	���	��"��	

����	��	 �""	�� ����	������
���
�(�
�������������
�������	����
����)�
������	��

�������������������������	�
��	���
����
��
��(��4
�������
��

���#!����	����������

��	��������
�����
������(������
���	������	�
��	��"
�� ��
�����	��������������(�
��

�������	���	�!����
���	�����	
�	�
���-	����������
������(�������	���

�

���������
��������
������������	�������	(��	��������������	!�������	����!�
����!����

	������
���
��	������������(������
���0�
������������������
�/�(
������!��

���	��������������	�
�������������������������
��
��
����
������(�
����������

��!�������	���!������������	��������������	3��������	������
���������������������

������������������������������
�/�(
�������	�<��	��������
�������	����

�

���	����!�����
�
���	����	3�����!�	���
(�(��	����������!���
������(�
��������

��!�����
��	
��������	�
��	���	!���
��
�����������������!�����
��
�����
���������

�������
��
��������
��
����
��
��������������
����	� �������������������	�������

�

���������������
�������	������������ ��

�

!
�"������	��
	��� ��

	

/:��	��������	��	�����	��������	����"	+�	�"����	��������)���

�

8(�	����"	����	�������	��	����������	����	���	+�	���	��	+���	+����	��	������	5	%&����	

@��	��&"�	�&��������

�

/:����	��	������	�����	�&���	��	&��	����	��	����	�	"���	����#	

	

/�������	��	+�	�+"�	��	���	�����	������	��	+��	.	+��	+��	������	��#�	����	�+���	��	.	

:�����	��������<	�����������	����	��	����#	

	

Page 79



12

/(���	&��	����	�  �����	���������	��	���	����	������!	��#�	��� �����	��	�������	���	

���	��"�	.	����	��	���"���#)		

	

��
�����	�#����� �

�

0�
����������!���
�����
��(�	���		�������!�
��
�����!������	��
��������������	�!�	��

�
�������������������(��	��
���	�����������	����������

�

0�
��������������>��

�

8���&	��������	���	��	+�"����	���	���	����	��	��""	����	���	�"	��	�����

�

8�������	�����	� 	������)	��""	&��	��	����	��""	&��	���	�  	��	��""	"��	&��	���	�  	�������	

&���	���������

�

8:��	������	���	���	��	����&�����

�

8:��	������	������	���"�	��	�����	��	����	�������	���	���	��������

�

8:��	������	���	+�����	��������)	*#��	����"����	��������	�����	�+���	+����	������	

��	"���	��++���	��	�������	���	������)	*�	��	����	� 	�����	$�+	���	��	+�	 ����"&	��	���	

��+"��D��

�

���������������������	�����
����
�������(�����-�"���
�����	�	��	��
��	!���
���

�
�	����
����	�����(������������
�����	>�

�

8@���������	��������	����	��������	���"����	�	��������+"�	�����������	� 	�4��"��&	

��	�������&!	��	��������"	�������	��	���+�"��&	���������	����"	+�	���"��	��	����	

��������	��4���������
*�

�

�

$	�������� ��

�

8��0��	���#�	����	��	�����""���	����	+������	� 	���	+�	�������������

�

8���#�	 ��"	�� �	��	+����	��	������#���

�

8������+"��	������	��	��	��#�	����	�+���	�����

�

8������+"��	���	��� ��������

�

�������	���	����	���
�����������������������	���
�����
�������
���	����	�!����

��
�
������	�
�����	����� ��
�����
��������
��	��)�
��(�����-�"����

                                                
*�

�����>DD�������!��)D���D���D	��	�D���:*��	!���
����
�����

Page 80



13

�

-	!���
����
�	����
������	��������
����������
��	
��
����
�������-�"��	��	��


��	!���
�����������	�
��	���
�	����
��	��'�	�������
*�

��
��	�����
����
��

�
���������	������	�������������������	�������	�����
����
�����������	������������

�
������
�������(�
���������
����	����
���������
��	
����

�

%�	����
��
�	
����������	���

�

&����������	������ ��

�

8B��	����#�	��"�	��	'?	��	��&	����"	��	��&	 ��	��	��"�	 ���E��

�

8���	������	���	�����"���#�

�

8��������	������	�������	��	+�	���E	����"�	���#�	�  ��	��	��&	�&	������	������	 ��	�����	

$�����&�	�)�)	�������	���"���	��	�����"	��	+������

�

�

,���������������
���	��
���	����	������	�
��
��(�
������������ ��
��(���
�
 ���!��

�������
��������	�
��	����������������
����	!�������

�

�����
�����#���
������)��
��-!�	�(�'���
�-��
 ����	��������������
�����
��
��������(�

����������/!�	
��
��������������(��������!��������	��
�
����������������
�����

/!�	
��
����8������	���	�����	.	��������	������	� 	���������	��"��&	��	����������	

�������	��	��	����	��"��&	��	����������	�������	����	��""	������+���	��	����"���	

������&��
**

�

�

�����	����
��8'������=�
����
*.

�������	����	��	���	����
������������	�
��	��������������

0�
�����������
���)������(���������������	������	��������	�!���
�	������	������������

��	!������	�����������!�	�C������
���	�(�
������������������	����������	���
����

�
����
�������	����	��������������������
��	�����������)�������/!�	
��
����

�����
�
���(������������
����������(���(�
����������������
���������������

�����	�
����
�	���
������
�����������	 �������������	����������
���
��������
���

����
��������(�
����������(����(���
����
�����������	�(���

�

����	��	���(�����#'����������	�
��
��0�
��-����������������������>��

	

/B����	����"�	 ���	,���&	������	��"	���	@��������	����	 ���	���	���	� 	'>!	&����	

����"�	���	������	��"�	 ����	��	��+"��	���������)	����	�����	���������	���	"�����	

                                                
*�

�����>DD�������!��)D�����D�	�
��	�D������D����D	��	��D�	!���
���DF��
�G�
�
**

�����>DD�������!��)D�����D�����3������D���������
�D���)���!����
���
DF��
�G�
�
*.

�����>DD��������	�
��	���)D	���	���D�
;���;
���D������;��
���;�	�
��	�;�!�	�(;�
;������

Page 81



14

��+"��	���������	����	����	���+"������	��	�����	&����	����"�	���	���#�	�  ��	 �""	

 ����#
2>

		

	

�������������	��	��	�����
��� ��

'(����	���	(�"��	
���������	�����������	���	���������	� 	������������&	 ����	��	��+"��	

���������	 ��	'?	.	'F	&���	�"�	��	���+"�	����	��	������	"������	��	�����������"	 ���"�����	

��	��""	��	���������"	��	��������	�������������	��	�����	����	"���"��&��
*C

�

�

�����
<��	(��������	������>�

�

8H���	(9
�	����������	���	����������	� 	���������	���+"���	���"���	��	&����	����"�	

��	������	�"�&	���������	��	���"	��"����	�	��5�0���������	� 	���	���	� 	

������������&	 ����	 ��	&����	����"�)G
2�

�

�

0�
�����������!�	�(������!�	(�	��������� ����������(����
��
����	�
����������������

��
���������������(��
����!�����	������	��C��
���9�(��	������
�����������������
�����

������	�������
��	������������+�������
�����
��(����	����
�����	�����������������
�

���P*�C+�������������	�
��	�����	��	������	�	��
����(���������
�������
��	�����

�������+���
��
�����	)��������������	��������	��������

�

�
�������(����	��	��������������������	�
��	���������
�����������
��������	������	�
�

�
��(�
���������
����������	����
����	���	)�
��
����
�������)������	������������������

�

����������������
�	����������
���	���
��	��	���(�����5	������0������
���>��

(�	�������	��	���������+"�	����	&����	����"�	�����	+�	�0�"��	 ���	��������!	

��������	��	"���"	�����������	��	�	����"�	� 	����	���������	�����!H	���	������	������)	

I�����	�����	���	� ���	��������	��	�	����"�	� 	&����	����"�	+����	����	��	��&	��"�	

 ����)	���	����������	����"	������	�	�"���	"��	��	���������	���������	+&	� �����	

����	��"�	 ����	����"	+�	���"���+"�)H
2F

	

���	����!�����
��������
�����	�������	����
���	������
����	�����	����	����������

����������������
������������/!�	
��
�����������	�����������
�5	����
���
��

7��
����	����

�

                                                

36 ����>DD��	���������)D��.CD�D�	;��+*��;�����
*9

�����>DD�����������(������	�D���;���D���;���	�;�������(D���;�����;������D���;����
���;�����
��D���;

����
���;�����
��;��;����D�	;��+*������F��
����
G*J���G�$;6=+*��A���

�������	�
A���
�A��0�
�A��-����A����������A*'A��-	!���
A���A��,���A��-�����A���A��-��(A�

��
�A��I�
��
*+

�����>DD�����(��	���)D
���D���;����;8������;��	��;�����;���	�;��;�+ ;�
������;(���;������;��������������

Page 82



15

�����!���������
��	��������	�!����	�(�
��������!�	�����������(���	�����
������

�������)�����!��	����!������!�	(������!� ����������(��
�	�����
������������!����������	�

����������������
����	���(�
�����������

�

�����
����������
�
�(�
��������
���
�����(��
� ��������
�	��	��
�
� �����

������/!�	
��
�������)��
��-!�	�(�'���
�-��
����������������(��	����!����
��������

�
�	������������	����	����	���������	�
��	�����������	���
�����������������
��(������

�
����������	�
����	�����	���	���	������	��	��� ��	��
���
���(�
��������
����
����

�����������(��
���
���	��
�
����

�

���������������(���
�����
����	��������������
����������
�#���	���
��1
���

1�
��������������)
����������)����	�
��	�����
����������
�����
������	��
��������
�

�	������3����	)�����

�

����8,����/�����-	�	�����
*@

��
�5���
���/��
���
��1�	��(	��(������������������

����	����	�
��D���	���
�����)����������������(��������)���������!���	����	�����	�

����	���	��������!����
������	������������
���!����
�������	) ���)�(���		��	��	�

;

�	)�
����	�
����
�����
��������������
��������
���	��
�
���
������(��
���
�������

����������������	�
��	�����

�

0�
���������
��	��	)�����
�1������������������)�
��3����
��	�������	�����	���	��

�	�����
���	�	����������(��
����	��
������������������������������
�	�<��
�(�

�
������
������������	�
��	���
���������������������	���

�

������
����
�

����������	����������������/!�	
��
�����������
�����
��
���	�������������	�
��	��

�(���������
!��������
������������	�
��	��,�	����(����������
�����
����		��	����

�

�������	����
����	�
������!�	������(����������
����!�	��� �������������
��

	���
��!����	!���� �����
��(��	�
��	���
����
����������������������	�
��	��

�	!���	����

�

������/!�	
��
��������
��	��������	�
��	��	�<��	���
����	���
����	�����	�������

��	!������!�����
����$�����
����
�����(������0-�������������
��������������

/!�	
��
���
���������)�����	����������!�������
����	���
>�

�

/���	@��������	���������	����	���	�������	��+"��	���������	�&����	����"	+�	��5

�������	�������	���	����	� 	���"���	��	&����	����"�!	�"������	�����	� 	�����	�����)	

* 	���	��5����������	����"�����	�&������	���+"���	����	��+"��	���������	���������	��	

                                                
*@

�����>DD	����	��������!��)D���D���:D	�	������;����D		��9.9�����

Page 83



16

(�"��!	����	 ������	�����	����"	+�	�����	+&	���	(�"��	
���������	��	������	����	�����	

������	���	����"��)#
=�

	�

�

'����	����<�����	������	��	��������>��

�

‘..&��	�����	+�	��"���	����	���������!	+��	� 	&���	���������	��"��&	��	��������	��	���������	

�����	����	�������	������	������	�	"���"	�"�&	����������&	��	��	����	�����!	����	��	�	

���+"��	����	����	��	+�	������	��	&��	����	�	��"�	��	��������	����)H
='

�

�

�����������������������������	�!�	��	��������������	!������	�����!��������	�,�
����

�
���	�����-��
����

�

2
������
������������	�
��
��(�
������������	��������
�����������
��
����
��

�

!���!�������
��������������
��������
��������������	�
��	�����
����,��)�����	��

����
�����������
��������(�
����������!������(�	���	��
������	�����	��
������

��������	�
��	���
��	���
�����	��
��(�����	���������
��	���
�����!������	��
����

�������
��
�����	����������������	�
��	����

�

-�����(�����������������������
�������
���	���
����
��������
��
����������
�����
�

Q�
��	(���������������6�����	�
��	��,�	!�����/	�
���
��5���,�	!����4��	��	��/	�
��

��������������(��:A��
��������
�����D�����

�

O�	(����
�����������������������������	
�������	!������������	����)��(��������������������

�
��	���
�������������������
��
��������
���	����������� �������/!�	
��
�������

�
��	���������������!��
�	������
������(��	���	��������	�������	����
����������(�

�	��
������	�	��
����(�����������(������������
����

�

������������
��	�������
��
��������	����
������	�������	�����	.	���������	������&	

��	(�"���
.�

����������
����������������
���
�
����
��
����!���������������
�����
� �

������/!�	
��
��������
����	���������	����������
���
��������
�������
�	�����
���

��
�	������������	!���������)
������������
����
���������������������������������	�

	����D��������	�
��	����
�����������������	�������������������!�����

�

��������
� �������/!�	
��
���������
��	����������(������<�����(���������������

��3	�������
��%�
�����
���������
���	���	���&�	�����
�����	�
��	����
��
����������

�������(�
�����������$�������������	�
��
��0�
��-�����%�����&�1����	��������

5��	�
���
���
�������	����������	��
�������������	�
��	� ����������	
��(��	�������

                                                
.�

����>DD�����������(������	�D���;���D���;���	�;�������(D���;�����;������D���;����
���;�����
��D���;

����
���;�����
��;��;����D�	;��+*������F��
����
G*J���G�$;6=+*��A���

�������	�
A���
�A��0�
�A��-����A����������A*'A��-	!���
A���A��,���A��-�����A���A��-��(A�

��
�A��I�
��
.�

������
.�

�����>DD��������	�
��	���)D	���	���D�
;���;
���D������;��
���;�	�
��	�;�!�	�(;�
;������

Page 84



17

�������������	���
�����������������
�����������	���	����������������"#�$���
�

��)�
�����	��
���	�
��	��������
����

�

�
)�	���������

%������*+,*�

�

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



  

 

William Powell AM 
Chair, Petitions Committee 
 
31 July 2013 
 
 
Dear William 
 
Petition P-04-475 - Buses for Meirionnydd 
 
Thank you for your letter (reference P-04-475) regarding the petition received from Barbara 
Snowball.   
 
We are pleased to provide our views in relation to the petition and the provision of bus 
services in Wales, and have incorporated views from our local partner covering Meirionnydd, 
Age Cymru Gwynedd a Môn. 
 
We support the views raised in the petition over the importance of local bus services to many 
older people, and the fact that insufficient transport links can restrict people’s access to key 
services such as healthcare. 
 
Age Cymru Gwynedd a Môn informs us that they have received several complaints in 
respect of the reduction of bus services in Meirionnydd and have discussed these with the 
local authority. We understand that the reduction followed a change of operator which led to 
a number of routes being changed or discontinued for economic reasons. 
 
A major concern locally is the consequential reduction in access to health services. For 
example, people needing to travel from Dolgellau to Wrexham for hospital treatment only 
have the option of one service which departs in the morning and returns at 2pm. Therefore 
people cannot use bus services to return home after afternoon appointments or visits. In 
addition, once the bus returns to Dolgellau there is no onward connection at that time of day 
to areas such as Tywyn, Barmouth or Aberdovey. This makes attending hospital 
appointments extremely difficult for people in these areas who rely on public transport. We 
understand that the situation is similar on the Llŷn peninsular where there is no public 
transport from Pwllheli to outlying villages after 6pm.  
 
The national position 
 
Age Cymru recently commissioned research into older people’s use of bus services, the 
adequacy of current service provision and the impact of recent Welsh Government changes 
to grant programmes for local bus services and community transport. This research will be 

Page 98



  

 

published in the autumn and we would be pleased to provide a copy to the Committee. 
 
This research found that while older people were often satisfied with daytime bus services in 
urban areas, there were significant concerns about the poor frequency of daytime services in 
rural areas, and services in the evenings and on Sundays in all areas. Concerns about 
reliability, waiting facilities and access to information (such as timetables) were also raised.   
 
In our view there is a significant challenge for the Welsh Government and Regional 
Transport Consortia to improve the provision of services, especially in rural areas. The 
Regional Transport Services Grant plays a key role in the provision of these services, 
however the consequences for older people of the loss of services as a result of funding cuts 
is a serious concern. 
 
The aims of the new Regional Transport Services Grant are laudable. However the 
combination of the two previous schemes – the Local Transport Services Grant (LTSG) and 
Bus Services Operator Grant (BSOG) – has also resulted in a significant reduction in 
funding. Our research found that the combined value of these grants has fallen by 22 
percent between 2011-12 and 2013-141.   
 
It is not clear what impact this change will have on evening, weekend and rural provision.  
While the Regional Transport Consortia are optimistic that it will result in better quality and 
integrated services, this has to be off-set against the drop in funding.  In particular, the 
response of bus operators to the reduction in and possible loss of rebate for fuel costs is 
unknown and could have consequences for marginal services.   
 
The Welsh Government’s National Travel Plan recognises the importance of good bus 
services. However, as the Assembly Enterprise and Business Committee has noted, beyond 
the provision of the Concessionary Fares Initiative the Welsh Government has done very 
little to improve bus services in recent years2. Indeed, its main action has been to peg and 
then cut funding for non-commercial bus services.   
 
We believe that the Welsh Government should require Regional Transport Consortia, as a 
condition of their funding, to include consultation with older people, including disabled older 
people, in the preparation of their strategies. 
 
Without steps to improve the frequency, reliability and accessibility of bus services 
throughout Wales, more and more older people will be unable to reach essential services. 

                                                 
1
 Age Cymru, Older People’s Experience of Bus Services in Wales (to be published September 2013) 

2
 National Assembly for Wales Enterprise and Business Committee (2013), Integrated Public Transport in 

Wales. Available at: http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-business-fourth-assembly-laid-
docs.htm?act=dis&id=246495&ds=5/2013 

Page 99



  

 

Not only will their well-being suffer but there are significant consequences for other services, 
notably health and social care services, which will have to cope with older people’s isolation.   
 
We fear that unless the Welsh Government look at this issue quickly, the situation will only 
get worse and will potentially enter a downward spiral. Fewer people will use the buses 
because of poor connections or infrequent services, which will in turn lead to further 
reduction in services  
 
We would welcome any recommendations that the Committee can make in relation to 
improving the provision of bus services, both in Meirionnydd and more generally across 
Wales, and would be happy to provide more information as required. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Graeme Francis 
Head of Policy and Public Affairs 

Page 100



P-04-475 Wanted - Buses for Meirionnydd – Correspondence from the 
petitioner to the Committee, 14.11.2013 
 

 

Thank you very much for inviting my views relating to the ongoing Petition to be discussed on 26th 

November. 

I would like to make the following comments please. 

  

I have read with interest the letters addressed to yourselves from Age Cymru, the Older People's 

Commissioner for Wales and the Children's Commissioner for Wales.  They have all made very 

pertinent points based on evidence from numerous consultations on transport, i.e.  

· Human rights.  

· Impact of transport on abilities to realise rights and entitlements.  

· Older persons unable to reach essential services, which affects health and social care services, 

which will result in a greater burden on other services.  

· There is great value in the holding of a bus pass - but set against this is the loss of/reduction in 

services. 

A further example of one of the current difficulties being experienced in Meirionydd: 

 

· There is no longer a bus to take people from Dyffryn Ardudwy to Blaenau Ffestiniog to link up 

with the main line train to Llandudno, Chester, Manchester and beyond. The No. 38 bus from 

Barmouth now only goes as far as Harlech/Talsarnau.   Alternative routes by train (Brewitt 

Bridge currently closed, so NO trains!) involve changes which are difficult, well nigh impossible 

for infirm/elderly.  It is vital that a proper through link be established and public transport in 

Gwynedd becomes useable. 

Hopeful outlooks: 
  

Ease of travel to areas previously difficult to access.     

Positive local economic impact created by extra tourism.                      

Increase of people using more accessible public transport.          

Greater area access creates more job opportunities.                          

Health benefits as greater freedom to travel can ease depression.     

School children and college students enabled to study later in the day.        

Hospital appointments easier to attend.  

Small rural areas matter  -  people matter.  

Accessible public transport is a basic human right. 

 

 

If I could give you a personal example from my own experience: 

I have just returned from spending 5 days with my grand-children, who live in Port Sunlight, 

Wirral.   We have one car, which my husband uses for work.  Therefore, for me to visit them, involves 

a bus (No. 28) to Dolgellau, X94 to Wrexham, No. 1 to Chester, and then a No. 1 or 2 to Port 

Page 101



Sunlight.  This sounds very long and arduous but it is well worthwhile.  Due to the trial period of the 

No. 28 bus, I was able to return home today.  Otherwise, we cannot get to Chester at all.    How much 

worse it would be for people who do not own a car, or who simply cannot afford the fuel.   

  

Please see attached letter to Councillor Gareth Roberts concerning the 6 months pilot for the No. 28 

bus Dolgellau to Tywyn. 

  

1) The lady in Fairbourne who is the Chair of the Senior Citizens' Club (membership of 120), 

commented to me that a lot of elderly people do not feel happy about returning home in the dark.  

  

2) Due to the lack of tourists during the winter, this will impact on the figuresduring the pilot scheme. 

  

Gwynedd Council Transportation Department have assured me that these facts will be taken into 

consideration when assessing the situation after the 6 months. 

  

We realise the financial implications of providing improved bus services. However, set against this is: 

· Our basic rights - of being able to attend hospital for consultations and treatment and return 

home on the same day. 

· Less illness and depression in elderly/infirm,resulting in less financial burden on other services. 

· Some elderly people have to choose between food and heating at the moment, how can they 

possibly afford to run a car in these circumstances? 

· Improved employment prospects for students. 

· People who can not afford a car, being able to travel to work. 

· More employment for local bus drivers, less financial drain on the Government. 

· Financial gain to local businesses (e.g. we used the new evening bus service to go to Tywyn for 

a meal with friends, and are planning a cinema evening). 

  

Thank you very much foryour further consideration of this Petition.  I hope it is acceptable to you in 

the form of an e-mail,  

in view of my being away from home during this last week. 

  

Yours, 

Barbara Snowball 

Mawddach Bus Users 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 102



Correspondence from the petitioner to Councillor Gareth Roberts 
 

 
3-Nov-13 
 
 
Councillor Gareth Roberts 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor Roberts, 
 
No. 28 evening service 
 
On behalf of Mawddach Bus Users, we are very grateful for the opportunity of the 6 month 
trial period.  We are doing our very best to ensure that more people use the services. 
We have had printed 5000 of the attached flyers to make people fully aware of when and 
where they can travel to.  I am constantly being told that people have difficulty reading  
the timetables.  So these flyers are meant as a pocket/handbag help, with the times in an 
easy to read format. 
 
For such a long time now, people have stopped making journeys because they knew they 
would have difficulty returning home.   It is unfortunate that the trial period is in the 
winter months because I have been told that older people, for instance, do not like 
returning home in the dark.  We also have very few tourists at this time of year, so the 
expected numbers will not be as great as they would be in the spring/summer months. 
Nevertheless, it is an opportunity, and I remain positive. 
 
We are also using Facebook as an advertising tool for the service, and encouraging people 
to go out in the evenings.  We hope local businesses will prosper more as a result.  The 
Cambrian News also publishes regular features for us.  Sibrydion magazine, our community 
magazine with a circulation of about 4000, also features the bus services regularly. 
 
Once again, thank you. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Barbara Snowball 
Mawddach Bus Users 

Page 103



P-04-508 Restore the Glandyfi view 

Petition wording: 

Whilst generally welcoming the widening of the A487 at Glandyfi, we are 
extremely concerned and deeply saddened that the work has involved 
unnecessarily raising the wall on the seaward side of the road, which now 
prevents users of the road and residents from enjoying the spectacular views 
across the Dyfi Estuary which have formed part of the local landscape for 
centuries. We do not feel that the creation of a formal ‘viewpoint’; makes up 
for the loss of the views which have heretofore been enjoyed daily by users 
of this important road, both visitors and locals. We therefore call on the 
National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to immediately 
instruct the contractors to lower the wall by a sufficient amount to restore 
our rightful view of this beautiful and unique landscape.  
 

Additional Information: 
The long-awaited work to widen the A487 at Glandyfi is now almost 
complete. All regular users of the road will be very glad to see an end to the 
awful congestion caused by the narrow bends on the road near Glandyfi 
Junction. 
 
But a totally unnecessary side-effect of the work (in addition to the building 
of the largest walls in Wales since Edward I) has been the construction of a 
new wall between the road and the Dyfi Estuary. The new wall completely 
hides the view of this beautiful area from the sight of passing motorists, a 
view which has been enjoyed by users of the road for centuries. 
 
The old wall was only a couple of feet high, and allowed uninterrupted views 
of the wonderful vistas across the river and sandbanks to the hills beyond. 
The new wall, for reasons known only to the developers, is nearly six feet 
high in places, and completely blocks the view. Some new viewpoints have 
been created, but this does not make up for the loss. 
 
It is not too late to change things: the wall can be reduced to a sensible 
height with little effort or cost, and we can again enjoy our views across the 
river. 
 

Petition raised by:  Nigel Callaghan 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 8 October 2013 
 
Number of signatures: 83 
 

Agenda Item 4.8

Page 104



Page 105



P-04-362 Ambulance Services in Monmouth  

 
Petition wording: 

We believe that Monmouth should be granted the appropriate ambulance 

provision. With its population set to rise, and the Minor Injuries Unit at 

Monnow Vale recently closed down, demand will increase for the ambulance 

service.  

National Assembly for Wales: 

We request the Health and Social Committee of the National Assembly to 

undertake a scrutiny inquiry into the ambulance service in rural Wales. We 

would urge the Committee to investigate the particular problems in 

Monmouth and the impact of the closure of the Monnow Vale Minor Injuries 

Unit on the ambulance service.  

Welsh Government: 

We urge the Minister for Health and social Care to use her powers to require 

the Wales NHS Ambulance Trust to provide a uniformly high standard of 

ambulance provision throughout Wales and especially rural areas such as 

Monmouthshire. 

Welsh Ambulance NHS Trust: 

We urge Welsh Ambulance NHS Trust to increase provision for Monmouth in 

real terms, with a high dependency unit and/or ambulance based within 

Monmouth town. 

 

Petition raised by: Mathew Davies 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 7 February 2012 

Number of signatures: Approximately 450 signatures. 

Agenda Item 4.9

Page 106



 

 

Bae Caerdydd 
Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA 
Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8403     

       E-bost / Email: PwyllgorIGC@cymru.gov.uk / HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 

 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
Health and Social Care Committee 
 

Dear William, 

 

Thank you for your letter of 23 July 2013 regarding the petition relating to 

ambulance services around Monmouth. 

 

The Committee considered your letter at its first meeting after the summer 

recess, on 25 September 2013. Members agreed that if the Committee 

decides to undertake an inquiry into ambulance services in the near future, we 

will inform you of that decision. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 
 

David Rees AM  

Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 

 

 

William Powell 

Cadeirydd, Y Pwyllgor Deisebau 

Chair, Petitions Committee  

 

30 September 2013 

Page 107



P-04-448 : Improve Sexual health services for Western Vale 

Petition wording:  

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 
increase funding to the Cardiff and Vale University Health Board. This 
increased funding should be directed towards improving sexual health 
services for the Western Vale. 
 
Additional Information: 
 
Currently only one clinic is held once a week every Friday lunchtime in 
Llantwit Major. This clinic serves the whole of the Western Vale. This clinic 
gives sexual health advice and family planning services. This service is not 
adequate to meet the needs of this large geographical area. The town of 
Barry alone has 3 clinics/week.Help us to improve the sexual health of many 
young and vulnerable people who are often unable to travel 10 miles or 
further to a local clinic. These clinics offer the vital 
information/education/support/medical treatment that young people need. 
improving sexual health services can help guide, support and care for the 
most vulnerable groups within our society. Please help us make a difference.  
Although teenage pregnancy rates are declining, abortion rates are rising (as 
cited by Helen Rogers Director of the Royal college of midwives, source BBC 
Wales 29/03/12) WAG in response to this report promised increased funding 
via public health wales to improve access to integrated sexual health centres 
(BBC Wales 29/03/12) These vulnerable young people often from households 
which are deprived, do not receive the care they need. Had these young 
people lived in Barry, they would have received a much improved service. 
The rural vale is often dismissed as being "affluent" real pockets of socio-
economic deprivation exist within this area. More clinics are needed. Wales 
wants a "World Class Health Service" built for the future. These young people 
are our future. Teenage pregnancy/abortion can have wide reaching 
detrimental effects on our young people. Sexually transmitted diseases are 
preventable if people get the right information. 
 

Petition raised by: Rebecca Lowrie 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  29 January 2013 

Number of signatures: 16 

 

Agenda Item 4.10

Page 108



P-04-452 : Equal Rights for Tube-fed Youngsters. 

Petition wording:  

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 
ensure that funding is made available to ensure that the vital equipment and 
services required by tube-fed children and young people are made available 
to them.  
 
For example, equal rights for tube-fed youngstersin the Caerphilly County 
Borough Council currently fall between 2 defined categories of need. The 
Aneurin Bevan Health Board say as they are not Continuing Health Care 
(CHC) children - ’only tube-fed’ - they cannot fund the vital equipment and 
services we need. Caerphilly Social Services also say they cannot help as 
these children ’have significant health needs’. These definitions exclude and 
therefore discriminate against Tube-fed Youngsters and we demand an 
investigation into this practice in Caerphilly.Whilst our Youngsters do not 
’qualify’ for help from either Health or Social Services in the Caerphilly 
Borough we still have a Youngster with 24/7 care needs - the same as a 
newborn - often with disabilities due to a life-threatening illness. 
 
Additional Information: 
 
Our Youngsters need a ’label’ in order to be able to automatically access 
funding for vital equipment and services. At present inter-departmental 
financial wrangling takes place on request for anything for a Tube-fed 
Youngster and this should not involve Parents / Carers.We just need the help 
for our Youngsters as quickly as possible.We ask that a quick, common-
sense, long-term solution be achieved for our Youngsters and for the sake of 
the health and wellbeing of their Parents / Carers. 
 
Petition raised by: Dr Tymandra Blewett-Silcock 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  29 January 2013 

Number of signatures: 142 

 

Agenda Item 4.11

Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



 

 

Bae Caerdydd 
Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA 
Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8403     

       E-bost / Email: PwyllgorIGC@cymru.gov.uk / HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 

 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
Health and Social Care Committee 
 

Dear William, 

 

Thank you for your letter of 23 July 2013 regarding the petition from Dr 

Tymandra Blewett-Silcock relating to services for tube-fed children and young 

people.  

 

I would like to thank you for raising this petition with the Health and Social 

Care Committee. The Committee noted your letter at its first meeting after the 

summer recess, on 25 September 2013. Members will give the matter due 

consideration during Stage 2 proceedings on the Social Services and Well -

being (Wales) Bill. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 
 

David Rees AM  

Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 

 

 

William Powell 

Cadeirydd, Y Pwyllgor Deisebau 

Chair, Petitions Committee  

 

30 September 2013 

Page 112



P-04-457 The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign 

 
Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to cease 

the use of National Health Service budget for religious care and to work with 

the leaders of organised religion to establish a charitable trust to fund 

religious care in the hospitals of Wales. 

 

Supporting Information: 

The charitable chaplaincy campaign comprises an informal network of citizen 

who are concerned that every million pounds of public money allocated to 

the NHS in Wales should be used to promote public health and to treat those 

who need medical attention.  

 

Our campaign has no funds and needs none. It is sponsored by no other 

organisation within or without Wales. Modern internet based services allow 

us to communicate with each other and with our democratically elected 

representatives.  

 

All our supporters have seen and concur with two documents which are 

provided in support of this petition, Principles which sets out our motivation 

and Proposal which states our case with supporting evidence and rational 

argument. 

 

We provide a third document Employment which provides evidence of how 

the monies drawn from the NHS Budget for hospital chaplaincy services are 

currently spent. 

 

Petition raised by: The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 19 February 2013 

 

Agenda Item 4.12

Page 113



P-04-474 Support for NHS chaplaincy services 

Petition wording: 

We recognise the positive contribution of hospital chaplaincy services in 

delivering spiritual care within the Welsh NHS and recognise the tremendous 

work that the chaplaincy service in the NHS is providing. 

This service plays an important role in the spiritual wellbeing of both 

patients and NHS staff, not only for those with a religious affiliation but also 

for others with no association with a religious group. We call upon the 

National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to continue with 

its commitment to funding hospital chaplaincy services and to extend the 

benefits of chaplaincy services to other care settings, including primary and 

social care settings. 

Petition raised by:  Jim Stewart 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 16 April 2013 
 
Number of signatures: 1077 
 

Agenda Item 4.13

Page 114



Page 115



Pencadlys y Bwrdd Iechyd Health Board Headquarters
Y Plasty, Bronllys, Aberhonddu, Powys LD3 0LS Mansion House, Bronllys, Brecon, Powys LD3 0LS
Ffôn: 01874 711661 Ffacs: 01874 711601 Tel: 01874 711661 Fax: 01874 711601

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth Gymraeg We welcome correspondence in Welsh

Bwrdd Iechyd Addysgu Powys yw enw gweithredd Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol 
Addysgu Powys

Powys Teaching Health Board is the operational name of 
Powys Teaching Local Health Board

Our ref: AS/as/FOI/13.R.174 30 July 2013

Sent via email to: naomi.stocks@wales.gov.uk

Dear Ms Stocks

Request under Freedom of Information Act 2000

Further to your previous correspondence in respect of your request 
for information which we originally received on 25 July 2013, I can 

confirm in accordance with S.1(1)(a) of the Freedom of Information 

Act 2000, that Powys teaching Health Board holds the information 
you require.  

FOI Request

1. Whether any data in relation to use of chaplaincy services is 

recorded; and
2. For clarity on how funding is allocated for chaplaincy services 

across the range of sites your LHB is responsible for and how 
you ensure equity of service provision. 

Powys Response

1. We do not record any data on use of chaplaincy services 

2. The total cost for our Chaplaincy Services is £31,253 – this 
cost is salaries only. We do not hold any additional 

information. 

Should you need any further assistance, please do not hesitate to 
contact us at the address below.

If you are dissatisfied, with the way your request has been dealt 

with by the teaching Health Board (tHB), you have the right to 
request a review in which case you should write to: 

Cyfarwyddwr Therapiau 
& Gwyddorau Iechyd
Ty Mansion 
Bronllys
Aberhonndu
Powys LD3 0LS
Ffon (01874) 712421

Director of Therapies & 
Health Science
Mansion House
Bronllys 
Brecon
Powys LD3 0LS
Tel (01874) 712421

e-mail:  foi.foi@wales.nhs.uk

Page 116



Andrew Cottom

Chief Executive
Powys Teaching Health Board

Mansion House
Bronllys

Brecon
Powys LD3 0LS

If you are still dissatisfied at the end of the review, you may 

complain to the Information Commissioner, who can be contacted at 
the following address:

Information Commissioner’s Office

Wycliffe House
Water Lane

Wilmslow

Cheshire
SH9 5AF

Yours sincerely

Amanda Smith

Director of Therapies & Health Science and Executive Lead 
for FOI

Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



  

 

 

 

Cyfeiriad Gohebiaeth ar gyfer y Cadeirydd a'r Prif Weithredwr / Correspondence address for Chairman and Chief Executive: 

Swyddfa'r Gweithredwyr / Executives’ Office 
Ysbyty Gwynedd, Penrhosgarnedd 

Bangor, Gwynedd LL57 2PW Gwefan: www.pbc.cymru.nhs.uk / Web: www.bcu.wales.nhs.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Powell 
 
Thank you for your letter dated 11th July 2013 regarding the Charitable Chaplaincy 
Campaign. 
 
Background 
 
Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) provides spiritual and religious care for 
patients, carers and staff in line with the Standards for Spiritual Care Services in the NHS 
in Wales (2010). The provision of religious care is a statutory responsibility of the LHB 
under Equalities Legislation, as such Chaplains provide a valuable resource in meeting the 
requirements for this protected group and ensuring an equitable service is delivered 
across BCUHB. While it is clear that Spiritual care is an important element of 
compassionate care and the responsibility of all staff Chaplains provide an important 
resource to the LHB in supporting staff in the delivery of high quality holistic care. The 
availability of Chaplains to spend time with patients, carers and staff listening to their 
concerns and needs enhances the healthcare experience for all. Chaplains work in 
partnership with nursing and medical staff to deliver appropriate spiritual or religious care 
in a manner that takes full account of patient choice. Chaplains in BCU contribute to a 
range of training across the Health Board including bereavement, Dignity Ambassadors, 
student nurses and volunteer inductions. As NHS employees Chaplains are subject to the 
same rigorous confidentiality and data protection policies as all staff.  
 
Specific Questions 
 
Whether any data in relation to use of chaplaincy services is recorded: 
 
The Pastoral Care Chaplaincy Team in BCUHB have a Data Set for evidencing chaplaincy 
activity within the three acute district hospitals and some community hospitals or Locality 
sites which includes a number of activity episodes under the headings: 
 

· Referrals for patients requesting spiritual/religious care from patients, carers, family 
staff or third party e.g. Faith Community 

· Spiritual or Religious Care of Patient at/after time of Death 

· Bereavement support for Family or carers 
 

Ein cyf / Our ref:   GL/RC/10229/630 

Eich cyf / Your ref:  P-04-457/P-04-474 

(:   01248 384910 

Gofynnwch am / Ask for:   Geoff Lang 

Ffacs / Fax:   01248 384937 

E-bost / Email:  geoff.lang@wales.nhs.uk 

Dyddiad / Date:   15 August 2013 

Mr William Powell AC / AM 
Cadeirydd / Chair 
Petitions Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
CARDIFF 
CF99 1NA 
 

 

Page 121



 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

· Spiritual/Religious /Bereavement care following pregnancy loss, including 
miscarriage, still birth and neonatal/child death 

· Support for Mental Health and Learning Disability Patients 

· Support for distressed Patients referred by staff 

· Staff Support, including bereavement support following death of staff member 

· Religious Care provided/facilitated by chaplains for all Faith/Belief groups 

· Hospital provided funerals, all Faiths and Civil, for adults and babies, including 
bereavement support 

 
This data set is currently under revision to include full evidence of Chaplaincy activity in all 
community sites and Localities. This revision should be completed by October 2013.  
 
An update to the Spiritual Care Standards Action Plan is reported annually to the Chief 
Nursing Officer, NHS Wales. 
 
The Pastoral Care Chaplaincy team reports regularly to the BCU Board through Improving 
Service User Experience Committee which is a subcommittee of Quality and Safety. 
Chaplaincy is included in the BCUHB Annual Report, Service User Experience Plan and 
other CPG Service User Experience reports. Pastoral Care Chaplains have been fully 
involved in all service reviews and public consultations. 
 
Clarity on how funding is allocated for chaplaincy services: 
 
A specific Budget for all Pastoral Care Chaplaincy, including acute, community and locality 
is part of the Executive Nurse Directors budget. It is overseen by an Assistant Director of 
Nursing along with the Head of Nursing Service User Experience and Pastoral Care 
Manager. This budget is regularly reviewed being subject to same scrutiny and savings 
requirements as all Board budgets. This budget does not relate solely to religious care but 
encompasses the full range of care provided by chaplaincy which enhances the patient 
experience. This budget funds a 24/7 on call service available across BCUHB hospitals 
and Localities. 
 
The Pastoral Care Chaplaincy team is currently working in an interim structure to ensure 
equity of service provision whilst awaiting completion of a revised structure. There are 
three teams of chaplains with responsibility for hospitals, acute and community including 
Enhanced Home Care and Hospice at Home. 
 
Should you have any queries or require any further information please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 

Yours sincerely 

 
GEOFF LANG 
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Page 122



P-04-457 The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign- 
correspondence from the petitioner to the Committee, 
15.11.2013 

 

The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign 
The Wales-wide, cross-party campaign for a charitable hospital chaplaincy. 

 

To understand how relevant the responses discussed below are to Petition P-04-457 one 

has to keep in mind the following very important fact. 

 

Our Proposal, which is the reason for the Petition, clearly states that the present 

establishment of hospital chaplains be retained.  The 2010 Standards documents
i
 must be 

retained as the service definition for hospital chaplaincy, despite the many problems with 

these standards, since there is no better definition to hand. The Campaign believes that 

the 2010 Standards documents should eventually be re-written. Some reasons for that 

opinion are given below but this is irrelevant to the issue of  the funding of hospital 

chaplaincy. 

 

The Proposal and the Petition are concerned exclusively with the funding of hospital 

chaplaincy. 

 

The Proposal advances no criticism of hospital chaplaincy as it is currently practiced. 

 

To reject the Petition request it must be demonstrated that charitable funding of hospital 

chaplaincy is impossible or unacceptable for reasons that do not apply to, say, The 

Children’s Hospital of Wales, The Wales Air Ambulance Service or Tŷ  Hafan. 

 

In six years of campaigning no one in Government, in organised religion or in the 

National Assembly has provided such a demonstration of impossibility or 

unacceptability. The Welsh Government simply assures us, without evidence, that it is 

best that the State funds religious care in hospitals using our National Insurance 

contributions and general taxation. Organised religion and others either make false claims 

that we plan to remove chaplains from hospitals (Christian Council of Britain
ii
), make 

highly dubious claims for the medical  efficacy of religious care which they are unable to 

substantiate with peer reviewed evidence, make false claims that there is a statutory duty 

to fund hospital chaplaincy
iii

 or they simply re-iterate that chaplains do a worthwhile job.  

Such a claim to be worthwhile does not appear to be applicable to The Children’s 

Hospital of Wales, The Wales Air Ambulance Service or Tŷ  Hafan since they all rely 

upon charitable fund raising for their existence and survival. 

 

A question which is directly relevant to our petition and which might have been asked of 

Health Board administrators is this:- 

 

Page 123



If the existing Chaplaincy Service in your Health Board were to be funded by a grant 

from a charitable trust set up for this purpose, which nursing, midwifery or medical 

services would you chose to assist with the  £***,***  per annum so made available? 

 

The amount of money in question could be provided from the financial tables of our 

Proposal document. 

 

Page 124



Consideration of the Minister’s Response 
 

From: Professor Mark Drakeford AM   26
th

 July 2013 

 

Professor Drakeford in his third sentence attempts to justify spending NHS Wales budget 

on religious care by referring to Section 47 of the Health and Social Care Community 

Health Standards Act of 2003. His view is that these Standards commit NHS 

organisations to provide appropriate funding for spiritual care services. 

Now whatever the Minister intends “commit” to mean, it is clear that the Department of 

Health believes that the provision of hospital chaplains is not a statutory requirement 

placed upon NHS organisations. In  a email dated July 2010 (some seven years later than 

the Act referenced by the Minister) the Department of Health wrote to me as follows:- 

 
Subject: Response to your Query :  - Ref:DE00000515284 - Chaplaincy 
Date: Fri, 2 Jul 2010 15:53:29 
Our ref: DE00000515284 Chaplaincy 
 
Dear Mr Rogers,  
                             Thank you for your email of 20 June about hospital chaplaincy.  
  
The Department of Health will consider your suggestions as it starts to take a new, coherent, 
and better coordinated approach to the provision of healthcare chaplaincy services in the near 
future.  
  
Unlike prisons and the armed services, there is no statutory requirement for hospitals to 
provide chaplaincy services.  However, healthcare chaplaincy has remained part of the 

patient offer since the inception of the NHS. [My emphasis: AJR] 
  
The Department's policy is set out in NHS Chaplaincy: Meeting the Religious and Spiritual 
Needs of Patients and Staff (November 2003), which makes clear that Hospital Trusts should 
aim to provide a multi-faith chaplaincy service. 
  
In order to meet continually rising demands for healthcare (including from a growing and 
ageing population and new technology) while improving outcomes and the quality of services, 
the NHS will need to deliver billions of pounds in efficiencies over the next few years.  These 
efficiencies will be reinvested in meeting rising demands, improving outcomes and supporting 
frontline staff.  This includes the provision of spiritual care in the NHS.  Improving the 
productivity of public services is the key to reducing the deficit while maintaining and 
improving services. 
  
Thank you again for sharing your ideas with us.   
  
Yours sincerely,  
 
Malcolm Jones  
Customer Service Centre  
Department of Health 
 

Page 125



 

The statement above is simple, clear and unambiguous. However it carries the 

implication that, given the historical presence of chaplaincy in the “patient offer”, the 

NHS Wales may well feel that it is appropriate to facilitate hospital chaplaincy. This 

should not be confused with funding hospital chaplaincy.  

The NHS Wales probably has no statutory duty to provide for the visiting of patients by 

family and friends but historically it is expected that this should be facilitated. Visitor 

hours are set, car parks are provided and staff are no doubt encouraged to answer 

questions that visitors may have concerning patient care and the progress that patients are 

making.  

BUT the NHS Wales does not fund the visiting of patients. It does not refund travel costs 

or overnight accommodation costs should these be necessary. It provides a car park for 

visitors but expects them to pay a charge which will cover the cost of that provision. It 

plausibly argues that the money needed to maintain a car park would be better spent on 

medical and nursing care. 

 

Our Petition [P-04-457] asks only that the Welsh Government work with organised 

religion to transfer funding to a charitable trust while maintaining the existing facility of 

religious care and ensuring that it at least meets the Standards defined as a response to the 

2003  Health Standards Act.  

 

Despite the many problems with the 2010 Standards for Spiritual Care (which include, a 

failure to define “spiritual care” adequately, ambiguity and a lack of participation by 

NHS Wales service users in  its production) it remains, for now, the only available 

definition of the role of hospital chaplains. 

Page 126



Consideration of Individual Health Board Responses 
 

Returns available for:-    No returns for:- 

Powys Teaching H.B.      Hywel Dda H.B. 

Cardiff & Vale U.H.B.     Aneurin Bevan H.B. 

Abertawe Bro Morganwg U.H.B.    Cwm Taf H.B. 

Betsi Cadwaladr U.H.B. 

 

Questions: 

1. Whether any data in relation to use of chaplaincy services is recorded; and  

 

2. For clarity on how funding is allocated for chaplaincy services across the range of sites 

your LHB is responsible for and how you ensure equity of service provision.  

 

 

Response from:   

Director of Therapies & Health Science – Executive Lead for FOI , Powys Teaching 

Health Board,  30
th

 July 2013 

The response reveals the fact that, despite frequent claims by the College of Health Care 

Chaplains and organised religion that chaplains are much valued and extensively used 

there seems to be very little in  the way of useful data to support these claims. 

This is not a problem in respect of our Proposal since we do not question the value of 

chaplaincy (we have no more data to do this than do supporters of state funding of 

religious care). We only wish to see the funding of the existing service transferred from 

the NHS Wales budget to a charitable trust. 

 

We have for six financial years asked Health Boards in our FOI Act requests the 

following question. 

 

For the previous financial year, what was the total cost to your Board for the provision of 

Chaplaincy Services? 

 

To which the Powys Teaching Health Board provided the following data:- 
2007/8  £35,228 2008/9  £38,119 2009/10 £46,603 

2010/11 £45,389   2011/12 £34,543 2012/13 £38,364 

 

The figure of £31,253 given in the response does not state the year (financial or calendar) 

and indicates that this is for salaries only. Our request was for “total cost”. The total cost 

to an employer is far more than salary when National Insurance, pension, accommodation 

and support services are included. Indeed a commonly used “rule of thumb” is to double 

the salary cost. This response casts some doubt upon the data for cost, hinting that it may 

be even higher than we fear and sheds no light on how chaplains are deployed. 

Page 127



 

Response from:  

Chief Executive, Cardiff and Vale University Health Board, 7
th

 August 

 

The response adds little to our understanding of the reasons for the use of NHS Wales 

budget for religious care. The activities listed are: Prayer, Communion services, Last 

Rites, infant emergency Baptism, pastoral visiting, religious services, advice and 

guidance about faith and cultural (probably code for non-Christian religious observances) 

issues as they relate to health, health care, death and dying. These are all religious care 

services. No comparable specific instances of so called “spiritual care” are provided thus 

we get no clear idea of what such non-religious “spiritual care” really is. 

It is clear that the Chief Executive sees that allocation of budget to religious care is 

required because of the 2010 Standards documents. 

 

Response from:  

Board Secretary, Abertawe Bro Morganwg University Health Board, 8
th

 August 

 

This response simply states that there are no data on the use of chaplaincy services. A 

geographical breakdown of spend is given. The total spend is identical to that obtained by 

the Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign through FOI Act requests. Equality of provision is 

confirmed but no explanation is given on how this is ensured - as was requested. 

 

Response from:  

Acting Chief Executive, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, 15
th

 August  

 

In this response we believe that a serious error is made by the Acting Chief Executive in 

asserting that Equalities Legislation makes the provision of religious care a statutory 

responsibility. The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign has asked the National Secular 

Society to obtain legal advice on this matter but the present view is that this claim is 

unfounded so should be expunged from the Petitions Committee evidence. 

The account of chaplaincy activities is extensive although there is no clear distinction 

between “spiritual care” and “religious care”. The terms appear to be interchangeable. 

 

The author appears to misunderstand the medical use of  the term “holistic”. This is a 

common error made by those who are enthusiastic about religious care for the sick. 

 

 

Alan Rogers 

 

15
th

 November 2013 

                                                 
i
  Standards for Spiritual Care Services in the NHS in Wales 2010 and  Standards for Spiritual Care 
Services in the NHS in Wales 2010, Supporting Guidance. Published during the Third Assembly 

 
ii
 http://www.bnp.org.uk/news/nhs-hospital-chaplaincy-service-under-threat 

  
iii

 See email from the Department of Health in comment on Minister’s response above. 

Page 128



P-04-463 Reduction of Salt Levels in Food 

Petition wording: 

We, the undersigned, call upon the Welsh Government to reduce the amount 
of salt in food so that people are able to choose healthy lifestyles in Wales. 

Supporting Information: High salt intake is a noted contributor to 
hypertension (high blood pressure) that can lead to strokes and heart 
attacks. 

Petition raised by: Harry Hayfield 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 19 March 2013 

Number of signatures:  11 

 

Agenda Item 4.14

Page 129



P-04-463 Reduction of Salt Levels in Food: Correspondence from the 

Petitioner to Clerking team – 18 October 2013 

Firstly I do apologise for taking such a long time to get back to you. When I got the 

first e-mail on August 18th 2013, the Welsh language came up first (and the only 

reason I knew it had something to do with my petition was the PDF attachment with 

the Minister’s reply). I had no idea that you were expecting my thoughts on the 

Minister’s reply until the second e-mail (which happened to arrive whilst I was on 

holiday in England and therefore away from my computer where I could read the 

Minister’s reply) 

I am glad that the Minister recognises that three quarters of all the salt ingested by 

the Welsh population is hidden, and that the Welsh Government supports the 

targets laid down by the Food Standards Agency but am disappointed that the 

Minister does not believe that anymore can be done under the current constraints of 

the devolution settlement. I would like to think that the Minister would take these 

statements and my petition on board and put forward (either in his and the 

Assembly Government’s time or via a backbencher) whatever the term is given for a 

policy passed by the Assembly that is signed into law by Her Majesty (I regret that I 

do not know the term). Therefore, would it be possible to speak with the Minister 

(ideally in person when he next visits Ceredigion) and address these concerns with 

him? 

 

Page 130



P-04-490 Antiretroviral Medication in Cardiff 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to act in regards to the very limited supply of antiretroviral HIV medications. 
Recent changes by the Cardiff University Hospital means that every single 
patient receiving antiretroviral medications has to come either to the hospital 
pharmacy with restricted opening times or opt for home delivery. Stable 
patients with good adherence are seen every 4-6 months for an appointment 
with the consultant yet distribution of medication is limited to a monthly 
supply only. The minister of health does not feel responsible and does not 
step in. Patients should receive a fair distribution of medication that is 
according to the guidance of the UK HIV association. 
 
Petition raised by: Joerg Thieme 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 18 June 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 150 

Agenda Item 4.15

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



P-04-490 Antiretroviral Medication in Cardiff – Correspondence 
from the petitioner to the Committee, 08.11.2013 
 
I am appalled by the response of the Health Minister! Stating a saving of 15-50 million 
for Wales is totally inaccurate. The 28 prescription guidelines was implemented to 
reduce waste but was NEVER intended for HIV patients. I am amazed about the sheer 
blindness of this. Somebody, god knows who, implemented the 28 days cycle for HIV 
patients in Wales. Something hospitals in London never heard of!!!!! 
The Welsh Health Minister underestimates guidelines in hospital. As a former 
Radiographer myself I would get into trouble if I work against guidelines, justifying 
myself for managers and the health board. 
I can assure the Health Minister with absolute certainty that no clinician with sound mind 
would voluntarily act against given guidelines. That is because of the justification that 
has to follow in front of managers and health boards. Something no stuff member is 
keen on doing! 
 
Is the Welsh Government saving 15 Million or 50 Million? Maybe somebody can explain 
those numbers? 
 
I wish to stress that the 28 guidelines are intended for GP mainly. Also I wish to stress 
that hardly there are HIV patients where the prescription has to be changed suddenly! 
The consultant will get a feeling for that very well in advance and this takes time. Never 
ever is a HIV patient required to suddenly change medication. If a HIV patient is 
believed to change medication then that will be implemented over time, NEVER 
suddenly. 
 
I am appalled about the lies in order to justify the 28 days prescription rule for HIV 
medications in Wales. I wonder if the Health Minister can point out one single hospital in 
England doing that as well. There is not any. 
I therefore urge the Welsh Government to admit a wrong approach with this and come 
back to the normality. 
I will not come back for treatment in Cardiff until this mess is sorted out. I cannot come 
to the hospital pharmacy with such restricted opening times and I cannot opt for home 
delivery. Its not working for me. 
I rather travel to London twice a year to get my medication. 
 
kind regards 
Joerg Thieme 
 

Page 134



P-04-501 Day Centres for the elderly in Wales to be made 
statutory 

Petition wording: 

We call on the Welsh Government to make Day Care Centres for older people 

a statutory requirement for the whole of Wales. 

 

Petition raised by: Pamela Hughes 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 24 September 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 1240 

 

Agenda Item 4.16

Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



P-04-501 Day Centres for the elderly in Wales to be made 
statutory – Correspondence from the petitioners to the 
Committee, 18.11.2013 
 
FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE PETITIONS COMMITTEE: 

 

Having read the letter from Gwenda Thomas to William Powell, we are very much in 

your hands with regard to the next step. 

 

Gwenda Thomas states "I would suggest the Petitions Committee explores the 

purpose of Day Centres, and the need they are designed to address". 

 

Could this be possible for discussion at your next meeting? 

 

Many thanks, 

Martin W. Shewring. 

 

Page 138



P-04-505 Eating Disorder Unit in Wales 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to inform the Welsh 

Government of the urgency and necessity to provide a specialist eating 

disorder unit in Wales. 

 

Additional Information:  

We would like to see a specialist eating disorder unit built in Wales to reduce 

the stress and disruption of traveling so far from family and friends by 

having to go to England to receive treatment. In 2007 the government 

acknowledged that there was no specialist treatment in Wales and that this 

needed to change, yet 5 years on we are still waiting for that change. I know 

from personal experience how hard it is to be in hospital so far away from 

home and believe that an eating disorder unit in Wales would make the 

process of treatment and recovery easier for welsh sufferers. 

 

Petition raised by:  Keira Marlow 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 8 October 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 526  

 

Agenda Item 4.17

Page 139



P
age 140



P
age 141



P-04-505 Eating Disorder Unit in Wales – Correspondence from 

the petitioner to the clerking team, 09.11.2013 

 
Dear Sian, 

 

Thank you for letting me know when the petition will be considered. 

 

I would only like to state how important it is to have an eating disorder hospital in Wales, due to there 

not currently being one. It would reduce the patients stress of being so far from home and would mean 

that the patients family and friends could visit more often due to a welsh hospital being much closer 

than an english one. It would also allow the patient to have faster access to the specialist care and 

treatment that an inpatient hospital would offer, without having to be on a long waiting list for a bed in 

an english hospital with which the spaces are limited.  

 

As noted in the Minister for Health and Social Services pdf, my petition didn’t state what age the 

hospital was for, but I was campaigning for an over 18 hospital. 

 

Best wishes, 

 

Keira Marlow 

 

Page 142



P-04-363 Town Centre Improvement Scheme for Fishguard 
 
Petition wording: 

We, the undersigned, request that the National Assembly supports the call 

on the Welsh Government to work with Pembrokeshire County Council to 

ensure that investment is made in a Town Centre Improvement Scheme for 

Fishguard, including pedestrian and traffic management measures. Such an 

Improvement Scheme must improve the viability and sustainability of the 

Town and make it fully accessible for all residents and visitors, including 

those with mobility and other disability needs. 

 

Petition raised by: Councillor Bob Kilmister 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 7 February 2012 

Number of signatures: 1,042 

Agenda Item 4.18

Page 143



Page 144



P-04-419 : Wind Farm Moratorium 

Petition wording:  

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to ask the Welsh Government 

for a moratorium on wind farm and wind turbine developments for which it 

has devolved responsibility.  The moratorium will be used as a period of 

reflection, during which time a cross party committee will be convened to 

examine the effects of operation of wind turbines upon the health, social 

well-being, property value, effects on tourism, and the  local economy within 

15Km of installations.  

We ask that the all party committee be allowed to commission independent 

research on the devolved issues of Health, Social Well Being and Tourism 

with respect to wind turbines, and to agree a set of standards for devolved 

wind energy, which will prioritise the care of local environment, amenity 

land, habitat and nature. 

We also ask that all devolved wind turbine installations be subject to the 

approval of a local (5Km) referendum. 

This petition excludes wind power controlled by National Infrastructure 

Directorate.  

Petition raised by:  James Shepherd Foster 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  2 October 2012 

Number of signatures: 1332 

 

 

Agenda Item 4.19

Page 145



P
age 146



P-04-419 Wind Farm Moratorium – Correspondence from the 
petitioner to the Chair, 14.11.2013 

 

Galar ecology volunteer group 
 

14
th

. November 2013 

Dear Mr. Powell, 

Thank you once again for the opportunity to respond to the information being supplied by the Welsh 

Assembly Government to our petition.  

We have no information to report, from NRW or Mr. John Griffiths, in answer to our last requests. 

(Your letter 3
rd

. October 2013 Ref. P-04-419). 

I would like to thank Mr Carl Sargeant AC/AM Minister for Housing and Regeneration for his 

response and would make the following points, in respect of his letter: 

Para 2.  Firstly I would consider a consultation which only drew 1,723 responses from the Welsh 

population, (0.006%), to be inadequate.  I would remind you that this petition of 1,332 responses is 

77% of the target the minister considers adequate for consultation by the National Government of 

this country.  Our responses were achieved by a few volunteers acting by word of mouth, and door to 

door.  Further, this is with regard to one form of Renewable Energy, where the Welsh Assembly 

Government considers 12 in its proposals, (see Practise Guidance- Planning Implications of 

Renewable and Low Carbon Energy).  

Para 3. LDP’s; these can and are subject to WAG approval, when local opinion is out of sync with 

the WAG the Central Governments opinion takes precedence.   

Mr. Sargeant’s claim that, “wind farm planning applications are subject to public consultation and 

the views of the local community are taken into account in the decision making process”, is 

meaningless if that consultation is ignored in favour of WAG targets.  The evidence for this was 

amply demonstrated at the inquiry into Carmarthenshire County Councils refusal of the RES 

application at Bryn Llywelyn.  RES lawyers stated the targets set for SSA G by Mr. J. Griffiths had 

to be adhered to.  Carmarthen County Council conceded this, but claimed that accepting other 

applications and the possible extension of SSA G could see WAG targets met. At no point between 

2004 and the present day, despite increasing targets, has further consultation been undertaken.   

The Developer led ‘consultation’ Mr. Sargeant refers to in the last part of the paragraph is merely a 

public relations exercise by the developer, and offers no alternative technology as required by both 

Aarhus and EU directives.  At no point has this petition sought to address developer installations 

over 50MW.  WAG approves in principal applications over 50 MW, otherwise they would not be 

counted in the Ministers demand for SSA totals.   These totals, are decided by WAG, and have not 

been subject to public consultation. 

Consultation 

I would show two examples of consultation requirements from EU directives.  Both ratified before 

TAN 8. (Please note TAN 8 is not an EU directive, and the SSA’s should have been subject to the 

checks and balances of EU Directives, in force at the time of TAN 8’s inception, and at intervals 

when substantive changes were made). 

1. European Noise Directive 2002/49/EC Article 3V defining those who should be consulted. 

‘the public’ shall mean one or more natural or legal persons and, in accordance with 

national legislation or practice, their associations, organisations or groups. 

2. From the Habitats Directive: To achieve this, the Directive introduces a modern, flexible and 

inclusive approach to site conservation that puts people at the heart of the process. It 

recognises that humans are an integral part of nature and that the two work best in 

partnership with one another. Everyone has a role to play in making Natura 2000 a success – Page 147



be they public authorities, private landowners and users, developers, conservation NGOs, 

scientific experts, local communities or individual members of the public..  

 

The Petition. 

In our document Wind Farm Moratorium Petition of the 4
th

.April 2013 we asked the Petitions 

Committee to examine seven points in relation to our petition.  Perhaps it would be advantageous at 

this point to examine where we are in relation to these, and suggest some sort of solution.  We are 

very aware of the Committees time available to consider petitions is valuable; and that this petition 

has had its fair share of the time available.  I have listed the seven points in the table overleaf, and 

our own suggestions how this can be satisfactorily concluded from the petitioners viewpoint. 

 

 

Petition Points & Requests Progress  

1. Matters of Health & Safety in 

Construction and Design of Wind 

Turbines. 

We have made little progress, in that the 

Minister for Housing and Regeneration 

considered all our requests to be without 

merit. I feel that the petitions process has 

gone about as far as it can go on this matter. 

However there is one outstanding point we 

would ask the Committee to address.  This is 

point A below. 

2.Matters of planning and placement of 

turbines in rural landscapes. 3. Matters 

where turbines are given precedence over 

other EU and WAG regulation and 

directives. 

These two points were the most important to 

those who signed the petition.  The planning 

and placement of wind turbines is not only a 

decision for the developer, it is a matter for 

an EIA, EU landscape regulation, The 

Habitats Directive and EU Soundscape 

regulation.  At the heart of all EU 

environmental directives is consultation with 

the public. This refers to Point B below.  

4.Matters where TAN 8 Guidelines need to 

become regulatory limits. 

5.Disclosure on imperatives placed on 

County Councils by WAG to accept 

applications.  The efficacy of applications 

within the National Energy Policy, and a 

clear indication of what that National 

Energy Policy is 

In SSA G we have a TAN 8 Final Report 

2005, which we understood to be the 

guidelines on which applications within SSA 

G would be judged.  We went through a 

pointless exercise on the Application for 

Brechfa Forest East discovering that all of 

the twelve turbines failed to meet the final 

report criteria.  We now discover that Mr. 

Griffith’s targets are more important and 

outweigh Arup.  

These two points (opposite) sought to have 

WAG adopt a more open and honest 

approach from the start, and to have a clear 

distinction between WAG and the developer, 

and a clear indication what the future 

National Energy Policy is, and how it will be 

structured. Our suggested way forward on 

these points is C below. 

6. Tourism Our suggested way forward on is D below 

7 Community Benefits Our suggested way forward is E below 

 Page 148



Point A.  If the Minister feels that the quality of the product being installed in Wales should be 

decided by the Developer, a party with only a financial interest in outcomes, then there is never 

going to be a meeting of minds.  However, one point is of overriding interest to our farming 

communities.  All turbines are insured by the developer against damage and loss, this includes 

turbine fire.  What is not clear is if the developer insures to compensate adjacent farmland from PCB 

and other noxious chemical deposits contamination from fires, bio security failures allowing the 

introduction of damaging species during installation, (e.g Japanese Knot weed), and at what level 

such compensation is set. If there is no imperative or rule, should farmers adjacent to wind farms be 

obliged to take out separate insurance?  This is particularly pertinent on single turbine installations, 

which in the recent past have suffered far higher incident rates than major wind farms. 

  

Point B. The public should be made aware of all EU directives, and local LDP conditions 

appertaining to wind farms at the planning stage.  We are well aware that a Minister can seek 

subsidiarity on directives in the interest of WAG ambitions, but such subsidiarity should be clearly 

indicated.  Similarly, LDP’s would have more credibility if they were in the gift of the County 

Councils and WAG ministers exercised the WAG imperative on a case by case basis, clearly 

indicated to the public.  We would like the petitions committee to ask the WAG for clearer planning 

guidance on all wind turbine installations, and all EIA’s to have the list of pertinent EU directives 

and whether NRW is seeking subsidiarity and upon what grounds.  We would also ask the Petitions 

Committee to ascertain from NRW the position regarding the full implementation of 2002/49/EC for 

areas of open country, and more specifically their noise mapping plans, which to have any credence, 

should precede wind farm installations.  I have tried as a private individual to obtain this information 

prior to our petition, this petition has also asked this question, and we have received no reply. 

Point Ca. We would ask the Petitions Committee to ask the Welsh Government to set a clear set of 

guidelines for TAN 8, in a similar way that Arup did for the final reports on the SSA’s in 2005.  If a 

developer feels that his application has to breach these guidelines, then he should seek NRW’s 

permission for the breach, and NRW’s reasons should be clearly set out in the EIA. 

Point Cb. The WAG planning directive Practise Guidance-Planning Implications of Renewable 

and Low Carbon Energy lists 12 on shore renewable energy disciplines.  In practice, however, only 

wind energy has a target and target date, in effect this is a Wind Energy Document.  Any CO2 

emissions saved by wind energy are aggregated into world emissions, where the following 

disciplines are recognised by the IPCC as having a direct effect on local climate, as well as 

potentially reducing CO2 emissions far faster than a single technology.  The disciplines are: 

Ground, water and air source heat pumps:  Geothermal : Fuel cells : Combined heat and power 

(CHP) and combined cooling heat and power (CCHP) : District heating : Waste heat. 

We ask the Petitions Committee to ask the WAG to provide targets and target dates for the above 

technologies, and to clearly indicate where the funding and budgets will come from.  We would like 

this information to be made available in respect of Wind energy as well, so the public are fully aware 

of the potential costs to their family budgets. 

Point Cc.  The public inquiries in Carmarthen and Welshpool, (still current) are restricted to 

considering impacts over the next 25 years, (as though this is a time limited programme, with an end 

scenario).  Developers only consider this time, EIA’s are the same.  Yet both the Secretary of State 

for Energy and WAG talk about wind energy being Future Energy Security. Clearly future means 

more than 25 years, or does it?  At the Powys Inquiry it is often made plain that on some topics, 

(Landscape for example), that the advice would be different, if we considered an ongoing 

programme, rather than a time limited one.  The first consideration is that the turbine is no longer 

infrastructure, but is now a consumable.  To keep the SSA’s operating in a rolling programme 

GALAR did a table top calculation exercise, which took decommissioning and recommissioning into 

account, and the Load Factor of 30% it was calculated after the initial installations it would require 

105 x 2.4MW  installations per year, over the next 100 years to maintain the 30% target (of course 

100 years would be no more an end date, than 25 years is now, we chose it as being the possible 

lifespan of children born today).  We also considered some infrastructure alterations, (road 

improvements, SSA’s having permanent crane facilities, building material availability), this reduced 

the figure to 98 x 2.4MW installations per year, but the true figure is in the gift of NRW working 
Page 149



with DECC and calculating the infrastructure changes possible to speed de/recommissioning, and of 

course the ongoing costs.  This information is available on the Nuclear programme, recently 

announced.  We would ask the petitions committee to ask NRW to estimate turbine numbers to 

maintain the SSA’s at a 30% load factor over a realistic time period, inclusive of impacts on 

infrastructure, environment, biodiversity, disposal of unrecyclable parts etc. 

Point D. Several studies have been produced which look at the acceptance of turbine to the 

visitor/tourist. (These are two defined groups, those who have a set destination, and those who move 

from place to place). Most tourism reports on wind farm impacts do not differentiate, because  

reports are aimed at proving no impact.  In fact, the effects on Spanish tourism of building work in 

resort areas  are germane to the soon to be realised Welsh experience.  Spain suffered not from the 

resultant architecture, but the fact that building continued while tourists/visitors were trying to enjoy 

rest and relaxation in the area they had chosen.  The effect on Spain was so severe that they had to 

change their preferred visitor profile, and reduce drastically the fiscal expectation per visitor in areas 

common to the existing Welsh model, and change it to high consumerism of their new visitor profile.  

Current studies on Windfarm impact hark to the days when the programme is complete, and if the 

predictions by GALAR in Cc above are correct, that scenario will never be achieved. We ask the 

Petitions Committee to request a report from WAG Tourism to examine the build time of turbines, 

on the areas local to the SSA’s.  Further that they should advise established hotels and guest facilities 

of methods to reduce the impact over the next seven years, in all the areas of Wales affected. 

Point D While Mr. Sargeant has said he is examining community benefits with the Developers, this 

is totally unsatisfactory if any significant increase, which does not impact on the fuel poor of Wales, 

is to be obtained.  If wind farms are to be recognised as future energy security  then the impact on 

communities in and around the SSA’s and other wind turbine installations will  need a far greater 

recompense per megawatt than the present £5,000 per installed MW suggested.  As we originally 

said new money from the windfall profits of the landlords, and central taxation, (or indeed now 

WAG has tax raising powers from them.) The Central Government Minister for Energy and the 

Prime Minister have said money for renewable energy should be at least part funded from central 

coffers.  On this we repeat our original request.  We ask the Petitions Committee to ask the WAG to 

appoint a cross party committee to examine Community Benefits with respect to Wind Farms and 

report to the WAG their recommendations in achieving realistic payment for the imposition of life 

changing industrial structures on rural communities. 

 

Yours Sincerely 

James Shepherd Foster 

Technical Advisor GALAR 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150



 

 

 

 

 

Attention of the Petitions Committee 

14 November 2013 

To William Powell AM. Chair 

 

Dear Sir, 

Ref. Wind Farm Moratorium Petition P-04-419 

Our section of GALAR examines tourist matters in relation to Wales and we 

would like to put forward the following comments in respect of the impact on 
tourism which wind farms may have. 

The first point we wish you to consider is that Wales has two types of 
holidaymaker, the visitor and the tourist.  Visitors typically go to a destination,  

holidaying and visiting places close to their destination. Tourists move around 
Wales, either by coach, their own motor transport, or bicycle. 

Visitors tend to be faithful to their area of choice and record the best returns 
figures, often holidaying in the same area year on year. 

Tourists tend towards one off visits, and returns are much more sporadic.  
However, there are key group numbers, mainly among cyclists, caravaners, and 

motor homes who do record a high number of returns. 

We haven’t the skill sets or manpower within the group to undertake accurate 

and verifiable opinion polls, so our conclusions regarding wind farms have been 

obtained from tourists/visitors and people operating holiday accommodation at 
the moment. 

Visitors who have chosen destinations which do not have the prospect of wind 
farms, are the group least likely to have negative feelings towards wind farms.  

Conversely visitors who regularly use an area which is threatened by wind 
development, have the most positive feelings against wind farms siting both 

construction and landscape change as being the reason for not revisiting an 
area.  It was unclear whether they would move to another non threatened 

destination within Wales, or seek other areas of the country. 

Coach tourists have itineraries usually planned around National Parks and resort 

destinations, and are more disturbed by pylons than wind farms.  However, 
caravaners and motor home tourists all reported high degrees of opposition 

mainly on construction traffic, but many on despoliation of landscape. 

Cyclists were the most negative of all groups, the cyclists using mountain bike 

trails are particularly opposed, especially in areas where trails are likely to be 

closed for extensive periods of time.  Most of these cyclists do not believe the 
trails will be reopened.  Touring cyclists, are more generally affected by the 

Page 151



prospect of construction traffic on the quiet single track roads, which many site 

as their reason for visiting Wales.  They usually are a cross between a visitor 
and a tourist, in that they move around the country by train or motor vehicles 

with bike carriers.  They generally site areas like Cornwall and Devon as being 
destinations ruined by wind farms, and recently the publicity on wind farm 

impact on electricity bills has increased opposition in all groups. 

Areas of Measurable Tranquillity 

Our Technical advice team has recognised a new “blue flag” type area depiction 

in the countryside, promised by an EU Directive, (The European Noise 
Directive), which should be available in the near future.  Our ‘in house’ News 

Sheet comments on it as follows: 

Once we have full acceptance of 2002/49/EC it will provide noise mapping of the open country 

where all industrial noise, is pollution, to a degree.  The European Noise Directive seeks to protect 

areas where natural noise is good, and to seek Areas of Measurable Tranquillity within member 

states, to be similar to the blue flag beaches of our coastal areas. This is especially important to 

Wales’s tourist industry, especially as medical professionals increasingly equate noise stress to 

cardio vascular health issues.  There is a vast degree of acoustic difference between an “ Area of 

Measurable Tranquillity”  and an Industrial area within an agglomeration, but the key to all noise 

control is basic noise measurement, or base levels.  This is why it is important that the open country 

around wind farms is mapped prior to the installation or operation, to provide that base level.  

All our members who run Holiday Accommodation, and some others we 

questioned were positive in favour of areas of measurable tranquillity, and 
considered it would be a real boost to tourism. 

We feel that an honest appraisal of visitors/tourists is required taking into 
account construction times as well as visual impact.  We recently downloaded a 

tourist document presented as evidence to the Bryn Llywelyn enquiry in 
Carmarthen.  It reported that tourism would likely be positively affected by 

wind farms, but closer scrutiny reveals there was no assessment of the build 
period, there was no distinction between tourists and visitors, and one table 

showed a 99% approval of wind turbines. (Neither Stalin, Hitler, or Saddam 
Husain achieved that level of approval), this has caused us to doubt much of 

the evidence produced by Government or certainly, the developers. 

Yours faithfully, 

Sylvia Maskelyne 

GALAR Tourism  

 

Page 152



P-04-423 : Brooklands Nursing Home 

Petition wording:  

We call on the National Assembly of Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 

consider if residents of Brooklands Nursing Home would have their human 

rights infringed by the siting of the civic amenity site 30 metres from the 

home. 

Supporting Information :  Staff and relatives of clients at Brooklands are 

very unhappy.  The council are proposing to put the Civic amenities from 

Tenby adjacent to Brooklands Nursing Home.  We strongly feel that their last 

days should be spent enjoying peace and tranquillity and not be disrupted 

with noise, pollution, traffic disruption, disruption from seagulls etc.  Our 

clients are vulnerable adults who are unable to voice their opinion and so 

they need your help.  Would you like to spend the rest of your days with the 

tip as your neighbour?  We wouldn’t.  Please help with our petition and sign 

below. 

Petition raised by:  Darren Umanee 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  2 October 2012 

Number of signatures:  115. Associated petitions collected over 4484 
signatures 

 

 

Agenda Item 4.20

Page 153



P-04-423 Brooklands Nursing Home – Correspondence from the 
petitioner to the clerking team, 15.10.2013 
 

Dear Mr George 

 

Re: response from Pembrokeshire County Council to the withdrawal of CA application. 

 

We are aware that PCC are remaining non - committal with regard to this issue. Of late there have 

been local rumours that they are getting ready to resubmit the application. Of course the fact that 

we are still in limbo remains a cause of deep distress for our residents & their relatives and we hope 

that PCC have the decency to make us aware of their decision soon.  

 

Many apologies for the delay in our response.  

 

We would like to thank the Petitions Committee for their continued support. 

 

Darren Umanee 

Manager, Brooklands Nursing Home. 

 

Page 154



P-04-469 Remove the Right-To-Buy Regional Price Cap 

 Petition wording: 

Removal the regional price cap of the Right-To-Buy scheme in Wales. 

Wales has yet again been left in the dark ages with policies. The UK 
government have outlined plans for a maximum of £75,000 discount in 
England yet it is still capped at a measly £16,000. The disparity in wealth will 
continue to grow and council tenants will never fulfil their ambitions of ever 
purchasing their own home.   

Petition raised by:  James Jackson 

 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 16 April 2013 

 

Number of signatures : 171 

 

Agenda Item 4.21

Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



P-04-469 Remove the Right-To-Buy Regional Price Cap – 
Correspondence from the petitioner to the clerking team, 
29.09.2013 
 

Hi Kayleigh,  

 

My response would be thus; 

 

It is a real shame that the petition was seen as ‘dead in the water’ as soon as it was brought up for 

discussion. First of all is it that fair that a border could alter a house price by up to £59,000? Not really. 

The incentives to buy the current housing stock are just completely unjust. 

 

Secondly – whilst it would initially lower the council owned housing stock, hopefully it would grow the 

overall housing stock in the long run – addressing shortage issues altogether.  

 

Finally – with much of the Welsh housing stock pre-1970 and totally energy-inefficient and hard to 

maintain it would release the expensive burden of the upkeep of the older properties and allow more 

concentration on newer stock with much easier asset management.  

 

We just as for a bit of parity.  

 

Thank You 

 

Kind Regards 

James Jackson 

 

Page 158



P-04-473 Wind Farm Public Inquiry Financial Support 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to provide substantial additional financial support to help Powys County 

Council defend its position during the forthcoming Combined Public Inquiry 

into wind farm developments in Powys. 

Additional Information: 

The decision to object to the applications was made through a legal and 

democratic process by County Councilors who represent the people of 

Powys. The continuation of this process is to stage a combined public 

inquiry. By refusing to provide funding and support, there appears to have 

been no regard to local democratic accountability by the Welsh Assembly 

Government. 

Petition raised by:  John Christopher Day 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 16 April 2013 
 
Number of signatures: 1247 
 

Agenda Item 4.22

Page 159



Page 160



P-04-473 Wind farm public inquiry financial support – 
Correspondence from the petitioner to the Chair, 15.11.2013 

 DEAR MR POWELL 

Wind Farm Public Inquiry Financial Support 

Thank you for considering the above petition.  

 I am extremely disappointed at the Welsh Assembly Governments’ refusal to 

provide additional financial assistance to Powys County Council.   It is because 

of the lack of clarity and guidance in the Welsh Assembly Government planning 

processes and the outdated Technical Advice, that Powys County Council has 

been forced into their current position.  The Council is being unfairly penalised 

for carrying out their legal and moral duty whilst representing the residents of 

Powys.   

The additional expenditure incurred through the Public Inquiry process will 

undoubtedly mean a further reduction in essential services. 

I urge you to ask the Assembly Government to reconsider its position. 

  

I thank you, the Petitions Committee, and the Administrative staff for their help 

and advice. 

  

Yours sincerely, 

John Day 

 

Page 161



P-04-497 National Graduate Housing Scheme 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to support construction of Housing for Graduate Students. 
 
Supporting Information:  
Details of the proposed national graduate housing schemes 
 
What I describe here is nothing short of a revolutionary set of National 
Monuments. The buildings I shall go on to detail have a function that affects 
social growth at the most real grass roots level. Towers of opportunity and 
centrepieces of re-development; The National Graduate’s Housing Schemes 
are the most real part of tomorrow’s world. Constructed in the same fashion 
as our most modern shopping malls and hospitals; these masterpieces are 
both splendid and achievable for the masses. I envisage estates of structures 
as tall as eight or twelve storeys in height. Built from steel frames; there is as 
much fluidity in their form as there is rigidity in their function. The residents 
can enjoy food and fine wine, coffee, fashion and dances. All from within the 
boundaries of their exclusive accommodation facilities. 
 
The lower street levels are all avenues, precincts and terraces. Here the 
concept is that these most modern developments are superior to previous 
mass housing efforts through having integral Shopping and Entertainment 
facilities. Crucial street level ‘Graduate Jobpoints’ offer more than simply 
career advice. The contact between the generations there allows for full 
understanding of exactly what degrees are there on the Resident’s Roll of 
Names. The roll of the Managerials in the Graduate Jobpoint is then to assist 
the Graduates in finding their place in the economy. Other professional 
services can be accommodated in archetectural designs allowing for on-site 
businesses. Here multi-discipline task forces can be assembled to work 
directly on issues that are most relavent to a progressive student movement.  
 
Incorporated into the structures of the major buildings there are positions 
for many business to serve and employ the residents. The lower two to three 
levels contain numerous outlets including grocery stores, cafes, bars, etc. 
There is also space within the buildings for commercial/civil office space for 
specialist task forces of graduates and professional bodies to work economic 
accelerator areas. The same design and construction forces applied through 
construction of buildings for economic key areas such as fashion and media 
may also bring about greater employment levels 
 
It is important that the Graduate sector recieves Government Support, That is 
if Government are to hold good to the money they have loaned. As for 
Government funding the rent of the Graduate Residents, the system is loss-
less where Government is also the Landlord.  The National Graduate Housing 
Schemes are works of Socio-Politico genius that can and will show 

Agenda Item 4.23

Page 162



themselves as this Country and it’s global neighbours move on through the 
coming years. 
 
To conclude; I suggest a Graduate world that is managed lightly and 
smoothly so that all those finishing University successfully can find the right 
place in a developing society. This only means wise stewardship of 
qualifications towards businesses. 
 

Petition raised by:  GWYRDDISM 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 24 September 2013 

 

Page 163



P
age 164



P-04-497 National Graduate Housing Scheme – Correspondence from the 

petitioner to the Chair, 08.10.2013 

Dear Sir, 

 

I write to explain the benefits of working specifically upon housing the Graduate Sector of 

the Demographic Economy.  Firstly let me tell you this; The National Graduate Housing 

Scheme is not simply a Housing Solution aimed at a 'Foot Loose' section of the Economy, it 

includes self contained 'offices' where Managerial training can build Socio-Economic 

Accelerator Systems (S.E.A.S.) 

 

This proposed system does not exist as a machine or as an electronic structure but rather as a 

continually developing and refining sociological heirarchy.  To give an example let us firstly 

focus upon Government itself; a small-medium National Graduate Housing Scheme 

Development may contain 600-1200 Graduates ready for employment.  A number of 

Graduates as small as 100-180 may realise many concepts for Socio-Economic Acceleration 

in a relatively short space of time.  A managerial task force preparing these Graduates for a 

career in employment may easily come by a good many ideas for socio-economic 

acceleration using 'brain-storming' exercises.  Here Graduates can explain their own material 

needs and systems to answer those needs can be designed. 

 

My point is thus: A housed and secured Graduate sector in conjunction with an active 

Managerial Task Force can realise many goal such as much higher employment ratios.  New 

and more modern concepts of Sociological Co-ordination can become realised.  New 

Housing can be conceptualised and construction work forces can be trained and prepared. 

 

To Conclude I say this; the 'linking in' of the idle graduate sector and the next phase tutors 

(Managerial Career Trainers) creates a fluid and buoyant economic drive train.  These 

national Graduate Housing Schemes work to create new jobs Nationwide and thereby 

massively quicken the economy. 

 

Yours, R.P.H.B. 
 

Page 165



P-04-503 Regeneration of Ton and Pentre 

Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to give 

special consideration for the use of European Regional Funding to redevelop 

Ton and Pentre in the Rhondda Valley. 

 

Additional information: 

Ferndale and Maerdy in the Rhondda Fach and Treorchy and Treherbert in 

the Rhondda Fawr have received European funding through the Heads of the 

Valleys Programme for the purpose of redevelopment. We feel that Ton and 

Pentre should now benefit from European funding also to bring them into 

line with the rest of the area. 

 

Petition raised by: Mike Powell 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 24 September 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 389 

 

Agenda Item 4.24

Page 166



P
age 167



P-04-503 Regeneration of Ton and Pentre – Correspondence from 
the petitioner to the clerking team, 08.11.2013 
 
Dear Sian 

Thank you for the e-mail  
Although i am as you could understand I disappointed with the result 
I thank you for you kind help in my dealings with the petitions department. 
Kind regards  
Mike Powell 
  

 

Page 168



P-04-397  Living Wage 

Petition wording: 

We call on the Welsh Government to stand by their promise to work towards 
a living wage for every worker in Wales and tell us when and how they will 
make it happen. 

No matter how hard they try the minimum wage simply is not enough for 
some parents to make ends meet and give children like us the best chance in 
life.  The living wage means that parents who work would earn at least £7.20 
an hour. 

We are young campaigners working with Save the Children across the UK for 
change.  We are campaigning for a living wage, representing the views of 
young people, families and communities in Wales.  

Petition raised by:  Save the Children 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee:  19 June 2012 
 

Number of signatures:  483 

 

Agenda Item 4.25

Page 169



P
age 170



P-04-454 : Call to end Councillor and Assembly Member Dual 
Role. 

Petition wording:  

The petitioner asks the Welsh Government to bring forward legislation to bar 
the practice currently exhibited by 7 currently serving Assembly Members to 
hold TWO elected positions simultaneously,namely holding office as a 
Councillor witin the Welsh Jurisdiction and also holding office as an elected 
Assembly Member in the National Assembly of Wales. 
 
Petition raised by: Nortridge Perrott 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  29 January 2013 

Number of signatures: 52 

 

Agenda Item 4.26

Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



 

P-04-454 Call to end Councillor and Assembly Member Dual Role 
– Correspondence from the Welsh Local Government Association 
to the Clerking team, 26.09.13 
 
Kayleigh thanks for this. It is not so much that we missed it as frankly its not in our 
purview. This fundamentally is a matter for political parties to sort out and I would not 
wish to see any state interference in this.  There are currently councillors who are AMs 
and if parties are content with that then so be it. Hope this helps 
 
Cheers Steve  
 

Page 174



P-04-454 Call to end Councillor and Assembly Member Dual 
Role – Correspondence from Electoral Reform Society Wales to 
the Clerking team, 27.09.2013 
 

Dear Kayleigh, 

 

Many thanks for your email regarding the issue under consideration by the Petitions 

Committee. To confirm for your records, I'm the director of ERS Cymru and the contact for 

future request for information. 

 

The Electoral Reform Society Cymru does not support the proposal that the Welsh 

Government should bring forward legislation to bar Assembly members from holding office 

as a councillor in Wales (so called ‘double jobbing’). 

The Society would expect that any conflict of interest, perceived or otherwise, that may arise 

from an individual holding office in both a local authority and the National Assembly, should 

be dealt with under exist arrangements.  Ultimately it should be for the voters to decide 

whether or not they are content for an individual to hold both local and national office.  The 

Society does however support further consideration of the implications of  ‘double jobbing’ 

for AMs who are also MPs, which we expect to be part of the UK Government’s forthcoming 

Draft Wales Bill. 

 

Best wishes 

 

 

Stephen Brooks  

 

Page 175



P-04-495 Stop People Trafficking & Slavery in Wales 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to do all within its power to make Wales free from the illegal activity of 

people trafficking and slavery. 

 

Petition raised by:  Ignite / Big Ideas 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 16 July 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 2622 

Agenda Item 4.27

Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



P-04-445 : Save our Welsh cats & dogs from death on the 
roads 

Petition wording:  

We, the undersigned, call on all Welsh Residents who own cats and dogs to 
support our petition to the Welsh Government to remove the ban on 
electronic collars linked with invisible boundary fencing/hidden fencing so 
that we can protect our companion pets from harm either from: a) Road 
Traffic b) Straying into Danger c) Causing accidents for which we owners of 
cats & dogs might legally be held liable.  
 
 
Petition raised by: Monima O’Connor 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  15 January 2013 

Number of signatures: 10 - Associated petition collected approximately 500 
signatures 

 

 

Agenda Item 4.28

Page 179



Page 180



 

 1 

Reference: P-04-445 

Response to Alun Davies’s letter to William Powell, Chair, Petitions 
Committee 

1. 

I am very encouraged by the Minister’s response that there will be a review of 
the Animal Welfare (Electronic Collars) 2010 legislation in Summer 2014 that 
“will inform any policy decisions that result in a change to the legislation”. 

It is apparent from my meetings with some Assembly Members including the 
then Minister for Rural Affairs Elin Jones (who signed this legislation) that 
there is a complete lack of understanding of how the fencing system works; 
none of them has ever personally visited a garden or field with invisible fence 
system to see how it operates. 

This was very apparent from the Draft Legislation of 2009 - copy enclosed 
(which was abandoned at the last minute in 2010 in favour of a blanket ban 
for dog training collars and invisible fencing collars to make it easier for 
officials to police the law. It cannot be that cats & dogs must die on the roads 
to make it easier for officials to do their job !) 

It states that “ a person may attach an electronic device to a cat or a dog if – 

a) Any electric shock to the animal is caused by virtue of the animal’s 
proximity to a boundary marked by a physical barrier; 

b) The physical barrier is clearly visible to the animal 

c) The boundary marked by the physical barrier is entirely outdoors and 

d) The device is attached to the animal for a period of no more than 2 
months from the date on which is was first attached” 

During training, flags are put around a chosen boundary in a garden and the 
collar emits audible warning alerts when the cat or dog is within 8 feet from 
this boundary. Pets are taken on a lead towards the boundary by the owner 
but pulled back quickly when the alerts start and the pet is praised and 
fussed. It can take less than an hour before the pet understands that the 
alerts represent a sign of danger of a static charge or correction (not a live 
electric shock as with a livestock fence) and they do not proceed any further.  

This correction mimics the ‘nip’ given by an adult animal in the wild to its 
young and recognised by domestic pets. 

The training procedure is gradual and reinforced with the pet on a lead taken 
to the training flags in brief sessions during this reinforcement period until the 
flags are alternatively removed over a period of up to 4 weeks until the owner 
can see the pet’s progress and then the animal is free to roam in the garden. 

Page 181



 

 2 

Also, the collars are only attached to the cat or dog when it is outside in the 
garden and removed in the evening. The manufacturer’s instructions clearly 
state that the collars should only be worn for a maximum of 12 hours and this 
is easily achieved. 

This is a set training protocol by the American Kennel club used throughout 
the USA and also in England, Scotland and Ireland. 

It is baffling why the RSPCA is not in favour of the invisible fencing system. It 
would free up the Charity’s resources for real cases of genuine cruelty and 
neglect which are so graphically shown on their website.  

There are many thousands of cats and dogs abandoned by owners every 
year which are housed by the RPSCA and other animal welfare charities. Yet 
bizarrely, the RSPCA refuses to re-house a rescue animal in a home that is 
near a road. This is the first question I was asked when I rang my local 
RSPCA 3 years ago to adopt cats. Who doesn’t live near a road, for heaven’s 
sake? Perhaps the RSPCA cannot see the ‘clear blue water’ difference 
between dog training collars activated by a human hand and the invisible 
fencing collars governed by the animal’s own behaviour. 

Or maybe there are commercial reasons for it. 

2.  

No-one across the UK has ever been prosecuted under the Animal Welfare 
Act of 2006 for using an electronic collar on a cat or a dog since it was 
introduced 7 years ago. 

This Act is the gold standard for legislation for protection of animals from 
cruelty 

I sincerely hope this reassures the Minister that these invisible fences are only 
a force for good and demonstrated by the fact that that no other country in the 
UK has followed Wales over the past 3 years in implementing a ban. 

 

 

 

Monima O’Connor 
Petitioner. 

13th November 2013 

 

 

Page 182



Draft Regulations laid before the National Assembly for Wales under section 12 of the Animal 

Welfare Act 2006 (and paragraph 34 of Schedule 11 of the Government of Wales Act 2006), for 

approval by a resolution of the Assembly 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2008 No. (W. ) 

ANIMALS, WALES 

ANIMAL WELFARE 

The Animal Welfare (Electronic Devices) (Wales) Regulations 

2009 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations are made under section 12 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 (c.45). By virtue of 

section 162 of, and paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to, the Government of Wales Act 2006 (2006 

c.32), this section confers powers on the Welsh Ministers to make such provision as they think fit 

for the purpose of of promoting the welfare of animals for which a person is responsible, or the 

progeny of such animals. 

Regulation 2 defines “electronic device”.  

Regulation 3 provides for offences in relation to the use of an electronic device on a dog or a cat.  

Regulations 4 and 5 provide for defences in cases where an electronic device is used on a dog or a 

cat.  

Regulation 6 provides for penalties for the offences established in regulation 3.  

Regulations 7 to 16 provide post-conviction powers, including powers relating to: deprivation 

(regulation 8); disqualification (regulation 9); seizure of animals (regulations 10 and 11); 

destruction in the interests of the animal (regulation 12); forefeiture of equipment used in offences 

(regulation 13); appeals (regulation 14);  termination of disqualification (regulation 15); and 

reimbursement of expenses (regulations 16 and 17).  

Regulation 17 provides powers of entry and search, by treating an offence under the Regulations 

as a relevant offence for the purposes of section 24 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006. 

A regulatory appraisal has been prepared. Copies may be obtained from the Office of the Chief 

Veterinary Officer, the Welsh Assembly Government, Cathays Park, Cardiff CF10 3NQ.  

Page 183



W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2008 No. (W. ) 

ANIMALS, WALES 

ANIMAL WELFARE 

The Animal Welfare (Electronic Devices) (Wales) Regulations 

2009 

Made 2009 

Coming into force 2009 

The Welsh Ministers, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 12 of the Animal 

Welfare Act 2006 (1), and having consulted such persons as they consider appropriate, make the 

following Regulations— 

 

A draft of these Regulations was laid before the National Assembly for Wales under 

section 12 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 and has been approved by a resolution of 

the National Assembly for Wales. 

Title, commencement and application 

1. The title of these Regulations is the Animal Welfare (Electronic Devices) (Wales) 

Regulations 2009; they apply in relation to Wales and come into force on the day after they are 

made. 

Interpretation 

2.In these Regulations— 

“the Act” means the Animal Welfare Act 2006; 

“electronic device” means a device or instrument of a type which is capable of causing an 

electric shock to an animal; 

“electric shock” means stimulation of nerves or contraction of muscles caused by a flow of 

electric current through the body.  

 

Prohibition on use of electronic devices 

3.—(1) A person commits an offence if he or she— 

(a) attaches an electronic device to a dog or a cat; 

                                                 
(1) 2006 c.45. By virtue of section 162 of and paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (2006 c.32) the 

functions of the National Assembly for Wales are exercisable by the Welsh Ministers.  

Page 184



(b) causes an electronic device to be attached to a dog or a cat; or 

(c) is responsible for a dog or a cat to which an electronic device is attached. 

(2) Nothing in these Regulations prohibits the insertion and reading of a microchip for the 

purpose of identifying a cat or a dog, where that is done in accordance with good 

practice. 

Defences 

4.It is a defence for a person accused of an offence under regulation 3 to show that the electronic 

device— 

(a) was not capable of causing an electric shock to the animal; 

(b) was attached by or under the direction of a veterinary surgeon; or 

(c) was attached in accordance with regulation 5. 

Fencing systems 

5.—(1) A person may attach an electronic device to a cat or a dog if—  

(a) any electric shock to the animal is caused or to be caused by virtue of the 

animal’s proximity to a boundary marked by a physical barrier; 

(b) the physical barrier is clearly visible to the animal; 

(c) the boundary marked by the physical barrier is entirely outdoors; and 

(d) the device is attached to the animal for a period of no more than 2 months 

from the date on which it was first attached. 

(2) In this regulation, “outdoors” means outside of, or not covered by, any building or 

permanent structure.  

Penalties 

6.—(1) A person convicted of an offence under these Regulations is liable, on summary 

conviction, to— 

(a) imprisonment for a term not exceeding 51 weeks, or  

(b) a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale,  

or to both.  

Deprivation  

7.—(1) If a person convicted of an offence under regulation 3 is the owner of an animal in 

relation to which the offence was committed, the court by or before which he or she is convicted 

may, instead of or in addition to dealing with that person in any other way, make an order 

depriving him or her of ownership of the animal and for its disposal. 

(2) Where the owner of an animal is convicted of an offence under regulation 8(9), 

because ownership of the animal is in breach of a disqualification under regulation 

8(2), the court by or before which that person is convicted may, instead of or in 

addition to dealing with him or her in any other way, make an order depriving him or 

her of ownership of the animal and for its disposal. 

(3) Where the animal in respect of which an order under paragraph (1) or (2) is made has 

any dependent offspring, the order may include provision depriving the person to 

whom it relates of ownership of the offspring and for its disposal. 

(4) Where a court makes an order under paragraph (1) or (2), it may— 

(a) appoint a person to carry out, or arrange for the carrying out of, the order; 

Page 185



(b) require any person who has possession of an animal to which the order 

applies to deliver it up to enable the order to be carried out; 

(c) give directions with respect to the carrying out of the order; 

(d) confer additional powers (including power to enter premises where an 

animal to which the order applies is being kept) for the purpose of, or in connection 

with, the carrying out of the order; 

(e) order the offender to reimburse the expenses of carrying out the order. 

(5) Directions under paragraph (4)(c) may— 

(a) specify the manner in which an animal is to be disposed of, or 

(b) delegate the decision about the manner in which an animal is to be disposed 

of to a person appointed under paragraph (4)(a). 

(6) Where a court decides not to make an order under paragrapgh (1) or (2) in relation to 

an offender, it must give its reasons for the decision in open court and cause them to 

be entered in the register of its proceedings. 

(7) Paragraph (6) does not apply where the court makes an order under regulation 8(1) in 

relation to the offender. 

(8) In this regulation, references to disposing of an animal include destroying it. 

Disqualification 

8.—(1) Where a person is convicted of an offence under regulation 3, the court by or before 

which he or she is convicted may, instead of or in addition to dealing with that person in any other 

way, make an order disqualifying him or her under any one or more of paragraphs (2) to (4) for 

such period as it thinks fit. 

(2) Disqualification under this paragraph disqualifies a person— 

(a) from owning animals, 

(b) from keeping animals, 

(c) from participating in the keeping of animals, and 

(d) from being party to an arrangement under which he or she is entitled to 

control or influence the way in which animals are kept. 

(3) Disqualification under this paragraph disqualifies a person from dealing in animals. 

(4) Disqualification under this paragraph disqualifies a person— 

(a) from transporting animals, and 

(b) from arranging for the transport of animals. 

(5) Disqualification under paragraph (2), (3) or (4) may be imposed in relation to animals 

generally, or in relation to animals of one or more kinds. 

(6) The court by which an order under paragraph (1) is made may specify a period during 

which the offender may not make an application under regulation 14(1) for 

termination of the order. 

(7) The court by which an order under paragraph (1) is made may— 

(a) suspend the operation of the order pending an appeal, or 

(b) where it appears to the court that the offender owns or keeps an animal to 

which the order applies, suspend the operation of the order, and of any order made 

under regulation 10 in connection with the disqualification, for such period as it thinks 

necessary for enabling alternative arrangements to be made in respect of the animal. 

(8) Where a court decides not to make an order under paragraph (1) in relation to an 

offender, it must give its reasons for the decision in open court and cause them to be 

entered in the register of its proceedings. 

Page 186



(9) A person who breaches a disqualification imposed by an order under paragraph (1) 

commits an offence. 

Seizure of animals in connection with disqualification 

9.—(1) Where— 

(a) a court makes an order under regulation 8(1), and 

(b) it appears to the court that the person to whom the order applies owns or 

keeps any animal contrary to the disqualification imposed by the order, 

it may order that all animals that that person owns or keeps contrary to the disqualification be 

taken into possession. 

(2) Where a person is convicted of an offence under regulation 8(9) because of owning or 

keeping an animal in breach of disqualification under regulation 8(2), the court by or 

before which he or she is convicted may order that all animals that that person owns 

or keeps in breach of the disqualification be taken into possession. 

(3) An order under paragraph (1) or (2), so far as relating to any animal owned by the 

person subject to disqualification, has effect as an order for the disposal of the 

animal. 

(4) Any animal taken into possession in pursuance of an order under paragraph (1) or (2) 

that is not owned by the person subject to disqualification is to be dealt with in such 

manner as the appropriate court may order. 

(5) A court may not make an order for disposal under subsection (4) unless— 

(a) it has given the owner of the animal an opportunity to be heard, or 

(b) it is satisfied that it is not reasonably practicable to communicate with the 

owner. 

(6) Where a court makes an order under subsection (4) for the disposal of an animal, the 

owner may— 

(a) in the case of an order made by a magistrates' court, appeal against the order 

to the Crown Court; 

(b) in the case of an order made by the Crown Court, appeal against the order to 

the Court of Appeal. 

(7) In subsection (4), the reference to the appropriate court is to— 

(a) the court which made the order under subsection (1) or (2), or 

(b) in the case of an order made by a magistrates' court, to a magistrates' court 

for the same local justice area as that court. 

(8) In this section, references to disposing of an animal include destroying it. 

Seizure of animals: supplementary 

10.—(1) The court by which an order under regulation 9 is made may— 

(a) appoint a person to carry out, or arrange for the carrying out of, the order; 

(b) require any person who has possession of an animal to which the order 

applies to deliver it up to enable the order to be carried out; 

(c) give directions with respect to the carrying out of the order; 

(d) confer additional powers (including power to enter premises where an 

animal to which the order applies is being kept) for the purpose of, or in connection 

with, the carrying out of the order; 

(e) order the person subject to disqualification, or another person, to reimburse 

the expenses of carrying out the order. 

(2) Directions under paragraph (1)(c) may— 

Page 187



(a) specify the manner in which an animal is to be disposed of, or 

(b) delegate the decision about the manner in which an animal is to be disposed 

of to a person appointed under subsection (1)(a). 

(3) In determining how to exercise its powers under regulation 9 and this regulation, the 

court must have regard, amongst other things, to— 

(a) the desirability of protecting the value of any animal to which the order 

applies, and 

(b) the desirability of avoiding increasing any expenses which a person may be 

ordered to reimburse. 

(4) In determining how to exercise a power delegated under subsection (2)(b), a person 

must have regard, amongst other things, to the things mentioned in subsection (3)(a) 

and (b). 

(5) If the owner of an animal ordered to be disposed of under regulation 9 is subject to a 

liability by virtue of paragraph (1)(e), any amount to which he or she is entitled as a 

result of sale of the animal may be reduced by an amount equal to that liability. 

Destruction in the interests of the animal 

11.—(1) The court by or before which a person is convicted of an offence under regulation 3 

may order the destruction of an animal in relation to which the offence was committed if it is 

satisfied, on the basis of evidence given by a veterinary surgeon, that it is appropriate to do so in 

the interests of the animal. 

(2) A court may not make an order under subsection (1) unless— 

(a) it has given the owner of the animal an opportunity to be heard, or 

(b) it is satisfied that it is not reasonably practicable to communicate with the 

owner. 

(3) Where a court makes an order under subsection (1), it may— 

(a) appoint a person to carry out, or arrange for the carrying out of, the order; 

(b) require a person who has possession of the animal to deliver it up to enable 

the order to be carried out; 

(c) give directions with respect to the carrying out of the order (including 

directions about how the animal is to be dealt with until it is destroyed); 

(d) confer additional powers (including power to enter premises where the 

animal is being kept) for the purpose of, or in connection with, the carrying out of the 

order; 

(e) order the offender or another person to reimburse the expenses of carrying 

out the order. 

(4) Where a court makes an order under subsection (1), each of the offender and, if 

different, the owner of the animal may appeal against the order to the Crown Court; 

(5) Subsection (4) does not apply if the court by which the order is made directs that it is 

appropriate in the interests of the animal that the carrying out of the order should not 

be delayed. 

Forfeiture of equipment used in offences 

12.—(1) Where a person is convicted of an offence under regulation 3, the court by or before 

which he or she is convicted may order any electronic device which is shown to the satisfaction of 

the court to relate to the offence, to be— 

(a) forfeited, and 

(b) destroyed or dealt with in such manner as may be specified in the order. 

Page 188



(2) The court may not order anything to be forfeited under subsection (1) if a person 

claiming to be the owner of it or otherwise interested in it applies to be heard by the 

court, unless he or she has been given an opportunity to show cause why the order 

should not be made. 

Orders: Appeals 

13.—(1) Nothing may be done under an order under regulation 8, 10 or 11 with respect to an 

animal or an order under regulation 12 unless— 

(a) the period for giving notice of appeal against the order has expired, 

(b) the period for giving notice of appeal against the conviction on which the 

order was made has expired, and 

(c) if the order or conviction is the subject of an appeal, the appeal has been 

determined or withdrawn. 

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to an order under regulation 11(1) if the order is the 

subject of a direction under subsection (5) of that section. 

(3) Where the effect of an order is suspended under paragraph (1)— 

(a) no requirement imposed or directions given in connection with the order 

have effect, but 

(b) the court may give directions about how any animal to which the order 

applies is to be dealt with during the suspension. 

 

(4) Directions under paragraph (3)(b) may, in particular— 

(a) authorise the animal to be taken into possession; 

(b) authorise the removal of the animal to a place of safety; 

(c) authorise the animal to be cared for either on the premises where it was 

being kept when it was taken into possession or at some other place; 

(d) appoint a person to carry out, or arrange for the carrying out, of the 

directions; 

(e) require any person who has possession of the animal to deliver it up for the 

purposes of the directions; 

(f) confer additional powers (including power to enter premises where the 

animal is being kept) for the purpose of, or in connection with, the carrying out of the 

directions; 

(g) provide for the recovery of any expenses in relation to removal or care of the 

animal which are incurred in carrying out the directions. 

(5) Any expenses a person is directed to pay under paragraph (4)(g) are recoverable 

summarily as a civil debt. 

(6) Where the effect of an order under regulation 8 is suspended under paragraph (1) the 

person to whom the order relates may not sell or part with any animal to which the 

order applies. 

(7) Failure to comply with paragraph (6) is an offence. 

Termination of disqualification 

14.—(1) A person who is disqualified by virtue of an order under regulation 9 may apply to the 

appropriate court for the termination of the order. 

(2) No application under paragraph (1) may be made— 

(a) before the end of the period of one year beginning with the date on which the 

order is made, 

Page 189



(b) where a previous application under that paragraph has been made in relation 

to the same order, before the end of the period of one year beginning with the date on 

which the previous application was determined, or 

(c) before the end of any period specified under regulation 9(6) or paragraph (5) 

below in relation to the order. 

(3) On an application under paragraph (1), the court may— 

(a) terminate the disqualification, 

(b) vary the disqualification so as to make it less onerous, or 

(c) refuse the application. 

(4) When determining an application under paragraph (1), the court must have regard to 

the character of the applicant, his or her conduct since the imposition of the 

disqualification and any other circumstances of the case. 

(5) Where the court refuses an application under paragraph (1), it may specify a period 

during which the applicant may not make a further application under that subsection 

in relation to the order concerned. 

(6) The court may order an applicant under paragraph (1) to pay all or part of the costs of 

the application. 

(7) In paragraph (1), the reference to the appropriate court is to— 

(a) the court which made the order under regulation 9, or 

(b) in the case of an order made by a magistrates' court, to a magistrates' court 

acting for the same local justice area as that court. 

Orders made on conviction for reimbursement of expenses 

15. Where an order is made under regulation 8(4)(e), 11(1)(e) or 12(3)(e), the expenses that are 

required by the order to be reimbursed are not to be regarded for the purposes of the Magistrates’ 

Courts Act 1980(2) as a sum adjudged to be paid by a summary conviction, but are to be 

recoverable summarily as a civil debt. 

Orders for reimbursement of expenses: right of appeal for non-offenders 

16.—(1) Where a court makes an order to which this regulation applies, the person against 

whom the order is made may appeal against the order to the Crown Court; 

(2) This regulation applies to an order under regulation 11(1)(e) against a person other 

than the person subject to disqualification. 

Entry and search 

17. An offence under these Regulations is to be treated as a relevant offence for the purposes of 

section 24 of the Act. 

 

Name 

Minister for Rural Affairs, one of the Welsh Ministers 

[Date] 

  

 

                                                 
(2) 1980 c. 43 

Page 190



Cymdeithas Frenhinol Atal Creulondeb i Anifeiliaid 
Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 

Chris O’Brien, Public Affairs Manager 

Christopher.obrien@rspca.org.uk - 0300 123 8912 / 07715 540595 

 Facebook: RSPCA   www.politicalanimal.org.uk/wales Twitter: @RSPCAcymru 

 

20th November 2013 

 

William Powell AM 

Chair of the Petitions Committee 

National Assembly for Wales 

Cardiff Bay 

Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

 

Dear William Powell AM, 

 

Re: P-04-445 - ‘Save our Welsh cats & dogs from death on the roads’ 

 

I write in relation to P-04-445, entitled ‘Save our Welsh cats & dogs from death on 

the roads’, which is currently being considered by the National Assembly for Wales’ 

Petitions Committee. 

 

RSPCA policy states that no technical device should be used (or offered for sale) 

where an animal can be subjected to a painful stimulus at the direct instigation of a 

human or where a painful stimulus is delivered as a result of an animal’s action 

from which it cannot retreat.  

 

The RSPCA also has a very strong position against the use of training aids which 

are based on the principles of applying an unpleasant stimulus to inhibit unwanted 

behaviour.  

 

We are, therefore, deeply concerned by any proposals to remove the ban on 

electric collars linked with invisible boundary fencing or hidden fencing, as 

proposed by P-04-445. We also believe that such discussions are untimely.  

 

The report from the Companion Animal Welfare Council, referred to during the 

Committee’s deliberations, argues that there is no scientific evidence that these 

boundary fence systems necessarily cause any welfare problems, nor is there a 

compelling argument to believe that this should be the case. However, the report 

also states there is a lack of conclusive scientific research concerning the welfare 

implications of the use of Electronic Pulse Training Aids. Such conclusions about 

boundary fence systems, therefore, appear premature.  

 

We would suggest that the lack of evidence in relation to welfare problems relate 

primarily to a shortage of research. Committee members will be aware that the 

University of Lincoln is presently undertaking research in this field, and we hope 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RSPCA Cymru 

10 Cwrt Ty Nant/ Ty Nant Court 

Treforgan /Morganstown 

Caerdydd /Cardiff 

CF15 8LW 

 

Cruelty Line  

0300 1234 999 

 
Elusen a gofrestrwyd yng Nghymru  

a Lloegr  Rhif. 219099 

A charity registered in England & 

Wales Charity no. 219099 

 

www.rspca.org.uk/wales 
 

Noddwr Ei Mawrhydi Y Frenhines 

Patron HM The Queen 

 

Page 191



Cymdeithas Frenhinol Atal Creulondeb i Anifeiliaid 
Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 

Chris O’Brien, Public Affairs Manager 

Christopher.obrien@rspca.org.uk - 0300 123 8912 / 07715 540595 

 Facebook: RSPCA   www.politicalanimal.org.uk/wales Twitter: @RSPCAcymru 

their deliberations will encourage further, informed debate on this important 

issue. 

 

Certainly, existing evidence has highlighted many of the negative consequences 

concerning the use of boundary fence systems. The Association of Pet Behaviour 

Counsellors (APBC), for example, found additional behavioural problems in 

animals subject to such systems. Suitable alternatives which pet owners can use 

have been highlighted by the APBC. 

 

Invisible boundary fencing systems support a form of aversive training which 

inhibits unwanted dog or cat behaviours by applying an unpleasant stimulus. We 

are concerned that legalising such systems in Wales could encourage poor 

practices in animal training and ownership, which could have negative 

consequences for an animal’s welfare and which may cause pain and fear, as well 

as other behavioural problems, including aggression. 

 

RSPCA Cymru hugely welcomed the decision to introduce the Animal Welfare 

(Electronic Collars) (Wales) Regulations 2010, which included the ban on devices 

which administer an electric shock to pets to stop them getting too close to a 

defined boundary. We are concerned that a reversal of any such ban, particularly 

given the lack of conclusive evidence, could be a backwards step for animal welfare 

and, more broadly, lead to irresponsible pet ownership and a prevalence of 

ineffective, aversive approaches to animal training. We, therefore, presently 

support the view which the Welsh Government communicated to the Committee 

in February 2013 that no significant proposals have been brought forward to 

suggest changes to the legislation are warranted.  

 

As ever, RSPCA Cymru would be very pleased to meet with you to discuss this or 

provide any further information which may be required. 

 

Yours Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Chris O’Brien 

Public Affairs Manager, RSPCA Cymru 

Page 192



P-04-422 : Fracking 

Petition wording:  

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Minister for 

Environment and Sustainable Development to produce a Ministerial Interim 

Minerals Planning Policy Statement as well as a new technical advice note to 

strengthen the precautionary principle with regard to planning applications 

for onshore oil and gas, including fracking.  All reasonable scientific doubt 

that there is any risk of adverse impacts must be eliminated, and strongest 

consideration must be given to the urgent need to mitigate climate change. 

Petition raised by:  Friends of the Earth Cymru 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  2 October 2012 

Number of signatures:  Approximately 1000 

Agenda Item 4.29

Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



P-04-444 : Dig for Victory 

Petition wording:  

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 
introduce via local Councils a modern day Dig for Victory campaign.  

With food prices continually rising and times of a recession, there is a need 
once more to grow your own food, just like during ww2 when they 
introduced a Dig for Victory campaign to make sure everyone was fed.  If the 
Welsh Government introduced this via their local councils by giving 
householders vouchers or seeds, compost, even chicken arks and chickens 
(where suitable) then people would be a little better off financially and also 
healthier.  It would also cut down on the amount of food we import thus 
cutting down on our carbon footprint.  Most people have a garden and 
people without one can still grow some veg on patios and balconies.  So 
come on lets Dig for Victory. 

 

Petition raised by: Plaid Cymru Aberavon. 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  15 January 2013 

Number of signatures: 13 

 

Agenda Item 4.30

Page 197



P-04-436 : Government Expenditure and Revenue Wales 

Petition wording:  

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 
put together a Government Expenditure and Revenue Wales report.  

In Scotland they have the GERS report, it aims to enhance public 
understanding of fiscal issues through detailed analysis of official UK and 
Scottish Government financial statistics.It’s time that the Welsh Government 
published a similar report so that we can truly see the fiscal position of 
Wales. 

Petition raised by:  Stuart Evans 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  15 January 2013 

Number of signatures:  27 

 

Agenda Item 4.31

Page 198



P
age 199



P
age 200



P-04-436 Government Expenditure and Revenue Wales report – 

Correspondence from the petitioner to the Committee, 

08.11.2013 

 
The finance minister has used every opportuinity she can to ignore the word REVENUE in the 

petition so asking yet again that they look at REVENUE would be like banging my head against 

a wall. 

 

Thanks 

 

Stuart. 
 

Page 201



P-04-441 : Gwaith i Gymru - Work for Wales 

 

Petition wording:  

In light of the most recent Welsh youth unemployment figures, Plaid Cymru 
Youth calls on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh 
Government to put effective and positive steps in place to ensure a brighter 
future for this generation of young people. 

 

Specifically, we call on the Welsh Government to (1) create a scheme to 
support 30,000 apprenticeships and to expand the Young Recruits 
programme; (2) develop a modern, high-value, in-work training programme 
to increase young people’s employability; and (3) extend local authorities’ 
borrowing powers to £350 million so that they can support small and 
medium enterprises with ’local loans funds’. In addition to these steps, we 
call on the Welsh Government to do everything in its power to reverse this 
worrying situation and to do everything it can, in spite of public sector cuts 
being imposed by the UK Government, to create work for Wales.These are 
difficult times and Plaid Cymru Youth believes that the cuts that the 
Westminster coalition government is imposing on us are utterly 
unreasonable. Those cuts, however, must not stop the Welsh Government 
from acting now to help the Welsh economy.Youth unemployment is at 
record levels and worryingly, is worse in Wales than other parts of the United 
Kingdom; we seem to be bucking the UK trend.There is a real risk that this 
generation of 16-24 year olds will become a lost generation. They are in 
danger of being faced with financial hardship for the rest of their lives 
because of the jobs crisis that they are facing today.Having a quarter of our 
young people out of work is not a sustainable situation, and it is the start of 
a dangerous path to economic difficulties for Wales for decades to 
come.Effective and positive steps must be put in place now to reverse this 
alarming trend and ensure that we are creating work for Wales. 

 

Petition raised by: Cerith Rhys Jones 

Date petition first considered by Committee:  4 December 2012 

Number of signatures: 129 

 

Agenda Item 4.32

Page 202



 

Uned 7 Cae Gwyrdd, Greenmeadow Springs, Tongwynlais, Caerdydd CF15 7AB 

www.colegaucymru.ac.uk   helo@colegaucymru.ac.uk  Ff: 029 2052 2500 

Cwmni Cofrestredig Rhif 2832103   Elusen Gofrestredig Rhif 1060182 
 

Unit 7 Cae Gwyrdd, Greenmeadow Springs, Tongwynlais, Cardiff CF15 7AB 

www.collegeswales.ac.uk  hello@collegeswales.ac.uk   T: 029 2052 2500 

Registered Company No 2832103   Registered Charity Number: 1060182 

  
 

 

William Powell AM 
Chair 

Petitions Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 

Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 
 

8 October 2013 
 

 
Dear William 
 

 Petition on Brighter Future for Young People   
 

I apologise for not responding to your letter of 24 April 2013 seeking the views of 
ColegauCymru on a petition urging the Welsh Government to put forward effective and 
positive steps to ensure a brighter future for the current generation of young people.  

 
ColegauCymru represents 16 further education (FE) colleges and FE institutions in 

Wales. In 2010/11, there were 82,985 students attending FE colleges, of which 59,355 
students were aged below 201.  
 

FE colleges have a twin purpose – promoting social justice and inclusion and supporting 
a buoyant economy.  

 
(i) Promoting social justice 

 

Investing in the future of our young people and tackling disadvantage are both core to 
the approach taken by colleges – indeed they are the raison d’etre of colleges’ 

existence.  
 
A survey of 15 colleges in Wales in July 2013 showed that almost 37,000 learners 

received Educational Maintenance Allowances, Assembly Learning Grants or college 
Financial Contingency Funds.  This funding ensures that those requiring financial 

support are not deterred from enrolling on courses.  Colleges have almost 500 looked-
after children to whom they give specialist and dedicated support.  Providing support to 
all these learners is at the heart of what colleges do; it is nonetheless time consuming 

and expensive.  Investment needs to be sustained to ensure the most disadvantaged 
learners are catered for.  Where does a learner go if deprived of a second chance 

opportunity?  Maintaining investment in these learners ensures that they do not become 
NEET (not in employment, education or training). 

                                                 
1
 Further Education, Work-based Learning and Community Learning in Wales Statistics 2010/11 Welsh 

Government 2012 

Page 203



 

 
Colleges make probably the single biggest impact to reducing those who are NEET by 

either being the first point of contact for the young persons or being the poi nt of first 
referral by other agencies in many cases. 

 
Colleges received Financial Contingency Funds (FCF) of £7m from the Welsh 
Government in 2011/12.  There were 17,145 successful applications for funds from 

students, 88% of which were from full-time students.  The highest costs were for 
childcare and transport with other key areas being luncheon vouchers, equipment and 

books.   
 
16 year olds who choose to remain in school may continue to receive means-tested free 

school meals (FSM).  There is no dedicated FSM funding for college students.  Colleges 
often increase the amount of funding available to disadvantaged learners by reallocating 

sums earned from entrepreneurial activity. 
 

Colleges also receive funding for learners with learning difficulties and/or disabilities. In 

2012/13 this amounted to £6.4m.  This funding contributes towards providing specialist 
support in areas such as sign language and Braille and in-class (ancillary) support.  

 
As well as providing financial support through grants, colleges deliver curriculum 
specifically designed for those from disadvantaged or vulnerable groups – that is, 

education and training provision as well as financial support.  This provision, some of 
which can be termed as ‘uneconomic’, means that classes can be run in smaller groups, 

or that classes can be run in the community.  By so doing, colleges encourage learners 
to participate in learning where they may not have done so previously. 

 

In addition, colleges use a significant amount of resources to boost levels of literacy and 
numeracy.  Estyn has pointed out the differences between chronological age and 

reading age for example, and colleges seek to compensate for these gaps.  In 
November 2010, a survey carried out by ColegauCymru showed that 43% of their new 
full-time students had literacy levels below level 1 on entry to college, with the 

comparable figure being 48% for level 1 numeracy.  Improving literacy and numeracy 
levels is crucial in tackling disadvantage. 

 
(ii) Supporting a buoyant economy 

 

The second key element is the major contribution made by colleges to the economy in 
Wales by raising skills levels in Wales.  This is particularly significant as the increased 

level of long term unemployment in Wales since the recession in 2008 runs the risk of 
denuding the skills base of our country.  
 

ColegauCymru believes that despite the extremely testing economic outlook, Wales has 
the opportunity to rebuild its industrial future based on an ever more highly skilled 

workforce with FE colleges responding positively to the needs of business and industry.  
 
According to the latest large scale UKCES Employers’ Skills Survey, FE colleges in 

Wales prepare 17-18 year old ‘education leavers’ better than school sixth forms in 
Wales by a margin of 10%.  75% of employers in the survey stated that college leavers 

Page 204



 

are ‘well prepared’ or better compared to less than two thirds of school leavers who 
were so.2 

 
Work with business has remained a central priority for the sector over many years.  

Most colleges now have a commercial arm or business unit and promote their services 
to a wide range of employers.  ColegauCymru has estimated that colleges engage with 
over 25,000 businesses every year to work to develop a suite of products designed to 

meet the needs of private and public sector employers in Wales.  Such services range 
from work on apprenticeships (all levels), bespoke training programmes for staff, 

consultancies, product innovation and general advice on future skill needs of their 
workforce.  Colleges are constantly seeking to make sure that their work with business 
is nimble, at the cutting edge and suited to individual employer needs.  This is a central 

goal for colleges in Wales .  
 

Colleges have responded to the Welsh Government’s investment with an improving 
quality profile year-on-year.  For example, the Department for Education and Skills’ 
(DfES) annual Learner Outcomes Reports for 2010/11 showed that 90% of students 

completed their courses in FE colleges and of these 90% achieved their qualifications – 
making an overall success rate of 81%. This can be compared with a 40% successful 

completion in 2000/01.  
 
Sustaining public investment in skills in the medium to long term is crucial.  Vocational 

education delivered by colleges makes a major contribution to meeting the aims of 
Wales’ ambitious ski lls agenda.  Approximately 85% of courses (at level 3 and below) 

offered by colleges in Wales are vocational or vocationally related.  Colleges are 
therefore, by a large margin, the predominant providers of vocational and technical 
education in Wales.  

 
The need to develop a skills base for a renewed emphasis on industrial and 

construction industry growth is supported by clear evidence on projected labour demand 
in Wales up to 2020.  According to the latest estimates from the UK Commission on 
Employment and Skills’ Working Futures report: “Wales is the only nation/region [in the 

UK] where skilled trades occupations are expected to grow in employment, and not 
decline” and employment growth in Wales is projected to be: “above the UK average ... 

for the primary sector and utilities, construction, and trade, accommodation and 
transport”. This gives a particular impetus to investment focused on enhancing Wales’ 
crucial vocational skills base.  

 
Colleges enrol more 16-19 students than do school sixth forms.  Colleges provide a 

“sixth form” provision which is often unrecognised by many politicians.  Key features: 
 

 results are very good – the 2013 AS/A level results showed outstanding 

performance in many colleges with results comparable to school sixth forms  

 in several areas tertiary colleges widen student choice and provide specialist 

support 

 tertiary reorganisation is cost effective and provides a more efficient and fair 
solution than just reducing budgets and cuts out unnecessary competition for 16-

19 students.  

                                                 
2
 UK Commission for Employment and Skills: Employer Sk ills Survey 2011: Wales Results, Evidence 
Report 62, Nov 2012, fig. 3.1 p.28.  

Page 205



 

 
 

 
Comment  

 
Colleges play a key role in investing in the future of 16-24 year olds.  They are 
supporting disadvantaged learners; promoting opportunities for developing vocational 

qualifications; supporting apprenticeships and vocational learning routes; raising 
standards for all learners – academic and vocational; and seeking to ensure that young 

people and adults are equipped with the skills necessary to take on jobs when the 
economy eventually improves.  Colleges have invested heavily in their student support 
services which provide appropriate support and guidance and independent careers 

advice that meets the needs of young people.  
 

In short, colleges are playing key role in ensuring that 16-24 year olds do not become a 
‘lost generation’.  Rather, they are providing an education and ski lls environment that 
will help ensure a brighter future for young people in Wales. 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 

 
 

Dr John Graystone 
Chief Executive                               
 

c Mark Jones 
  Ken Skates, Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology 

 
(signed copy in the post) 
 

Page 206



P-04-484 EMA for all! 

Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to allow All children aged 16-19 and in full time education should recieve the 

full £30 a week EMA regardless of their parents income. 

 

Additional Information:  

All children aged 16-19 should receive the full £30 EMA weekly regardless of 

their parents income. Not all parents who earn a decent wage help their 

children financially to attend college and it is hard to find work as most 

places require experience in their fields. Providing they attend all children 

should receive the weekly allowance.  

 

Petition raised by:  Jack Gillum 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 4 June 2013 

 

Number of signatures: 10 

 

 

Agenda Item 4.33

Page 207



P-04-484 EMA for all! – Correspondence from the petitioner to the 
Committee, 15.10.2013 
 
Dear Petition Committee, 

 

Following the response from the minister I do not think that this petition is worth continuing 

being to the fact that I can see why they are doing what they do and now the fact that I don't 

think that this will now change anything.  

 

Many thanks 

 

Jack Gillum 

 

Page 208


	Agenda
	2.1 P-04-466 Medical Emergency - Preventing the introduction of a poorer Health Service for North Wales
	2.2 P-04-479 Tywyn Memorial Hospital X-ray & Minor Injuries Unit Petition Unit Petition
	Drafft transcript
	20.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee

	2.3 P-04-343 Prevent the destruction of amenities on common land - Anglesey
	Draft transcript

	2.4 P-04-496 Through Schools
	Draft transcript

	2.5 P-04-432 Stop the Army Recruiting in Schools
	Draft transcript

	3.1 P-04-514 A Welsh clean coal and/or renewable energy power station instead of the proposed Wylfa B nuclear plant at Anglesey
	3.2 P-04-515 Increase Funding for Welsh Bus Services
	3.3 P-04-516 Make political science compulsory in education
	3.4 P-04-517 Stop the Welsh Assembly Government from bringing in the monitoring of electively home educated children under the guise of safeguarding
	3.5 P-04-518 Universal Free School Lunches
	4.1 P-04-483 A plain English /Cymraeg clir policy for all Welsh Assembly and Government communications
	13.08.2013 Correspondence - Canolfan Bedwyr to the Chair
	01.09.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee
	26.09.2013 Correspondence - Plain English Campaign to the clerking team

	4.2 P-03-315 New Dyfi River Crossing Petition
	08.10.2013 Correspondence -Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair

	4.3 P-04-319 Newtown traffic petition
	08.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair

	4.4 P-04-393  Llanymynech and Pant Bypass Action Group
	04.11.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair
	19.11.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair

	4.5 P-04-446 Business Rate Relief for Welsh Charity Shops
	09.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair
	08.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the clerking team

	4.6 P-04-468 Road Safety Concerns A48 Chepstow
	01.11.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair

	4.7 P-04-475 Wanted - Buses for Meirionnydd
	27.09.2013 Correspondence - Children's Commissioner for Wales to the Chair
	01.08.2013 Correspondence - Older People's Commissioner for Wales to the Chair
	29.07.2013 Correspondence - Gwynedd Council to the Chair
	31.07.2013 Correspondence - Age Cymru to the Chair
	14.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee

	4.8 P-04-508 Restore the Glandyfi view
	05.11.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Economy, Science & Transport to the Chair

	4.9 P-04-362 Ambulance Services in Monmouth
	30.09.2013 Correspondence - Health and Social Care Committee Chair to the Chair

	4.10 P-04-448 Improve Sexual health services for Western Vale
	4.11 P-04-452 Equal Rights for Tube-fed Youngsters
	06.08.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Health and Social Services to Chair
	30.09.2013 Correspondence - Health and Social Care Committee Chair to the Chair

	4.12 P-04-457 The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign
	4.13 P-04-474 Support for NHS chaplaincy services
	26.07.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Health & Social Services to the Chair
	30.07.2013 Correspondence - Powys Teaching Health Board to the Chair
	07.08.2013 Correspondence - Cardiff and Vale Health Board to Chair
	08.08.2013 Correspondence - Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board to the Chair
	15.08.2013 Correspondence - Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board to the Chair
	15.11.2013 correspondence - P-04-457 Lead Petitioner to the Committee

	4.14 P-04-463 Reduction of Salt Levels in Food
	18.10.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the clerking team

	4.15 P-04-490 Antiretroviral Medication in Cardiff
	10.07.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Health & Social Services to the Chair
	08.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the clerking team

	4.16 P-04-501 Day Centres for the elderly in Wales to be made statutory
	17.10.2013 Correspondence - Deputy Minister for Social Services to the Chair
	18.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee

	4.17 P-04-505 Eating Disorder Unit in Wales
	03.11.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Health & Social Services to the Chair
	09.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the clerking team

	4.18 P-04-363 Town Centre Improvement Scheme for Fishguard
	18.10.2013 Correspondence - South West Wales Integrated Transport Consortium to the Chair

	4.19 P-04-419 Wind Farm Moratorium
	22.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Housing & Regeneration to the Chair
	14.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Chair

	4.20 P-04-423 Brooklands Nursing Home
	15.10.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Chair

	4.21 P-04-469 Remove the Right-To-Buy Regional Price Cap
	15.05.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Housing & Regeneration to the Chair
	29.09.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the clerking team

	4.22 P-04-473 Wind Farm Public Inquiry Financial Support
	13.10.2013 Correspondence -  Deptartment of Energy & Climate Change to the Chair
	15.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Chair

	4.23 P-04-497 National Graduate Housing Scheme
	14.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Housing & Regeneration to the Chair
	08.10.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Chair

	4.24 P-04-503 Regeneration of Ton and Pentre
	23.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Housing & Regeneration to the Chair
	08.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the clerking team

	4.25 P-04-397 Living Wage
	22.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Local Government & Government Business to the Chair

	4.26 P-04-454 Call to end Councillor and Assembly Member Dual Role
	05.07.2013 Correspondence - Electoral Commission to the Chair
	26.09.2013 Correspondence - Welsh Local Government Association to the clerking team
	27.09.2013 Correspondence - Electoral Reform Society Wales to the clerking team

	4.27 P-04-495 Stop People Trafficking & Slavery in Wales
	21.09.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Local Government & Government Business to the Chair

	4.28 P-04-445 Save our Welsh cats & dogs from death on the roads
	24.09.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Natural Resources & Food to the Chair
	13.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee
	20.11.2013 Correspondence - Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals to the Chair

	4.29 P-04-422 Fracking
	09.08.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Natural Resources & Food to the Chair
	09.09.2013 Correspondence - Welsh Affairs Committee to the Chair

	4.30 P-04-444 Dig for Victory
	4.31 P-04-436 Government Expenditure and Revenue Wales
	09.10.2013 Correspondence - Minister for Finance to the Chair
	09.11.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee

	4.32 P-04-441 Gwaith i Gymru - Work for Wales
	08.10.2013 Correspondence - ColegauCymru to the Chair

	4.33 P-04-484 EMA for all!
	15.10.2013 Correspondence - Petitioner to the Committee


